
City Council Agenda 
 
 
AUGUST 11, 2020 
6:00 p.m. 
City of Turlock Yosemite Room 
156 S. Broadway, Turlock, California 
 
 

NOTICE: THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXECUTIVE ORDER  
N-29-20, ISSUED BY CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR GAVIN NEWSOM ON MARCH 17, 2020, 
THE RALPH M. BROWN ACT (CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54950, ET 

SEQ.), AND THE FEDERAL AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT. 
 

THIS MEETING WILL NOT BE PHYSICALLY OPEN TO THE PUBLIC. 
 

THE MEETING WILL BE STREAMED ON THE CITY OF TURLOCK WEBSITE AT 
WWW.CITYOFTURLOCK.ORG AND BROADCASTED ON SPECTRUM CHANNEL 2. 

 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ALSO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIA THE 
FOLLOWING METHODS: 

 

JOIN BY CLICKING ON THE MEETING LINK: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84924629186 
 

OR 
 

JOIN BY ACCESSING THE ZOOM WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 
WEBINAR ID: 849 2462 9186 

 

OR 
 

JOIN BY TELEPHONE: 669-900-6833 
WEBINAR ID: 849 2462 9186 

 

 
Mayor 

Amy Bublak 
 City Manager 
 Council Members Toby Wells, P.E. 
Nicole Larson Gil Esquer  City Clerk 
Andrew Nosrati Becky Arellano  Jennifer Land 
 Vice Mayor    City Attorney 
 Douglas L. White 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS:  The Turlock City Council meetings are conducted in English and translation to 
other languages is not provided.  Please make arrangements for an interpreter if necessary. 
 
EQUAL ACCESS POLICY:  If you have a disability which affects your access to public facilities or services, please contact the City 
Clerk’s Office at (209) 668-5540.  The City is committed to taking all reasonable measures to provide access to its facilities and 
services.  Please allow sufficient time for the City to process and respond to your request. 
 
NOTICE:  Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3, any member of the public may directly address the City Council 
on any item appearing on the agenda, including Consent Calendar and Public Hearing items, before or during the City Council’s 
consideration of the item.  Members of the public will be allowed three (3) minutes for comments. 
 
AGENDA PACKETS:  Prior to the City Council meeting, a complete Agenda Packet is available for review on the City’s website at 
www.cityofturlock.org and in the City Clerk’s Office at 156 S. Broadway, Suite 230, Turlock, during normal business hours.  Materials 
related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the Agenda Packet are also available for public 
inspection in the City Clerk’s Office.  Such documents may be available on the City’s website subject to staff’s ability to post the 
documents before the meeting. 

http://www.cityofturlock.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84924629186
https://zoom.us/join
http://www.cityofturlock.org/


Council Agenda 
8/11/20 
Page 2 

 

 

0. A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 

C. ROLL CALL 
 

D. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS 
 
 
1. CLOSED SESSION: 
 

The Closed Session item(s) for this meeting have been agendized and will be heard toward the 
latter part of the meeting. 

 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AMENDED 

This is the time for the City Council to remove items from the agenda or to change the order of the agenda.  Matters 
may be taken up out of order of the established agenda by a four-fifths vote of the City Council. 

 
 
3. PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS,  

PRESENTATIONS, AND BRIEFINGS: 
 

A. Recognition:  Employee of the Month – July 2020, Electronic Instrumentation Technician, 
Senior Robin Dysart 

B. Proclamation:  National Health Center Week, August 9-15, 2020 
C. Appointment:  City of Turlock and Stanislaus State University Joint Taskforce on Diversity 

and Inclusion – One (1) Member of City Council 
 
 
4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WISHING TO ADDRESS THE CITY COUNCIL WILL BE GIVEN THE 
SAME TIME ALLOTMENT FOR COMMENTS (3 MINUTES) AS NORMALLY ALLOWED FOR 
MEETINGS SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20. 

 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3(a), this is the time set aside for members of the public to 
directly address the City Council on any item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
City Council and to address the Council on any item on tonight’s agenda, including Consent Calendar items. You will 
be allowed three (3) minutes for your comments.  If you wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda, you may be 
asked to defer your remarks until the Council addresses the matter. 

 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.2(a)(3), no action or discussion may be undertaken on any 
item not appearing on the posted agenda, except that the City Council, or its staff, may briefly respond to comments 
or questions from members of the public, provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, or 
direct staff to place the issue on a future agenda. 

 
 
5. MOTION WAIVING READING OF ALL ORDINANCES ON THE AGENDA, EXCEPT BY 

TITLE:  None 
 
 
 



Council Agenda 
8/11/20 
Page 3 

 

 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 Information concerning the consent items listed hereinbelow has been forwarded to each Councilmember prior to this 

meeting for study.  Unless the Mayor, a Councilmember or member of the audience has questions concerning the 
Consent Calendar, the items are approved at one time by the Council.  The action taken by the Council in approving 
the consent items is set forth in the explanation of the individual items. 

 
A. Resolution:  Accepting Weekly Demands of 7/9/20 in the amount of $1,538,081.46; 

Monthly Demands of 4/30/20 in the amount of $2,357,181.86; Monthly Demands of 
5/31/20 in the amount of $1,674,220.76 

B. Motion:  Accepting Minutes of the Special Meeting of June 16, 2020; Minutes of the 
Special Meeting of July 6, 2020 

C. Motion:  Approving Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement with DF Engineering, of 
Modesto, California in the amount of $5,940 (Non-General Fund - Fund 215), bringing 
the contract total to $128,718 for professional engineering and surveying services for 
City Project No. 16-60 "Linwood Avenue Pedestrian Improvements” 

D. Motion:  Approving the advertisement for construction bids for City Project No. 17-53 
“Golden State Rehabilitation 20th Century Boulevard to Main Street” 

E.  1. Resolution:  Approving the submission of a grant application for the WaterSMART  
Drought Response Program for City Project No. 18-69 "Surface Water Distribution 
System Improvements” committing to the obligations associated with receipt of a 
financial assistance grant and cooperative agreement, and authorizing the City Manager 
to sign all documents related to the WaterSMART grant 
2. Motion:  Approving Amendment No. 2 with Carollo Engineers of Walnut Creek, 
California in the amount of $32,664 (Non-General Fund - Fund 420), bringing the 
contract total to $2,711,236 for professional engineering design services for City Project 
No. 18-69 "Surface Water Distribution System Improvements” 

F.  Motion:  Approving the advertisement for construction bids for City Project No. 20-001 
"Southeast Quadrant Road Rehabilitation" 

G. 1.  Motion:  Awarding a Retainer Agreement with ECORP Consulting, Inc., of Rocklin, 
CA, for City Project No. 20-017 “RFQ for Retainer Agreement for Environmental Study 
Services” in an amount not to exceed $150,000 annually 
2.  Motion: Awarding a Retainer Agreement with Rincon Consultants, Inc., of 
Sacramento, CA, for City Project No. 20-017 “RFQ for Retainer Agreement for 
Environmental Study Services” in an amount not to exceed $150,000 annually 

H. 1.  Motion:  Awarding a Retainer Agreement with Associated Right of Way Services, Inc., 
of Pleasant Hill, CA, for City Project No. 20-018 “RFQ for Retainer Agreement for Right-
of-Way and Property Appraisal Services” in an amount not to exceed $150,000 
2.  Motion:  Awarding a retainer agreement with Bender Rosenthal, Inc., of Fresno, CA, 
for City Project No. 20-018 “RFQ for Retainer Agreement for Right-of-Way and Property 
Appraisal Services” in an amount not to exceed $150,000  
3.  Motion:  Awarding a retainer agreement with Hamner, Jewel and Associates, of 
Fresno, CA, for City Project No. 20-018 “RFQ for Retainer Agreement for Right-of-Way 
and Property Appraisal Services” in an amount not to exceed $150,000 

I. Motion:  Approving a Professional Services Agreement between the City of Turlock and 
West Yost Associates for the preparation of the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan in 
an amount not to exceed $98,230 from account number 420-52-550.43320 “Special 
Services/Projects” (Non-General Fund) 

J. Resolution:  Re-appropriating unspent funds to Fiscal Year 2020-21 in the amount of 
$15,000 (non-general fund) to account number 506-00-000-223.51020 “Equipment 
Replacement” from Fund 506 “Vehicle/Equipment Replacement” unallocated reserves in 
Program 223 “Water Enterprise” for the purchase of one (1) 2019 Ford Fusion Energi 
Plug-In Hybrid Sedan Titanium for the Municipal Services Department from Downtown 



Council Agenda 
8/11/20 
Page 4 

 

 

Ford Sales of Sacramento, California, and $20,000 to account number 506-00-000-
223.37235 “San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District Grant” revenue for grant 
proceeds 

K. Resolution:  Authorizing the City Manager to work with the City Attorney to update and 
finalize the Non-Disclosure Agreement for potential new industries 

L. Motion:  Awarding RFQ No. 20-015 and approving an Agreement with Joe Gomes & 
Sons, Inc. for gasoline and diesel fuel card lock fueling service for city vehicles and 
equipment, for a period of three (3) years, with an option to extend the Agreement for 
three (3) additional one-year terms, in an annual amount not to exceed $600,000 and a 
total amount not to exceed $3,600,000 over the 6-year term of the Agreement, if all 
renewal periods are exercised 

 
 
7. FINAL READINGS:  None 
 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 
 
 
9. ACTION ITEMS: 
 

A. Request to adopt a Resolution of Support for the City of Turlock Police Department 
(Wells) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Resolution:  Adopting a Resolution of Support for the City of Turlock Police Department 

 
B. Request to approve the California Military Department’s request to end the ninety-nine  

(99) year lease as a result of the lead mitigation in the former indoor shooting range, 
accepting the facility “as is” and directing the City Manager to facilitate the transfer of the 
facility back to the City of Turlock AND Accepting the appraisal report (Exhibit A) for the 
property located at 1040 Flower St. AND Directing staff to proceed with the “Letter of 
Interest” (Exhibit B) process to evaluate potential development opportunities for the 
property located at 1040 Flower St.  (Van Guilder) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Resolution:  Approving the California Military Department’s request to end the ninety- 
nine (99) year lease as a result of the lead mitigation in the former indoor shooting 
range, accepting the facility “as is” and directing the City Manager to facilitate the 
transfer of the facility back to the City of Turlock 

 
Motion:  Accepting the appraisal report (Exhibit A) for the property located at 1040 
Flower St. 

 
Motion: Directing staff to proceed with the “Letter of Interest” (Exhibit B) process to 
evaluate potential development opportunities for the property located at 1040 Flower St. 

 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda 
8/11/20 
Page 5 

 

 

10. CITY MANAGER REPORTS/UPDATES 
City Manager reports/updates are provided for informational purposes only and no action or discussion may be 
undertaken.  The City Manager may direct department heads to provide reports/updates at the City Manager’s 
request. 

 
A. Administrative Services 

1. Economic Development Update  (Pitt) 
 

B. Development Services  
1. Monthly Department Update  (Bray) 

 
C. Fire Department 

1. COVID-19 Update  (Carlson) 
 

D. Parks, Recreation and Public Facilities 
1. Columbia Park Update  (Van Guilder) 

 
 
11. COUNCIL ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION 

Requests for Council items for future consideration will be scheduled in accordance with the City of Turlock Elected 
and Appointed Officials’ Handbook (Resolution No. 2019-094), unless otherwise specified by the Mayor or a majority 
of the Council. 

 
 
12. COUNCILMEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Councilmembers may ask questions, provide comments, and make brief announcements on notable topics of 
interest.  The Brown Act does not allow discussion or action by the legislative body. 

 
 
13. CLOSED SESSION: 
 

A. Threat to Public Services or Facilities, Cal. Gov’t Code §54957(a) 
“This chapter shall not be construed to prevent the legislative body of a local agency from holding 
closed sessions with the Governor, Attorney General, district attorney, agency counsel, sheriff, or 
chief of police, or their respective deputies, or a security consultant or a security operations 
manager, on matters posing a threat to the security of public buildings, a threat to the security of 
essential public services, including water, drinking water, wastewater treatment, natural gas 
service, and electric service, or a threat to the public’s right of access to public services or public 

facilities.” 
Consultation with:  City Manager Toby Wells and City Attorney Douglas L. White 

 
B. Public Employee Performance Evaluation, Cal. Gov’t Code §54957(b)(1) 

“Subject to paragraph (2), this chapter shall not be construed to prevent the legislative body of a 
local agency from holding closed sessions during a regular or special meeting to consider the 
appointment, employment, evaluation of performance, discipline, or dismissal of a public 
employee or to hear complaints or charges brought against the employee by another person or 
employee unless the employee requests a public session.” 

Title:  City Manager 
 
 
14. REPORTS FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 





















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































   Exhibit B 

   

 

  

LETTERS OF INTEREST 

 For Adaptive Reuse / Redevelopment Opportunity  
1040 Flower St., Turlock, CA 

  
The City of Turlock (the “City”) is seeking letters of interest from all qualified parties who may wish 
to pursue an adaptive reuse or redevelopment project of a former armory building and adjacent 
property (see images in the appraisal report).  The property is City owned and is comprised of 
1.48 acres (APN 061-003-017) with an 11,918 square foot former armory structure and 40 parking 
spaces.  The building was constructed in 1963 and consists of concrete block construction. The 
State of California Military Department has continuously occupied the facility however it is now 
vacated.   A third-party appraisal and phase I/II environmental reports, lead abatement and lead 
clearance report are available at the links provided below.    
Armory Appraisal Report 
Environmental Phase I 
Environmental Phase II 
Lead Abatement 
Lead Clearance Report 
  
The State of California Military Department has mitigated the lead contamination identified in the 
environmental report. Interested parties should carefully review the reports for other identified 
contaminants as the City will not be responsible for mitigation. The land is zoned P-S – Public & 
Semi-Public and is located within an established neighborhood. The property is within walking 
distance to an elementary school, retail shopping and sits across the street from Soderquist Park, 
little league baseball facility.  The site is designated Public in the General Plan however, given the 
location of the facility, a rezone and General Plan Amendment to residential or similar compatible 
land use is a potential option. 
  
To determine the level of development interest in the aforementioned property, the City is seeking 
letters of interest from organizations and individuals.  To better understand the level of interest 
and opportunities at this site, letters may include responses to the following:  
  
 Potential use of the property in 500 words or less  If a Request for Qualifications/Proposals 
(RFQ/RFP) was issued, would you likely submit a response?  What information would you need 
from the City to be able to submit a proposal?  
  
Letters should contain individual/company background and contact information.  At this time, the 
City is not seeking formal proposals.  Based on the level of interest expressed in the letters 
received by 5:00 P.M. on Friday, September 4, 2020, a subsequent process may ensue to make 
the property available for development.  The anticipated timeline to release an RFQ is November 
2020 and a subsequent RFP process is expected to begin in Spring 2021.  Letters of interest are 
not required to participate in any future process.  Please submit your letter of interest either by 
email or mail to:  
  
Allison Van Guilder, Director of Parks, Recreation and Public Facilities 
City of Turlock 156 S. Broadway Turlock, CA 95380-5454   
avanguilder@turlock.ca.us 
For more information regarding this process, please contact Allison Van Guilder at 209-668-6001. 



EXHIBIT C







BEM Project No.  17-43917 
 

1900 McHenry Ave., Ste 201, Escalon, CA  95320 
Escalon 209-847-3800 ● Fresno 559-264-3800 ● Bakersfield 661-246-2110 ● Sacramento 916-564-3838 

 

 
 
May 27, 2020 
 
 
Mr. Ron Klein 
Katch Environmental  
4972 East Pontiac Way  
Fresno, CA 93727  
 
 
RE: LEAD CLEARANCE REPORT 
 
 

Subject Site:     California Army National Guard; 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, CA    

Inspected On:     May 26, 2020 
 

Inspected Areas: Storage Room 
 
 
Mr. Klein: 
 
Upon lead remediation activities at the Subject Site referenced above, Bovee Environmental Management 
(BEM) collected wipe samples and provided for laboratory analysis to determine lead levels on surfaces 
beneath the remediation areas. This letter report outlines our services.  
 
 
SCOPE OF WORK 
BEM was contracted to perform a visible inspection and provide wipe samples with laboratory analyses 
upon lead remediation efforts performed at the Subject Site.   
 
 
VISUAL INSPECTION 
No visible lead containing debris were observed during BEM’s visual inspection of the Subject Site.   
 
 
WIPE SAMPLES/ANALYTICAL RESULTS 
Wipe samples were collected from surfaces beneath lead remediation areas.  BEM’s field form and 
laboratory analytical results can be reviewed in Attachments A and B. 
 
SAMPLE # SAMPLE LOCATION SURFACE LEAD CONCENTRATION 
43917-L1 CA-Turl-01 Floor <5.0 µg/ft2 
43917-L2 CA-Turl-02 Floor <5.0 µg/ft2 
43917-L3 CA-Turl-03 Floor <5.0 µg/ft2 
43917-L4 CA-Turl-04 Floor <5.0 µg/ft2 
43917-L5 CA-Turl-05 Floor <5.0 µg/ft2 

 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT D



BEM Project No.  20-43917 
 

 
CONCLUSION 
 

Wipe sample results of collected surfaces revealed lead concentration levels well below the regulatory (17 
CCR 35035) clearance level of less than 40 micrograms per square foot. 
 
Based on the visual inspection and analytical results of the remediation areas, the Subject Site should 
be considered ready for re-occupancy in regards to lead contaminants. 
 
 
WARRANTY 
 
BEM warrants that the findings contained herein have been promulgated in general accordance with 
accepted professional practices at the time of its preparation as applied by professionals in the community. 
There is a possibility that conditions may exist which could not be identified within the scope of the 
inspection or which were not apparent during the site visit. No other warranties are implied or expressed. 
 
BEM looks forward to assisting you in the near future.  If you have any questions regarding this report or 
other BEM services, please call (209) 847-3800. 
 
Regards, 
 

Brett L. Bovée 
 
Brett L. Bovée, CAC, CMC, CDPH 
California DPH Lead Inspector/Assessor ID# 1494/1493 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT  A 

 
B E M  

 S A M P L E  F I E L D  S H E E T  
 

  





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                  

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT  B 

 
L A B O R A T O R Y  

A N A L Y T I C A L  R E P O R T  
 

 



Analysis Report

Client:

Project/Test Address:

Bovee Environmental Management Inc

7469 Whitepine Rd

Richmond, VA 23237

Environmental Hazards Services, L.L.C.

Report Number: 20-05-02432

20-43917; California Army National Guard; Commercial; 1040 Flower St; Turlock, CA 95380

Client Number:

201425

Fax Number:

Laboratory Results
Wipe Area

(ft²)

Analyzed Date:

Client Sample
Number

Lab Sample
Number

Total Pb
(ug)

Concentration
(ug/ft²)

Lead Dust Wipe

Telephone: 800.347.4010

1900 McHenry Ave, Ste 201
Escalon, CA 95320

Received Date:

Reported Date:

05/27/2020

05/27/2020

Narrative
ID

05/27/2020

Collection Location Surface

Collection Date: 05/26/2020

<5.00<5.0043917-L120-05-02432-
001

1.00CA-TURL-01 FL

<5.00<5.0043917-L220-05-02432-
002

1.00CA-TURL-02 FL

<5.00<5.0043917-L320-05-02432-
003

1.00CA-TURL-03 FL

<5.00<5.0043917-L420-05-02432-
004

1.00CA-TURL-04 FL

<5.00<5.0043917-L520-05-02432-
005

1.00CA-TURL-05 FL

of1 2Page



Client Number: Report Number:

Project/Test Address:

Environmental Hazards Services, L.L.C

201425

20-43917; California Army National Guard;
Commercial; 1040 Flower St; Turlock, CA 95380

20-05-02432

Client Sample
Number

Concentration
(ug/ft²)

Lab Sample
Number

Total Pb
(ug)

Narrative
ID

Wipe Area
(ft²)

Collection Location Surface

Legend ug = microgram ug/ft² = micrograms per square foot                           Pb = lead

mL = milliliter ft² = square foot

Missy Kanode

Method: ASTM E-1979-17/EPA SW846 7000B

Lead Hazard and Clearance Standards Table
Description  EPA - Effective 12/18/2019  HUD Grant Programs

Hazard Standard, Floors  ≥ 10 µg/ft²  ≥ 10 µg/ft²

Hazard Standard, Sills  ≥ 100 µg/ft²  ≥ 100 µg/ft²

Clearance, Floors  < 40 µg/ft²  < 10 µg/ft²

Clearance, Sills  < 250 µg/ft²  < 100 µg/ft²

Clearance, Troughs  < 400 µg/ft²  < 100 µg/ft²

Clearance, Porch Floors  Not Regulated  < 40 µg/ft²

The Reporting Limit (RL) is 5.00 ug Total Pb.  Reported results are not corrected for field blanks.  Dust wipe area and results are
calculated based on area measurements determined by the client.  All internal quality control requirements associated with this
batch were met, unless otherwise noted.

Reviewed By Authorized Signatory:

QA/QC Clerk

Accreditation #:

The condition of the samples analyzed was acceptable upon receipt per laboratory protocol unless otherwise noted on this report. Results

represent the analysis of samples submitted by the client. Sample location, description, area, etc., was provided by the client.  Results

reported above in ug/ft2 are calculated based on area supplied by the client.   If the report does not contain the result for a field blank, it is due

to the fact that the client did not include a field blank with their samples.  EHS sample results do not reflect blank correction.  This report shall

not be reproduced except in full, without the written consent of the Environmental Hazards Services, L.L.C.

ELLAP Accredtitation through AIHA-LAP, LLC (100420),  NY ELAP #11714.

of2 2Page



 Phase I Environmental 
Site Assessment 

  

 US Army National Guard 
Armory Site 

1040 Flower Street 
Turlock, California  

  

 Prepared for: 
 

The City of Turlock 
 

  

 Prepared by: 
 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
November 15, 2016 

 

EXHIBIT E





California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
i 

 

Table of Contents 

Phase I Environmental Site Assessment  

California National Guard -Armory Site 

1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California   

Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................... 1 
Introduction ................................................................................................................................................ 4 

Purpose ................................................................................................................................................... 4 
Scope of Services .................................................................................................................................... 5 
Significant Assumptions, Limitations, Deviations, Exceptions, Special Terms, 

and Conditions .......................................................................................................................... 5 
User Reliance .......................................................................................................................................... 6 
Site Description ...................................................................................................................................... 6 

Location .............................................................................................................................................. 6 
Subject Property and Vicinity General Characteristics ................................................................ 6 
Descriptions of Structures, Roads, Other Improvements on the Site ........................................ 7 

User Provided Information ....................................................................................................................... 7 
Records Review .......................................................................................................................................... 8 

Physical Setting Sources ....................................................................................................................... 8 
Topography ........................................................................................................................................ 8 
Geology and Hydrogeology ............................................................................................................ 8 
Site Geology ....................................................................................................................................... 8 
Regional Groundwater Occurrence and Quality .......................................................................... 8 

Standard Environmental Record Sources .......................................................................................... 9 
Subject Property ................................................................................................................................. 9 
Offsite Properties ............................................................................................................................... 9 
Orphan Listings ............................................................................................................................... 10 

Additional Environmental Record Sources ..................................................................................... 10 
Review of Agency Files .................................................................................................................. 10 

Subject Property .......................................................................................................................... 11 
Adjacent Properties ..................................................................................................................... 11 
Nearby Release Sites ................................................................................................................... 11 

Known or Suspect Contaminated Release Sites with Potential Vapor Migration...................... 12 
Review of State of California Division of Oil and Gas Records .................................................... 13 
Historical Use Information on the Property and the Adjoining Properties ................................ 13 

Review of Historical Aerial Photographs .................................................................................... 13 
Review of Historical Topographic Maps ..................................................................................... 13 
Review of City Directory Listings ................................................................................................. 13 
Review of Fire Insurance Maps ..................................................................................................... 13 
Review of City of Turlock Building Permit Records .................................................................. 13 
Summary of Historical Uses .......................................................................................................... 14 

Subject Property .......................................................................................................................... 14 
Northern Adjacent Property ...................................................................................................... 14 



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
ii 

 

Eastern Adjacent Property......................................................................................................... 14
Southern Adjacent Property ...................................................................................................... 14 
Western Adjacent Property ....................................................................................................... 14 

Gaps in Historical Sources ............................................................................................................. 14 
Interviews .................................................................................................................................................. 15 

Interview with Owner/Occupant ..................................................................................................... 15 
Interview with Site Manager/Occupant .......................................................................................... 15 
Interviews with Local Government Officials ................................................................................... 16 
Interviews with Others ....................................................................................................................... 16 

Site Reconnaissance ................................................................................................................................. 17 
Methodology and Limiting Conditions ............................................................................................ 17 
Current Use of the Property and Adjacent Properties ................................................................... 17 
Past Use of the Property and Adjacent Properties .......................................................................... 17 
Current or Past Uses in the Surrounding Areas .............................................................................. 17 
Geologic, Hydrogeologic, Hydrologic and Topographic Conditions .......................................... 17 
General Description of Structures ..................................................................................................... 18 
Interior and Exterior Observations ................................................................................................... 18 

Storage Tanks ................................................................................................................................... 18 
Drums ............................................................................................................................................... 18 
Hazardous Substances and Petroleum Products ........................................................................ 18 
Unidentified Substance Containers .............................................................................................. 18 
Odors ................................................................................................................................................. 18 
Pools of Liquid ................................................................................................................................. 18 
Indications of Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs) ....................................................................... 19 
Other Conditions of Concern ......................................................................................................... 19 

Evaluation ................................................................................................................................................. 20 
Findings ................................................................................................................................................ 20 
Opinions ................................................................................................................................................ 20 
Conclusions .......................................................................................................................................... 21 
Recommendations ............................................................................................................................... 21 
Deviations ............................................................................................................................................. 22 

References ................................................................................................................................................. 22 
Signatures of Environmental Professionals .......................................................................................... 24 
Qualifications of Environmental Consultants ...................................................................................... 25 

Figures 
Figure 1  Vicinity Map 
Figure 2  Site Map 
Figure 3  Adjacent Land Use Map 
Figures 4 and 5  Site Photographs 

Appendices 
Appendix A  Interview Documentation  
Appendix B  Regulatory Records Documentation 
Appendix C  Historical Research Documentation  



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
1 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report presents the findings of a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) for the 
California National Guard -Armory Site located at 1040 Flower Street in Turlock, California 
(Figure 1, Vicinity Map). The Phase I ESA was performed for the City of Turlock by Rincon 
Consultants, Inc. (Rincon). The City of Turlock has requested this assessment and will use the 
assessment to provide information for the purpose of terminating the existing lease agreement 
for the subject property. The subject property is currently owned by the City of Turlock and is 
in use as the California National Guard Armory occupied by the 149th Chemical Company.   The 
California National Guard is ending their 99 year lease with the City of Turlock and wishes to 
exercise their lease option of leaving the improvements to the City.   

Rincon performed a reconnaissance of the subject property on September 22, 2016. The purpose 
of the reconnaissance was to observe existing subject property conditions and to obtain 
information indicating the presence of recognized environmental conditions in connection with 
the subject property.  The property is occupied by offices, supply rooms, a gym, and storage of 
armored vehicles, training rooms, bathroom/showers, CBRNs (equipment to measure chemical, 
biological, radiological, or nuclear substances), a weapons vault, and a hazardous materials 
(hazmat) shed. Small quantities of various hazardous substances and petroleum products were 
observed during the site reconnaissance.  In addition, minor staining on the floor of the former 
shooting range was noted.   An indoor shooting range was also formerly present on the subject 
property (currently used for storage).   

The subject property is located in an area that is primarily comprised of residential land uses 
and recreational land uses (Soderquist Ballfield - 1100 Flower Street). 

Environmental Data Resources, Inc. (EDR) was contracted to provide a database search of public 
lists of sites that generate, store, treat or dispose of hazardous materials or sites for which a release 
or incident has occurred. The EDR search was conducted for the subject property and included 
data from surrounding sites within a specified radius of the property. The subject property was 
listed in the HAZNET database as Turlock Armory located at 1040 Flower Street.  The HAZNET 
listing indicates that approximately 5 tons of contaminated soil from site cleanup at the subject 
property was disposed at an offsite Stanislaus facility in 1999.  This listing also indicates 0.22-tons 
of polychlorinated biphenyls and material containing PCBs was recycled at Stanislaus facility in 
2002. No additional information was available in the EDR Report, GeoTracker, or EnviroStor 
websites.  On September 21, 2016, we attempted to contact the City of Turlock and Stanislaus 
County to obtain documents for additional information regarding the HAZNET listing.   
 
Based on the groundwater flow direction to the southwest in the vicinity of the subject property 
and surrounding area, one cross-gradient property and one downgradient property were listed in 
databases searched by EDR:  

 Loren N. Wright Property located at 1143 Flower Street: This property is located 
approximately 190 feet to the northwest of the subject property and is hydrologically cross-
gradient to the subject property. The historic underground storage tank (UST) database 
lists one 550-gallon unleaded fuel tank owned by Loren N. Wright and installed on the 
property in 1959.  The leaking UST (LUST) database indicates a leak from the UST was 
reported in 1989 and lists the drinking water aquifer as the media affected.  Stanislaus 



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
2 

 

County Department of Environmental Resources issued a Closure Letter on January 9, 1998 
which confirms the completion of a site investigation and remedial action for the UST 
formerly located on the nearby property.  The depth to groundwater at a nearby site 
(ARCO) has been encountered at about 80 feet below grade with flow direction to the 
southwest (away from the subject property).  Based on the distance from the subject 
property, the reported groundwater flow direction (cross-gradient to the subject property), 
and County issued Closure Letter, the release associated with the nearby former UST on 
the Wright property is not expected to adversely impact soil or groundwater beneath the 
subject property.   

 West Main ARCO/Joe Mini Mart located at 1030 West Main Street: This property is 
located approximately 845 feet south and hydrologically downgradient of the subject 
property. The LUST database indicates that on December 17, 1998, three USTs and six fuel 
dispensers were removed from the ARCO site.  The USTs included one 8,000-gallon leaded 
fuel tank, one 2,000-gallon unleaded fuel tank, and one 8,000-gallon diesel fuel tank.  

Methyl tertiary-butyl ether (MTBE) was detected in soil 
samples collected from the UST excavation. A low concentration of total xylenes was detected in soil 
samples collected from the southern fuel dispenser island excavation. Elevated concentrations of 
benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, and total xylenes (BTEX), MTBE, and total petroleum hydrocarbons 
quantified as gasoline (TPHg) were detected in the groundwater sample collected from the UST 
excavation The depth to groundwater at the ARCO has been encountered at about 80 feet 
below grade with flow direction to the southwest (away from the subject property).  
Stanislaus County Department of Environmental Resources issued a Closure Letter on June 
8, 2011 which confirms the completion of a site investigation and remedial action for the 
USTs formerly located on the ARCO property.  Based on the distance from the subject 
property, the reported groundwater flow direction (downgradient to the subject property), 
and County issued Closure Letter the release associated with the ARCO property is not 
expected to adversely impact soil or groundwater beneath the subject property.   

Historical sources reviewed as part of the Phase I ESA include aerial photographs and 
topographic maps. The photos and maps reviewed indicate that the subject property was in 
agricultural use from 1937 through 1950, and has been developed with its current main building 
from 1963 through present day.  The supply shed has been present on the subject property from 
1998 through present day. City directories list the California State National Guard has been 
present on the site since at least 1971 through the present day. In addition, the US Army was 
also listed from 1992 through 1995 and the US Navy was listed in 2008.   

Based on the findings of this Phase I ESA, it is our opinion that there are 4 Potential Recognized 
Environmental Conditions (RECs) in connection with the property as follows: 

Potential Recognized Environmental Conditions 
1. The former agricultural use of the subject property.  
2. The former operation of a shooting range on the subject property. 
3. HAZNET listing indicating the removal of contaminated soil from the subject property 

in 1999. 
4. The use of the site for vehicle fleet parking and the potential for vehicle maintenance to 

have occurred on the subject property. 



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
3 

 

To evaluate the potential subject property impact associated with the former use of the subject 
property for agricultural purposes, Rincon recommends collecting soil samples and analyzing 
the samples for organochlorine pesticides (OCPs) and arsenic.  

To evaluate the potential impact as a result of the onsite shooting range, Rincon recommends 
collecting soil samples from unpaved areas of the site, and analyzing the samples for lead.  In 
addition, Rincon recommends collecting dust wipe samples in the interior of the shooting range 
structure and analyzing the samples for lead.  Furthermore, during redevelopment of the 
subject property, Rincon recommends removing the building materials that have been impacted 
with bullets, and properly disposing of the materials in accordance with current County and/or 
State regulations.   

To evaluate the potential impacts associated with the removal of contaminated soil from the 
subject property in 1999, Rincon recommends obtaining a copy of the waste manifest from the 
Department of Toxic Substances Control.  In addition, any additional information/documents 
provided by the California National Guard should be reviewed.  Based on the results of the 
additional research, sampling may or may not be warranted.   

To evaluate the potential impact as a result of the use of the site for vehicle fleet parking and the 
potential for vehicle maintenance to have occurred on the subject property, Rincon recommends 
conducting a soil sampling assessment in the Vehicle Fleet Parking Area and other potential 
areas of concern.   

Based on our review of historical sources, the existing main building on the subject property 
was built prior to 1963.  Although not considered a recognized environmental condition (REC), 
pursuant to ASTM E 1527-13, structures constructed prior to 1978 may contain lead based paint 
(LBP) and structures constructed prior to 1981 may contain asbestos containing building 

the site reconnaissance, there is the potential that LBP and ACBM were used during the 
construction of the onsite structure.  To determine if LBP and ACBM are present in the onsite 
structure, LBP and ACBM surveys should be conducted. 

 
 

 



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
4 

 

INTRODUCTION

This report presents the findings of a Phase I ESA conducted for the California National Guard 
Armory Site located at 1040 Flower Street in Turlock, California (Figure 1, Vicinity Map). The 
Phase I ESA was performed by Rincon Consultants, Inc. (Rincon) for the City of Turlock in general 
conformance with ASTM E 1527-13, our contract dated September 14, 2016, and our proposal 
dated September 1, 2016. The following sections present our findings and provide our opinion as 
to the presence of recognized environmental conditions.  

PURPOSE  

The City of Turlock has requested this assessment and will use the assessment to provide 
information for the purpose of terminating the existing lease agreement for the subject property. 
The purpose of this Phase I ESA was to identify recognized environmental conditions on the 
property, taking into account commonly and reasonably ascertainable information and to 
qualify for Landowner Liability Protections under the Brownfields Amendments to the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA).  

A recognized environmental condition (REC) is defined pursuant to ASTM E 1527-13 as,  

property: 1) due to any release to the environment; 2) under conditions indicative of a release to 
the environment; 3) under conditions that pose a material threat of a future release to the 

  

A Controlled REC is defined pursuant to ASTM E 1527-13 as, 
a recognized environmental condition resulting from a past release of hazardous substances or 

petroleum products that has been addressed to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory 
authority (for example, as evidenced by the issuance of a no further action letter or equivalent, or 
meeting risk-based criteria established by regulatory authority), with hazardous substances or 
petroleum products allowed to remain in place subject to the implementation of required controls 
(for example, property use restrictions, activity and use limitations, institutional controls, or 
engineering controls). A condition considered by the environmental professional to be a 
controlled recognized environmental condition shall be listed in the findings section of the Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment report, and as a recognized environmental condition in the 
conclusions section of the .  

A Historical REC is defined pursuant to ASTM E 1527-13 as, 
a past release of any hazardous substances or petroleum products that has occurred in 

connection with the property and has been addressed to the satisfaction of the applicable 
regulatory authority or meeting unrestricted use criteria established by regulatory authority, 
without subjecting the property to any required controls (for example, use restrictions, activity 
and use limitations, institutional controls, or engineering controls). Before calling the past release 
a historical recognized environmental condition, the environmental professional must determine 
whether the past release is a recognized environmental condition at the time the Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment is conducted (for example, if there has been a change in the 
regulatory criteria). If the EP [Environmental Professional] considers the past release to be a 
recognized environmental condition at the time the Phase I ESA is conducted, the condition shall 
be included in the conclusions section of the report as a rec  



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
5 

A de minimis condition is defined pursuant to ASTM E 1527-13 as,  
a condition that generally does not present a threat to human health or the environment and 

that generally would not be the subject of an enforcement action if brought to the attention of 
appropriate governmental agencies. Conditions determined to be de minimis conditions are not 
recognized environmental conditions nor controlled recognized environmental conditions   

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The scope of services conducted for this study is outlined below:  

 Perform a reconnaissance of the site to identify obvious indicators of the existence of 
hazardous materials.  

 Observe adjacent or nearby properties from public thoroughfares in an attempt to 
see if such properties are likely to use, store, generate, or dispose of hazardous 
materials.  

 Obtain and review an environmental records database search from Environmental 
Data Resources, Inc. (EDR) to obtain information about the potential for hazardous 
materials to exist at the subject property or at properties located in the vicinity of the 
subject property. 

 Review files for the subject property and immediately adjacent properties as 
identified in the EDR report, as applicable. 

 Review the current U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) topographic map to obtain 
information about the topography and uses of the subject 
property and properties in the vicinity of the subject property.  

 Review additional pertinent record sources (e.g., California Division of Oil and Gas 
records, online databases of hazardous substance release sites), as necessary, to 
identify the presence of RECs at the subject property.  

 Review reasonably ascertainable historical resources (e.g., aerial photographs, 
topographic maps, fire insurance maps, city directories) to assess the historical land 
use of the subject property and adjacent properties. 

 Provide a property owner interview questionnaire to the property owner or a 
designated subject property representative identified to Rincon by the client.  

 Provide a user interview questionnaire to a representative of the client, the user of 
the Phase I ESA. 

 Conduct interviews with other property representatives (e.g., key site manager, 
occupants), as applicable.  

 Review client-provided information (e.g., previous environmental reports, title 
documentation), as applicable. 

SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS, LIMITATIONS, DEVIATIONS, 
EXCEPTIONS, SPECIAL TERMS, AND CONDITIONS 

This work is intended to adhere to good commercial, customary, and generally accepted 
environmental investigation practices for similar investigations conducted at this time and in 
this geographic area. No guarantee or warranties, expressed or implied are provided. The 
findings and opinions conveyed in this report are based on findings derived from a site 



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
6 

reconnaissance, review of an environmental database report, specified regulatory records and 
historical sources, and comments made by interviewees. This report is not intended as a 
comprehensive site characterization and should not be construed as such. Standard data sources 
relied upon during the completion of Phase I ESAs may vary with regard to accuracy and 
completeness. Although Rincon believes the data sources are reasonably reliable, Rincon cannot 
and does not guarantee the authenticity or reliability of the data sources it has used. 
Additionally, pursuant to our contract, the data sources reviewed included only those that are 
practically reviewable without the need for extraordinary research. 

Rincon has not found evidence that hazardous materials or petroleum products exist at the 
subject property at levels likely to warrant mitigation. Rincon does not under any circumstances 
warrant or guarantee that not finding evidence of hazardous materials or petroleum products 
means that hazardous materials or petroleum products do not exist on the subject property. 
Additional research, including surface or subsurface sampling and analysis, can reduce the 

 risks, but no techniques commonly employed can eliminate these risks altogether.  

In addition, pursuant to ASTM E 1527-13 practice, our scope of services did not include any 
inquiries with respect to asbestos containing building materials, biological agents, cultural and 
historic resources, ecological resources, endangered species, health and safety, indoor air 
quality unrelated to release of hazardous substances or petroleum products into the 
environment, industrial hygiene, lead-based paint, lead in drinking water, mold, radon, 
regulatory compliance, wetlands, or high voltage power lines. 

USER RELIANCE 

The City of Turlock has requested this assessment and will use the assessment to provide 
information for the purpose of terminating the existing lease agreement for the subject property. 
This Phase I ESA was prepared for use solely and exclusively by the City of Turlock and the 
State Military Department. No other use or disclosure is intended or authorized by Rincon. 
Also, this report is issued with the understanding that it is to be used only in its entirety. It is 
intended for use only by the client, and no other person or entity may rely upon the report 
without the express written consent of Rincon.  

SITE DESCRIPTION 

Location  

The subject property is a 1.5-acre property located at the southeast corner of Alaska Street and 
Flower Street in Turlock, California (Figure 2, Site Map). The property is identified as Assessor 
Parcel Number (APN) 061-003-017.  

Subject Property and Vicinity General Characteristics 

The subject property is currently in use as the California National Guard Armory occupied by 
the 149th Chemical Company. The property is occupied by offices, supply rooms, a gym, and 
storage of armored vehicles, training rooms, bathroom/showers, CBRNs (equipment to 



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
7 

measure chemical, biological, radiological, or nuclear substances), a weapons vault, and a 
hazardous materials (hazmat) shed.  

The subject property is located in an area that is primarily comprised of residential and 
recreational land uses. Properties in the vicinity of the subject property include single-family 
homes and Soderquist Ballfield. The current adjacent land uses are described in Table 1 and 
depicted on Figure 3, Adjacent Land Use Map. 

Table 1 - Current Uses of Adjacent Properties 
Area Use 

Northern Properties Flower Street followed by residential 
Eastern Properties Residential 
Southern Properties Residential 
Western Properties Alaska Street followed by recreational (Soderquist 

Ballfield - 1100 Flower Street) 

Descriptions of Structures, Roads, Other Improvements on the Site  

The subject property is developed with two buildings, the main building (approximately 14,000 
square feet) and a supply shed (approximately 3,000 square feet).  Access to the subject property 
is available from a driveway on Flower Street.  

The City of Turlock provides water and sewer service, as well as solid waste hauling. Electrical 
service is provided by Turlock Irrigation District (TID), and natural gas is provided by PG&E. 
Storm water runoff likely percolates into unpaved areas, or flows into a storm drain along 
Flower Street.  

USER PROVIDED INFORMATION 

As described in ASTM E 1527-13 Section 6, the City of Turlock was interviewed for actual 
knowledge pertaining to the subject property to help identify recognized environmental 
conditions in connection with the subject property. Allison Van Guilder, Director for the City of 
Turlock Parks, Recreation and Public Facilities, completed the User Questionnaire as provided 
by ASTM Appendix X3 prior to completion of the site reconnaissance. A copy of the completed 
questionnaire is included as Appendix A.  

Based on our review of the completed questionnaire, Ms. Van Guilder is unaware of 
information regarding the following:  

recorded land title records (or judicial records, where appropriate) that identify any 
environmental liens filed or recorded against the subject property 
recorded land title records (or judicial records, where appropriate) that identify any 
activity and land use limitations (AULs), such as engineering controls, land use 
restrictions or institutional controls that are in place at the property and/or have been 
filed or recorded against the subject property under federal, tribal, state or local law 
Title Report that identifies information pertaining to environmental cleanup liens or 
AULs for the subject property 
specialized knowledge or experience related to the subject property or nearby properties 
reduction in value for the subject property relative to any known environmental issues  



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
8 

commonly known or reasonably ascertainable information about the subject property 
that would help the environmental professional to identify conditions indicative of 
releases or threatened releases
obvious indicators that point to the presence or likely presence of releases at the subject 
property 
pending, threatened, or past litigation relevant to hazardous substances or petroleum 
products, in, on, or from the subject property 
pending, threatened, or past administrative proceedings relevant to hazardous 
substances or petroleum products in, on, or from the subject property 
notice from any government entity regarding any possible violation of environmental 
laws or possible liability relating to hazardous substances or petroleum products 

Ms. Van Guilder indicated that asbestos in building materials and lead from the indoor 
shooting range are considerations for the subject property.  Ms. Van Guilder also stated the 
State Military Department is ending their 99 year lease with the City of Turlock and wishes to 
exercise their lease option of leaving the improvements to the City.  The City of Turlock would 
like to assess any unknown liabilities.  

RECORDS REVIEW 

PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCES 

Topography 

The current USGS topographic map (Turlock Quadrangle, 2012) indicates that the subject 
property is situated at an elevation of about 95 feet above mean sea level with topography 
sloping down to the southwest. The adjacent topography is generally flat.  

Geology and Hydrogeology 

Site Geology 

According to the California Geologic Survey (1967), the subject property is underlain by 
alluvium, lake, playa, and terrace deposits; unconsolidated and semi-consolidated. Mostly 
nonmarine, but includes marine deposits near the coast from the Pleistocene-Holocene era. 

Regional Groundwater Occurrence and Quality 

The site is located within the San Joaquin Valley groundwater basin.  

During the preparation of this Phase I ESA, we reviewed the California State Water Resources 
s) online GeoTracker database to determine groundwater flow 

direction in the vicinity for the site:  



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
9 

Groundwater monitoring reports for a former ARCO station located at 1030 West Main 
Street (about 845 feet south of the subject property) indicate that the depth to 
groundwater is about 81 feet below grade, and flows to the southwest.

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORD SOURCES 

Environmental Data Resources, Inc. (EDR) was contracted to provide a database search of 
public lists of sites that generate, store, treat or dispose of hazardous materials or sites for which 
a release or incident has occurred. The EDR search was conducted for the subject property and 
included data from surrounding sites within specified radii of the property. A copy of the EDR 
report, which specifies the ASTM search distance for each public list, is included as Appendix B. 
As shown on the attached EDR report, federal, state and county lists were reviewed as part of 
the research effort. Please refer to Appendix B for a complete listing of sites reported by EDR 
and a description of the databases reviewed.  

The Map Findings Summary, included in the EDR report, provides a summary of the databases 
searched, the number of reported facilities within the search radii, and whether the facility is 
located onsite or adjacent to the subject property. The following information is based on our 
review of the Map Findings Summary and the information contained in the EDR report.  

Subject Property 

The subject property was listed on the following databases: 
HAZNET database as Turlock Armory at 1040 Flower Street 

Regulatory agency files reviewed for the subject property are discussed in the Additional 
Environmental Record Sources section of this report. 

In addition, a review of the National Pipeline Mapping System (NMPS) online Public Map 
Viewer1 indicates that no gas transmission pipelines or hazardous liquid pipelines are located 
on the subject property or adjacent properties.  

Offsite Properties 

Offsite properties listed by EDR fall under two general categories of databases: those reporting 
unauthorized releases of hazardous substances (e.g., LUST, National Priority List [a.k.a. 
Superfund sites], and corrective action facilities), and databases of businesses permitted to use 
hazardous materials or generate hazardous wastes, for which an unauthorized release has not 
been reported to a regulatory agency.  

Rincon reviewed the EDR Radius Map and select detailed listings to evaluate their potential to 
impact the subject property, based on the following factors: 

Reported distance of the facility from the subject property  

              
1 https://www.npms.phmsa.dot.gov/PublicViewer/  



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
10 

The nature of the database on which the facility is listed, and/or whether the facility was 
listed on a database reporting unauthorized releases of hazardous materials, petroleum 
products, or hazardous wastes
Reported case type (e.g., soil only, failed UST test only) 
Reported substance released (e.g., chlorinated solvents, gasoline, metals) 
Reported regulatory agency status (e.g., case  
Location of the facility with respect to the reported groundwater flow direction 
(discussed in the Geology and Hydrogeology section of this report) 
 

Facilities/properties that were interpreted by Rincon to be of potential environmental concern 
to the subject property, based on one or more of the factors listed above, are summarized in 
Table 2. In accordance with ASTM, contamination migration pathways in soil, groundwater, 
and soil vapor were considered in our analysis of offsite properties of potential environmental 
concern.  

Table 2 - EDR Listing Summary of Select Sites Within One-Eighth Mile of the Subject Site 

Site Name 
EDR Site 

ID 
Site Address 

Distance from Subject 
Property (miles) 

Database Reference 

Subject Property 
Turlock Armory 1 1040 Flower Street Subject Property HAZNET 

Nearby Release Sites 

Loren N. Wright 
Property 

A3 - A5 1143 Flower Street 
Less than 1/8 mile  West-

Northwest 

HIST UST, SWEEPS 
UST, CA FID UST, 

LUST, HIST 
CORTESE 

West Main ARCO, 
Joe Mini Mart 

B11 & B12 1030 W Main Street Less than 1/8 mile  South 

LUST, HIST 
CORTESE, SWEEPS 
UST, HIST UST, CA 

FID UST 

Regulatory agency information reviewed for the listings in the table above are summarized in 
the Additional Environmental Record Sources section of this report. 

Orphan Listings 

EDR reported 2 orphan or unmapped site listings, which EDR is unable to plot due to 

or site descriptions for the orphan listings, none of the listings are expected to impact the subject 
property. 

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORD SOURCES 

Review of Agency Files 

As a follow-up to the database search, Rincon reviewed regulatory information for facilities 
within the specified search radii that were interpreted to have the potential to impact the subject 
property, based on one or more factors previously discussed (e.g., distance, open case status, 
upgradient location, soil vapor migration).  



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
11 

The following is a summary of our review of regulatory information obtained from review of 
online sources (e.g., SWRCB GeoTracker database, DTSC EnviroStor database) and/or files 
requested from the applicable regulatory agency, as described below. 

Subject Property 
The subject property was listed in the HAZNET database as Turlock Armory located at 1040 
Flower Street.  The HAZNET listing indicates approximately 5 tons of contaminated soil from 
site cleanup was disposed at the Stanislaus facility in 1999.  This listing also indicates 0.22-tons 
of polychlorinated biphenyls and material containing PCBs was recycled at Stanislaus facility in 
2002. No additional information was available in the EDR Report, GeoTracker, or EnviroStor 
websites.  On September 21, 2016, we contacted Stanislaus County to obtain documents for 
additional information regarding the HAZNET listing.  On September 27, 2016, Dianne 
Parkinson, Supervising Accountant and Administration Clerk for Stanislaus County 
Department of Environmental Resources, indicated that the Armory facility was a hazardous 
waste generator on the subject property in the past and ceased hazardous waste generation in 
July 2006.  In addition, Ms. Parkinson stated that she does not have records regarding a 
contaminated soil cleanup for the subject property.  On October 5, 2016, Rincon submitted a 
request to the Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) for the waste manifest regarding 
the 5 tons of contaminated soil. However, as of the date of this report, we have not received a 
response from DTSC. 
 
Adjacent Properties 
Adjacent properties were not listed in any of the databases searched by EDR. 

Note that EDR plots the Baurgman/Westerndahl site (435 Clifford Street) as adjacent to the east of 
the subject property; however, based on our research the property is actually located 
approximately 525 feet to the northeast of the subject property.  The Baurgman/Westerndahl site is 
listed in the SWEEPS UST database and CA FID UST database.  The EDR report indicates one 
1,000-gallon leaded fuel tank is located on the property and is listed as inactive.   The Baurgman/ 
Westerndahl site is not listed in any databases that are indicative of a hazardous materials release 
on the site.  Based on the anticipated depth to groundwater (about 80 feet below grade), the 
distance from the subject property (525 feet) and the fact that no documented releases have been 
identified for this site, the UST located on the Baurgman/Westerndahl site is not expected to 
adversely impact soil or groundwater beneath the subject property.   

Nearby Release Sites  
Based on the groundwater flow direction to the southwest in the vicinity of the subject property 
and surrounding area, one cross-gradient property and one downgradient property were listed in 
databases searched by EDR:  

Loren N. Wright Property located at 1143 Flower Street: This property is located 
approximately 190 feet to the northwest of the subject property and is hydrologically cross-
radient of the subject property. The historic underground storage tank (UST) database lists 
one 550-gallon unleaded fuel tank owned by Loren N. Wright and installed on the property 
in 1959.  The leaking UST (LUST) database indicates a leak from the UST was reported in 
1989 and lists the drinking water aquifer as the media affected.  Stanislaus County 
Department of Environmental Resources issued a Closure Letter on January 9, 1998 which 
confirms the completion of a site investigation and remedial action for the UST formerly 



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
12 

located on the nearby property.  The depth to groundwater at a nearby site (ARCO) has 
been encountered at about 80 feet below grade with flow direction to the southwest (away 
from the subject property).  Based on the distance from the subject property, the reported 
groundwater flow direction (cross-gradient to the subject property), and County issued 
Closure Letter, the release associated with the nearby former UST on the Wright property is 
not expected to adversely impact soil or groundwater beneath the subject property.   
 
West Main ARCO/Joe Mini Mart located at 1030 West Main Street: This property is 
located approximately 845 feet south and hydrologically downgradient of the subject 
property. The LUST database indicates that on December 17, 1998, three USTs and six fuel 
dispensers were removed from the ARCO site.  The USTs included one 8,000-gallon leaded 
fuel tank, one 2,000-gallon unleaded fuel tank, and one 8,000-gallon diesel fuel tank.  

Methyl tertiary-butyl ether (MTBE) was detected in soil 
samples collected from the UST excavation. A low concentration of total xylenes was detected in soil 
samples collected from the southern fuel dispenser island excavation. Elevated concentrations of 
benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, and total xylenes (BTEX), MTBE, and total petroleum hydrocarbons 
quantified as gasoline (TPHg) were detected in the groundwater sample collected from the UST 
excavation
below grade with flow direction to the southwest (away from the subject property).  
Stanislaus County Department of Environmental Resources issued a Closure Letter on June 
8, 2011 which confirms the completion of a site investigation and remedial action for the 
USTs formerly located on the ARCO property.  Based on the distance from the subject 
property, the reported groundwater flow direction (downgradient to the subject property), 
and County issued Closure Letter the release associated with the ARCO property is not 
expected to adversely impact soil or groundwater beneath the subject property.   

KNOWN OR SUSPECT CONTAMINATED RELEASE SITES WITH 
POTENTIAL VAPOR MIGRATION  

The EDR report was reviewed to identify nearby known or suspect contaminated sites that have 
the potential for contaminated vapor originating from the nearby site to be migrating beneath 
the subject property. Based on the ASTM E 2600-10, Standard Guide for Vapor Encroachment 
Screening on Property Involved in Real Estate Transactions, the following minimum search 
distances were initially used to determine if contaminated soil vapors from a nearby known or 
suspect contaminated site have the potential to be migrating beneath the subject property: 

1/10 mile (528 feet) for petroleum hydrocarbons 
1/3 mile (1,760 feet) for other contaminants of concern (COCs)  

If upgradient known or suspect contaminated sites are located within the above referenced 
distances from the subject property, online resources are reviewed to determine the extent of 
the contaminated plume at those sites. The following describes search distances for 
contaminated plumes of petroleum hydrocarbons and other COCs. 

 



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
13 

Petroleum Hydrocarbons

Based on our review of the EDR report information as indicated above, there are no adjacent or 
upgradient known or suspect petroleum hydrocarbon impacted soil or groundwater plumes 
located within 30 feet of the subject property.  

Other COCs 

Based on our review of the EDR report, there are no adjacent or upgradient known or suspect 
contaminated soil or groundwater plumes located within 100 feet of the subject property.  

REVIEW OF STATE OF CALIFORNIA DIVISION OF OIL AND GAS 
RECORDS 

A review of the Department of Conservation, Division of Oil, Gas & Geothermal Resources 
Online Mapping System indicates that no oil wells are located on the subject property or 
adjacent properties, or within ¼ mile of the subject property.  

HISTORICAL USE INFORMATION ON THE PROPERTY AND THE 
ADJOINING PROPERTIES 

The historical records review completed for this Phase I ESA includes aerial photographs, 
topographic maps, fire insurance maps, and city directories as detailed in the following 
sections. Copies of the historical resources reviewed are included in Appendix C.  

Review of Historical Aerial Photographs 

obtained and reviewed.  

Review of Historical Topographic Maps 

Historical  

Review of City Directory Listings 

EDR was contracted to provide copies of city directory listings for the subject property.  

Review of Fire Insurance Maps  

EDR was contracted to provide copies of fire insurance maps (i.e. Sanborns) for the subject 
property. However, the maps did not provide coverage of the subject property. 

Review of City of Turlock Building Permit Records 

On September 21, 2016, we contacted the City of Turlock to obtain copies of historic building 
permits for the subject property.  On September 27, 2016, Kimberly Hammack with the City of 
Turlock-Building Division forwarded Rincon an Inspection Card from December 20, 1962.  The 



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
14 

document indicates the building was completed on April 30, 1963.  The Inspection Card is the 
only building record the City of Turlock has on file for the subject property.  

Summary of Historical Uses  

Subject Property  
Based on our review of the documents listed above, it appears that the subject property was in 
agricultural use from 1937 through 1950, and has been developed with its current main building 
from 1963 through present day.  The supply shed has been on the subject property from 1998 
through present day. City directories list the California State National Guard as present on the 
site since at least 1971 through the present day. In addition, the US Army was also listed from 
1992 through 1995 and the US Navy was listed in 2008.   

Northern Adjacent Property  
Based on our review of the documents listed above, it appears that the northern adjacent 
properties, following Flower Street, were in agricultural use from 1937 through 1942, developed 
with a few single-family residences in 1946 and additional residential development in 1950, and 
have been developed with single-family residences from 1967 through present day.  City 
directories confirm the residential land use of the northern adjacent property (1031  1073 [odd] 
Flower Street). 

Eastern Adjacent Property  
Based on our review of the documents listed above, it appears that the eastern adjacent 
properties were developed with a residence on the northern portion and vacant land on the 
southern portion in 1937, was developed with a residence and in agricultural use in 1942 
through 1950, appears redeveloped with residences in 1967, and has been in its current 
configuration with several single-family residences from 2005 through present day.  City 
directories confirm the residential land use of the eastern adjacent property (285  341 [odd] 
Clifford Street and 1004  1024 [even] Flower Street). 

Southern Adjacent Property  
Based on our review of the documents listed above, it appears that the southern adjacent 
property was in agricultural use from 1937 through 1950, and has been developed with a single-
family residence from 1961 through present day.  City directories confirm the residential land 
use of the southern adjacent property (300 Alaska Street). 

Western Adjacent Property  
Based on our review of the documents listed above, it appears that the western adjacent 
property was in agricultural use from 1937 through 1950, and has been developed with a 
baseball field from 1967 through present day.  City directories were not provided by EDR for 
the western adjacent property (1100 Flower Street). 

Gaps in Historical Sources 

Several gaps of greater than 5 years were identified in the historical records reviewed, from 
1917 to 1937, 1950 to 1961, 1967 to 1976, 1976 to 1987, 1987 to 1998, and 1998 to 2005. These gaps 
are considered insignificant because the subject property use appears to be similar prior to and 
following the gaps. 



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
15 

INTERVIEWS

Rincon Consultants performed interviews regarding the subject property and surrounding 
areas. The purpose of the interview was to discuss current and historical subject property 
conditions and to obtain information indicating the presence of recognized environmental 
conditions in connection with the property. 

INTERVIEW WITH OWNER/OCCUPANT 

An interview questionnaire was provided to the property owner prior to the site 
reconnaissance.  Shane B. Garber, Current Tenant and Operations Non-Commissioned Officer 
in Charge (NCOIC) for the California Army National Guard, completed the owner 
questionnaire on behalf of the owner, the City of Turlock.  In addition, Rincon corresponded 
over email with Mr. Garber.  A copy of the completed questionnaire and email correspondence 
is included in Appendix A. The following information is based on information obtained during 
our email correspondence and review of the completed questionnaire.  

Mr. Garber indicated the following: 
The structure on the subject property was built about 54 years ago.  
The California Army National Guard obtained ownership of the subject property in 
1962.  

Mr. Garber also presented the following information regarding hazardous material and 
petroleum hydrocarbon storage and waste generation at the subject property.  

About 10 expended batteries are transported to a small generator location for disposal 
each month. 
Two fuel tanks for Army use are located on the subject property but have never been 
filled or utilized.  The fuel tanks are made to be mounted in the 
back of a truck in order to perform refueling operations in a field environment. Our tanks have 
been on our property book for four years. They have never been mounted to a truck, have never 
had fuel in them, or used in any manner.  

Mr. Garber indicated he is unaware of the presence of industrial drums, fill dirt, pits, ponds, 
lagoons, sumps, clarifiers, solvent degreasers, stained soil, hazardous materials or hazardous 
wastes on the site.  

Mr. Garber indicated he is unaware of any pending, threatened, or past litigation or 
administrative proceedings relevant to hazardous substances or petroleum products in, on, or 
from the property. In addition, he is not aware of any notice from any government entity 
regarding any possible violation of environmental laws or possible liability relating to 
hazardous substances or petroleum products. 

INTERVIEW WITH SITE MANAGER/OCCUPANT 

During the site reconnaissance, we interviewed Shane Garber, Sergeant with the California 
National Guard, and Allison Van Guilder with the City of Turlock. Information obtained during 
this interview is summarized below, as well as in the Site Reconnaissance section of this report.  



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
16 

The site contacts indicated the following:
The structure on the subject property was built in about 1962.  
The California National Guard obtained ownership in 2010.  
From 2007-2010 the property was primarily vacant with the exception of a recruiting 
office.  
From 1962-2007 the property was occupied by a different military unit.  

Reportedly, in April 2016 a fire damaged the exterior western wall of the main building. 
Damage was limited to the eve of the roof and a small portion of the wall.  

INTERVIEWS WITH LOCAL GOVERNMENT OFFICIALS  

On September 21, 2016, we contacted Stanislaus County to obtain documents for additional 
information regarding the HAZNET listing for the subject property.  Diane Parkinson, 
Supervising Accountant and Administration Clerk for Stanislaus County Department of 
Environmental Resources, returned our call on September 27, 2016. Information obtained from 
Ms. Parkinson is discussed in the Additional Environmental Record Sources section of this 
report. 

On September 21, 2016, we contacted the City of Turlock to obtain copies of historic building 
permits for the subject property.  On September 27, 2016, Kimberly Hammack with the City of 
Turlock- Building Division forwarded Rincon an Inspection Card from December 20, 1962.  
Information obtained from Ms. Hammack is discussed in the Additional Environmental 
Record Sources section of this report. 

INTERVIEWS WITH OTHERS 

Rincon did not attempt to interview neighboring property owners or others as part of this Phase 
I ESA.

 



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
17 

SITE RECONNAISSANCE

Rincon Consultants performed a reconnaissance of the subject property on September 22, 2016 
accompanied by Shane Garber, Sergeant with the California National Guard, and Allison Van 
Guilder with the City of Turlock.  The purpose of the reconnaissance was to observe existing 
subject property conditions and to obtain information indicating the presence of recognized 
environmental conditions in connection with the property. 

METHODOLOGY AND LIMITING CONDITIONS 

The site reconnaissance was conducted by: 
1. Observing the subject property from public thoroughfares,  
2. Observing the adjacent properties from public thoroughfares,  
3. Observing the interior of the onsite structures,  
4. Observing the exterior of the structures,  
5. Backtracking to correlate exterior features with interior features, as necessary, and 
6. Observing the subject property from driveways, paved roads, and walking paths. 

We were unable to observe inside the CBRN room and the vaulted armory (weapons storage 
room).  

CURRENT USE OF THE PROPERTY AND ADJACENT PROPERTIES 

The subject property is currently in use as the California National Guard Armory occupied by 
the 149th Chemical Company. The property is occupied by offices, supply rooms, a gym, and 
storage of armored vehicles, training rooms, bathroom/showers, CBRNs (equipment to 
measure chemical, biological, radiological, or nuclear), a weapons vault, and a hazmat shed. 
Adjacent properties include residential land and a baseball field.  

PAST USE OF THE PROPERTY AND ADJACENT PROPERTIES 

A room within the main building was formerly operated as a shooting range; the room is now 
used for storage.  

CURRENT OR PAST USES IN THE SURROUNDING AREAS 

The subject property is primarily surrounded by residential land uses as detailed in the Site 
Description section of this report. Past uses of the surrounding area are not readily apparent 
based on the site reconnaissance. 

GEOLOGIC, HYDROGEOLOGIC, HYDROLOGIC AND 
TOPOGRAPHIC CONDITIONS 

Geologic, hydrogeologic, hydrologic, and topographic information are as previously stated in 
the Physical Settings Section of this report.  



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
18 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF STRUCTURES 

Onsite structures are as described previously in the Site Description section of this report. 

INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR OBSERVATIONS 

Storage Tanks 

During the site reconnaissance, no above- or below-ground storage tanks or evidence of 
underground storage tanks were observed on the subject property.  

Drums 

During the site reconnaissance, no drums were observed on the subject property. However, 
there are two 55-gallon containers containing spill kits on the property.  

Hazardous Substances and Petroleum Products  

Small quantities of various hazardous substances and petroleum products observed during the 
site reconnaissance are as follows: 

signs in the area warning: this building has been tested by the state of California 
and is known to contain high levels of lead.   
 The flammable cabinet and secondary containment within the hazmat shed contains 
small quantities (less than 5 gallons) of vehicle fuel, paint, and other maintenance 
cleaners and varnishes. Used batteries for large vehicles are stored here prior to disposal 
at the Central National Guard location.  
Four used batteri  

Rincon did not observe indications of releases from these containers. 

Unidentified Substance Containers 

No unidentified substance containers or unidentified containers that might contain hazardous 
substances were observed during the site reconnaissance.  

Odors 

During the site reconnaissance, Rincon did not identify any strong, pungent, or noxious odors.  

Pools of Liquid 

During the site reconnaissance, Rincon identified a small pool of water from an irrigation leak.  
No additional pools of liquid including standing surface water were observed. In addition, no 
sumps containing liquids likely to be hazardous substances or petroleum products were 
observed.  



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
19 

Indications of Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs) 

During the site reconnaissance, Rincon did not observe any indications of PCBs on the property.  
According to the EDR Report, the subject property was listed in the HAZNET database as 
Turlock Armory located at 1040 Flower Street.  The HAZNET listing indicates approximately 
0.22-tons of polychlorinated biphenyls and material containing PCBs was recycled at Stanislaus 
facility in 2002. No additional information was available in the EDR Report, GeoTracker, or 
EnviroStor websites.   

Other Conditions of Concern 

During the site reconnaissance Rincon did not note any of the following: 

 corrosion  
 stained soil 
 clarifiers and sumps  
 degreasers/parts washers 
 pits, ponds, and lagoons  
 stressed vegetation 
 solid waste/debris 
 waste water 
 wells 
 septic systems/effluent disposal system 

Vehicle Fleet Parking Area  An estimated 45 vehicles are parked in this area. No fueling or 
maintenance currently occurs here, but there may have been some historical maintenance work 
done here.  

Stained Pavement  minor staining on the floor of the former shooting range was noted.  

CBRN Room  Signage on the front of the CBRN room indicates there is known radiation 
within the room. It is estimated that 50-70 pieces of equipment may have radiation. As 
mentioned above, we did not access this room.  

 



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
20 

EVALUATION

FINDINGS

Known or suspect environmental conditions associated with the subject property include the 
following:  

 The former agricultural use of the subject property.  
 The former operation of a shooting range on the subject property. 
 HAZNET listing indicating the removal of contaminated soil from the subject 

property in 1999. 
 Evidence of vehicle maintenance operations historically occurring on the subject 

property. 
 Radiation located within the CBRN room onsite. 

OPINIONS 

A. The former agricultural use of the subject property:  Based on our review of the 
historical documents researched as part of this Phase I ESA, the subject property was in 
agricultural use from 1937 through 1950.  Based on the historic agricultural use, there is 
the potential that the subject property may be affected with pesticides, or other 
chemicals used routinely in agricultural production.  Therefore, the historical 
agricultural land use is considered a Potential Recognized Environmental Condition. 
 

B. The former operation of a shooting range on the subject property:  Based on our review 
of historical documents researched as part of this Phase I ESA, a shooting range was 
formerly in use on the subject property.  During the site reconnaissance, Rincon 
observed that the shooting range is no longer operational and is now used for storage.  
Based on the presence of the historic shooting range, there is a potential for lead from 
bullets to impact building materials inside the shooting range.  In addition, in our 
experience, there is also the potential that lead dust could have been deposited in 
outdoor unpaved areas from ventilation systems on the subject property.  Therefore, the 
former operation of a shooting range on the subject property is considered a Potential 
Recognized Environmental Condition. 
 

C. HAZNET listing indicating the removal of contaminated soil from the subject property 
in 1999: The subject property was listed in the HAZNET database as Turlock Armory 
located at 1040 Flower Street.  The HAZNET listing indicates approximately 5 tons of 
contaminated soil from site cleanup was disposed at the Stanislaus facility in 1999.  No 
additional information was available in the EDR Report, GeoTracker, or EnviroStor 
websites.  On September 21, 2016, we contacted Stanislaus County to obtain documents 
for additional information regarding the HAZNET listing.  On September 27, 2016, 
Dianne Parkinson, Supervising Accountant and Administration Clerk for Stanislaus 
County Department of Environmental Resources, indicated that the Armory facility was 
a hazardous waste generator on the subject property in the past and ceased hazardous 
waste generation in July 2006.  In addition, Ms. Parkinson stated that she does not have 
records regarding a contaminated soil cleanup for the subject property.  On October 5, 



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
21 

2016, Rincon submitted a request to the Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) 
for a copy of the waste manifest for the 5 tons of contaminated soil. However, as of the 
date of this report, we have not received a response from the DTSC.  Due to the limited 
information regarding the contaminated soil removal at this time, the HAZNET listing 
for removal of contaminated soil from the subject property is considered a Potential 
Recognized Environmental Condition. 
 

D. The use of the site for vehicle fleet parking and the potential for vehicle maintenance to 
have occurred on the subject property:  During the site reconnaissance, Shane Garber, 
Sergeant with the California National Guard and site representative, indicated that 
currently vehicle maintenance does not occur on the site, but he was unaware if it 
occurred in the past.  In our experience, the storage of a large fleet of vehicles may have 
included minor maintenance operations (such as auto repairs, oil changes) on 
site.  Therefore, if minor maintenance operations were occurring in the past, there is the 
potential for spills or releases to have occurred.   Therefore, the use of the site for vehicle 
fleet parking and the potential for vehicle maintenance to have occurred on the subject 
property is considered a Potential Recognized Environmental Condition 
 

E. Radiation located within the CBRN room onsite: During the site reconnaissance, 
Rincon observed signage on the front of the CBRN room that indicated there is known 
radiation within the room. Shane Garber, Sergeant with the California National Guard, 
estimated that 50-70 pieces of equipment located within the room may have radiation, 
but the radiation is contained within the equipment and within the CBRN room. We 
were unable to observe inside the CBRN room.  Due to the fact that the radiation is 
contained within the equipment, the radiation onsite is not a concern at this time.  If 
radioactive material remains in the building following the California National Guard 
vacating the premises, additional assessment may be warranted. 
 

CONCLUSIONS 

Rincon has performed a Phase I ESA in general conformance with the scope and limitations of 
ASTM E 1527-13 for the California National Guard Armory Site located at 1040 Flower Street in 
Turlock, California.  This assessment has revealed evidence of 4 Potential Recognized 
Environmental Conditions in connection with the property as follows: 

Potential Recognized Environmental Conditions 
1. The former agricultural use of the subject property.  
2. The former operation of a shooting range on the subject property. 
3. HAZNET listing indicating the removal of contaminated soil from the subject property 

in 1999. 
4. The use of the site for vehicle fleet parking and the potential for vehicle maintenance to 

have occurred on the subject property. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

To evaluate the potential subject property impact associated with the former use of the subject 
property for agricultural purposes, Rincon recommends collecting soil samples and analyzing 
the samples for organochlorine pesticides (OCPs) and arsenic.  



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
22 

To evaluate the potential impact as a result of the onsite shooting range, Rincon recommends 
collecting soil samples from unpaved areas of the site, and analyzing the samples for lead.  In 
addition, Rincon recommends collecting dust wipe samples in the interior of the shooting range 
structure and analyzing the samples for lead.  Furthermore, during redevelopment of the 
subject property, Rincon recommends removing the building materials that have been impacted 
with bullets, and properly disposing of the materials in accordance with current County and/or 
State regulations.   

To evaluate the potential impacts associated with the removal of contaminated soil from the 
subject property in 1999, Rincon recommends obtaining a copy of the waste manifest from the 
Department of Toxic Substances Control.  In addition, any additional information/documents 
provided by the California National Guard should be reviewed.  Based on the results of the 
additional research, sampling may or may not be warranted.   

To evaluate the potential impact as a result of the use of the site for vehicle fleet parking and the 
potential for vehicle maintenance to have occurred on the subject property, Rincon recommends 
conducting a soil sampling assessment in the Vehicle Fleet Parking Area and other potential 
areas of concern.   

Based on our review of historical sources, the existing main building on the subject property 
was built prior to 1963.  Although not considered a recognized environmental condition (REC), 
pursuant to ASTM E 1527-13, structures constructed prior to 1978 may contain lead based paint 
(LBP) and structures constructed prior to 1981 may contain asbestos containing building 

the site reconnaissance, there is the potential that LBP and ACBM were used during the 
construction of the onsite structure.  To determine if LBP and ACBM are present in the onsite 
structure, LBP and ACBM surveys should be conducted. 

DEVIATIONS 

Deviations from ASTM E 1527-13 Practice were not encountered during the completion of this 
Phase I ESA.  

REFERENCES 

The following published reference materials were used in preparation of this Phase I ESA: 

Aerial Photographs: Photos provided by EDR. 

City Directory Listings: Listings provided by EDR. 

Environmental Database: Environmental Data Resources (EDR) report dated September 
20, 2016. 

Fire Insurance Maps: Maps provided by EDR. 

Geology: California Geologic Survey (CGS), Geologic Atlas of California Map No. 009, 
Rudolph G. Strand, 1967; Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) online 
database (GeoTracker).  



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
23 

Groundwater: California DWR, , 2003; RWQCB 
online database (GeoTracker). 

Historical Topographic Maps: Maps provided by EDR. 

Oil and Gas Records: State of California, Division of Oil, Gas and Geothermal Resources 
website: http://www.consrv.ca.gov/DOG/index.htm. 

Pipelines: National Pipeline Mapping System (NMPS) Public Map Viewer, 
https://www.npms.phmsa.dot.gov/PublicViewer/. 

Topography: USGS topographic map (Turlock Quadrangle, 2012). 





California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
25 

QUALIFICATIONS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS

The environmental consultants responsible for conducting this Phase I ESA and preparing the 
report include Sarah A. Larese and Walt Hamann. Their qualifications are summarized below.   

Environmental 
Professional 

Qualifications 

X2.1.1 (2) (i) - 
Professional 
Engineer or 
Professional 

Geologist License 
or Registration, 
and 3 years of 

full-time relevant 
experience 

X2.1.1 (2) (ii) - 
Licensed or 

certified by the 
Federal 

Government, 
State, Tribe, or 

U.S. Territory to 
perform 

environmental 
inquiries 

X2.1.1 (2) (iii)  
Baccalaureate or Higher 

Degree from and 
accredited institution of 

higher education in a 
discipline of engineering 

or science and the 
equivalent of 5 years of 

full-time relevant 
experience 

X2.1.1 (2) (iii) 
 Equivalent 

of 10 years of 
full-time 
relevant 

experience 

Walt Hamann PG, CHG, CEG  MS Geology 30 years 

Sarah A. Larese   BA Environmental Studies 16 years 

Ariel Namm   MS Soil Science 1.5 years 

Daniela Hamann-
Nazaroff 

  
MS Environmental 
Engineering 

3 years 

Walt Hamann, PG, CEG, CHG, is a Principal and Senior Geologist with Rincon Consultants. He 
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in geology from the University of California, Santa Barbara and 
a Master of Science degree in geology from the University of California, Los Angeles. He has 
over 30 years of experience conducting assessment and remediation projects and has prepared 
or overseen the preparation of hundreds of Phase I and Phase II Environmental Site 
Assessments throughout California. Mr. Hamann is a Professional Geologist (#4742), Certified 
Engineering Geologist (#1635), and Certified Hydrogeologist (#208) with the State of California. 

Sarah A. Larese is a Senior Environmental Scientist with Rincon Consultants. She holds a 
Bachelor of Science degree in environmental studies from the University of California, Santa 
Barbara, California. Ms. Larese has experience in development, implementation and project 
management of environmental assessment and remediation projects, especially relating to 

Phase I and II Environmental Site Assessments as well as conducting site remediation field 
activities and preparation of environmental reports. She has 16 years of experience conducting 
research, assessment and remediation projects.  

Ariel Namm is an Environmental Scientist with Rincon Consultants. She holds a Bachelor of 
Science degree in Environmental Management and Protection with a minor in Geographic 
Information Systems and a Master of Science degree in Agriculture with a specialization in Soil 

responsibility at Rincon includes the preparation of Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 
reports as well as the preparation of various environmental permits. 

Daniela Hamann-Nazaroff is an Environmental Engineer with Rincon Consultants. She holds a 
Master of Science in Environmental Engineering from Stanford University and Bachelor of 
Science degree in Environmental Science from the University of California, Los Angeles. Ms. 



California National Guard - Armory Site, 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

  Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
26 

Hamann-Nazaroff has over 3 years of experience working on Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessments for a variety of properties including commercial land, former semi-conductor 
manufacturing, former army and air force bases, and agricultural land. In addition, Ms. 
Hamann-Nazaroff has been involved in indoor air quality and vapor intrusion assessments, fate 
and transport modeling, greenhouse gas emissions inventory, and construction oversight. Ms. 
Hamann-
Environmental Site Assessment Reports. 









1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California 
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

   Rincon Consultants
 

 
 

     
Photograph 1.  View of the exterior of the subject 
property, from Flower Street,  facing south.  
 

Photograph 2.  View of one of the onsite structures, 
facing southeast.   
 
 
 
 
 
  

Photograph 3.  View of unpaved area on the northeastern 
portion of the subject property, facing south-southeast. 
 

                                                          
Photograph 4.  View of the deflection wall in the former 
firing range area.  
 

Photograph 5.  View of the stained flooring in the former 
firing range area.  
 

Photograph 6.  View of the interior of the former firing 
range area.  

 Site Photographs 
 

Figure 4



1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California 
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment   

   Rincon Consultants
 

 

                                               
Photograph 7.  View of the indoor gym.  
 
 

Photograph 8.  View of the exterior of the Hazmat 
storage shed with spill kit.  
 
 
 
 

Photograph 9.  View of the vehicle storage parking area, 
facing east.  
 

     
Photograph 10.  View of the northeastern adjacent 
residential property, facing east.  

Photograph 11.  View of the southern adjacent 
residential property, facing east.  
 

Photograph 12.  View of the western adjacent baseball 
field, facing west.  
 

  
 

Site Photographs Figure 5
 
 



Appendix A 
Interview Documentation 



















1

Ariel Namm

From: Garber, Shane B SFC USARMY NG CAARNG (US) <shane.b.garber.mil@mail.mil>
Sent: Monday, October 17, 2016 2:22 PM
To: Ariel Namm
Cc: Sarah Larese; Espinoza, Jacob H LTC USARMY NG CAARNG (US); Keels, Bryan M LTC 

USARMY NG CAANG (US); Hernandez, Andrew John 1LT USARMY NG CAARNG (US); 
White, Thomas L NFG NG CAARNG (US); Pogue, Melissa A NFG NG CAARNG (US); Ash, 
Teresa Marie (Terry) NFG NG CAARNG (US)

Subject: RE: 149 CBRN CO; FACILITIES; Turlock Armory; Phase I Enviroenmental Assessment; RFI 
1-3; 20161017

Mr. / Ms. Namm,

Good afternoon.

Some background on the tanks that your three requests listed below center
around.

The fuel tanks are made to be mounted in the back of a truck in order to
perform refueling operations in a field environment. Our tanks have been on
our property book for four years. They have never been mounted to a truck,
have never had fuel in them, or used in any manner.

The above being true, below are the answers to your specific questions.

1. Are the tanks located above or below ground?
Answer: The tanks are located above ground

2. Approximately how many tanks are located onsite?
Answer: Two tanks with accessories

3. When were the tanks installed?
Answer: Never installed.

Please call me if you have any other questions.

SFC Shane B Garber
Operations / Readiness NCO
149 CHEM CO / CA CERFP DECON
1040 Flower Street, Turlock, CA 95380
CAGNET: 3702004
Office: 209.634.4352
Cell: 916.226.0999
Email: shane.b.garber.mil@mail.mil

Original Message















Appendix B 
Regulatory Records Documentation 



FORM-LBC-LMI

US Army National Guard Armory Site



SECTION PAGE

Executive Summary ES1

Overview Map 2

Detail Map 3

Map Findings Summary 4

Map Findings 8

Orphan Summary 71

Government Records Searched/Data Currency Tracking GR-1

GEOCHECK ADDENDUM

Physical Setting Source Addendum A-1

Physical Setting Source Summary A-2

Physical Setting SSURGO Soil Map A-5

Physical Setting Source Map A-9

Physical Setting Source Map Findings A-11

Physical Setting Source Records Searched PSGR-1

Thank you for your business.

Disclaimer - Copyright and Trademark Notice

 NO WARRANTY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, IS MADE WHATSOEVER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS REPORT. ENVIRONMENTAL
DATA RESOURCES, INC. SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS THE MAKING OF ANY SUCH WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION,
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE. ALL RISK IS ASSUMED BY THE USER. IN NO EVENT SHALL
ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. BE LIABLE TO ANYONE, WHETHER ARISING OUT OF ERRORS OR OMISSIONS, NEGLIGENCE,
ACCIDENT OR ANY OTHER CAUSE, FOR ANY LOSS OF DAMAGE, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES. ANY LIABILITY ON THE PART OF ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. IS STRICTLY
LIMITED TO A REFUND OF THE AMOUNT PAID FOR THIS REPORT.

TABLE OF CONTENTS



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TARGET PROPERTY INFORMATION

ADDRESS

COORDINATES

37.4952180 - 37˚ 29’ 42.78’’
120.8604470 - 120˚ 51’ 37.60’’

USGS TOPOGRAPHIC MAP ASSOCIATED WITH TARGET PROPERTY

AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY IN THIS REPORT





EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TARGET PROPERTY SEARCH RESULTS

DATABASES WITH NO MAPPED SITES

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal NPL site list

Federal Delisted NPL site list

Federal CERCLIS list

Federal RCRA CORRACTS facilities list

Federal RCRA non-CORRACTS TSD facilities list

Federal RCRA generators list

Federal institutional controls / engineering controls registries



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Federal ERNS list

State and tribal landfill and/or solid waste disposal site lists

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists

State and tribal registered storage tank lists

State and tribal voluntary cleanup sites

State and tribal Brownfields sites

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Brownfield lists

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid Waste Disposal Sites

Local Lists of Hazardous waste / Contaminated Sites

Local Land Records



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Records of Emergency Release Reports

Other Ascertainable Records



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

EDR RECOVERED GOVERNMENT ARCHIVES

Exclusive Recovered Govt. Archives

SURROUNDING SITES: SEARCH RESULTS

bold italics 

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal CERCLIS NFRAP site list



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation

     INTERNATIONAL PAPER   1500 W MAIN ST SW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.391 mi.) D18 32

State- and tribal - equivalent NPL

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation

     CENTRAL VALLEY CHEES   107 S KILROY WSW 1/2 - 1 (0.874 mi.) G30 57

State- and tribal - equivalent CERCLIS

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation

     DU-RITE CLEANERS   141 NORTH CENTER E 1/2 - 1 (0.792 mi.) F26 48



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

     SNOW WHITE CLEANERS   352 EAST OLIVE STREE E 1/2 - 1 (0.804 mi.) F27 51

     TURLOCK CLEANERS   429 E MAIN E 1/2 - 1 (0.906 mi.) H31 64

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation

     CENTRAL VALLEY CHEES   107 S KILROY WSW 1/2 - 1 (0.874 mi.) G30 57

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation

     LOREN WRIGHT PROPERT   1143 FLOWER WNW 0 - 1/8 (0.045 mi.) A5 11

     TID CORPORATION YARD   901 BROADWAY NNE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.427 mi.) 20 36

     TURLOCK FAIRGROUNDS   900 BROADWAY NNE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.440 mi.) 21 39



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation

     WEST MAIN ARCO   1030 MAIN S 1/8 - 1/4 (0.142 mi.) B11 18

State and tribal registered storage tank lists

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid Waste Disposal Sites

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Local Lists of Hazardous waste / Contaminated Sites

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation

     BANQUET FOODS   107 S. KILROY RD WSW 1/2 - 1 (0.874 mi.) G29 54

Local Lists of Registered Storage Tanks

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation

     BAURGMAN/WESTERDAHL   435 CLIFFORD ENE 0 - 1/8 (0.033 mi.) 2 9

     LOREN N. WRIGHT   1143 FLOWER ST WNW 0 - 1/8 (0.045 mi.) A4 10

     HYLINE INTERNATIONAL   401 N SODERQUIST RD NW 0 - 1/8 (0.102 mi.) 6 13

     MURRAY SILACCI   685 PARK ST ENE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.197 mi.) C14 27

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation

     EXXON SAV-CENTER   973 W MAIN S 0 - 1/8 (0.113 mi.) B10 16

     JOE MINIT MART - ARC   1030 W MAIN ST S 1/8 - 1/4 (0.157 mi.) B12 25

     MIKE RASMUSSEN   790 W MAIN SE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.199 mi.) 16 29



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation

     HYLINE INTERNATIONAL   401 N SODERQUIST RD NW 0 - 1/8 (0.102 mi.) 6 13

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation

     CURTESY OIL CO   973 W MAIN ST S 0 - 1/8 (0.113 mi.) B9 15

     JOE MINIT MART - ARC   1030 W MAIN ST S 1/8 - 1/4 (0.157 mi.) B12 25

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation

     BAURGMAN/WESTERDAHL   435 CLIFFORD ENE 0 - 1/8 (0.033 mi.) 2 9

     LOREN N. WRIGHT   1143 FLOWER ST WNW 0 - 1/8 (0.045 mi.) A4 10

     HYLINE INTERNATIONAL   401 N SODERQUIST RD NW 0 - 1/8 (0.102 mi.) 6 13

     MURRAY SILACCI   685 PARK ST ENE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.197 mi.) C14 27

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation

     EXXON SAV-CENTER   973 W MAIN S 0 - 1/8 (0.113 mi.) B10 16

     JOE MINIT MART - ARC   1030 W MAIN ST S 1/8 - 1/4 (0.157 mi.) B12 25

     MIKE RASMUSSEN   790 W MAIN SE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.199 mi.) 16 29



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Other Ascertainable Records

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation

     LOREN WRIGHT PROPERT   1143 FLOWER WNW 0 - 1/8 (0.045 mi.) A5 11

     TID CORPORATION YARD   901 BROADWAY NNE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.427 mi.) 20 36

     TURLOCK FAIRGROUNDS   900 BROADWAY NNE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.440 mi.) 21 39

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation

     WEST MAIN ARCO   1030 MAIN S 1/8 - 1/4 (0.142 mi.) B11 18

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

60
 k

V



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal NPL site list

Federal Delisted NPL site list

Federal CERCLIS list

Federal CERCLIS NFRAP site list

Federal RCRA CORRACTS facilities list

Federal RCRA non-CORRACTS TSD facilities list

Federal RCRA generators list

Federal institutional controls /
engineering controls registries

Federal ERNS list

State- and tribal - equivalent NPL

State- and tribal - equivalent CERCLIS

State and tribal landfill and/or
solid waste disposal site lists

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

State and tribal registered storage tank lists

State and tribal voluntary cleanup sites

State and tribal Brownfields sites

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Brownfield lists

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid
Waste Disposal Sites

Local Lists of Hazardous waste /
Contaminated Sites

Local Lists of Registered Storage Tanks

Local Land Records

Records of Emergency Release Reports



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Other Ascertainable Records



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

EDR RECOVERED GOVERNMENT ARCHIVES

Exclusive Recovered Govt. Archives



Actual:
99 ft.

Property TURLOCK, CA  95380
Target 1040 FLOWER ST    N/A
1 HAZNETTURLOCK ARMORY S113162889



TURLOCK ARMORY  (Continued) S113162889

175 ft.
0.033 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
99 ft.

< 1/8 TURLOCK, CA  95380
ENE CA FID UST435 CLIFFORD    N/A
2 SWEEPS USTBAURGMAN/WESTERDAHL S101595734



BAURGMAN/WESTERDAHL  (Continued) S101595734

239 ft. Site 1 of 3 in cluster A
0.045 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
99 ft.

< 1/8 TURLOCK, CA  95380
WNW 1143 FLOWER ST    N/A
A3 HIST USTLOREN N WRIGHT U001608738

239 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster A
0.045 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
99 ft.

< 1/8 TURLOCK, CA  95380
WNW CA FID UST1143 FLOWER ST    N/A
A4 SWEEPS USTLOREN N. WRIGHT S101626993



LOREN N. WRIGHT  (Continued) S101626993

239 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster A
0.045 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
99 ft.

< 1/8 TURLOCK, CA  95380
WNW HIST CORTESE1143 FLOWER    N/A
A5 LUSTLOREN WRIGHT PROPERTY S104163164



LOREN WRIGHT PROPERTY  (Continued) S104163164



539 ft.
0.102 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
99 ft.

< 1/8 CA FID USTTURLOCK, CA  95380
NW HIST UST401 N SODERQUIST RD    N/A
6 SWEEPS USTHYLINE INTERNATIONAL S101626956



HYLINE INTERNATIONAL  (Continued) S101626956

596 ft. Site 1 of 7 in cluster B
0.113 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
97 ft.

< 1/8 TURLOCK, CA  95380
South 973 W MAIN ST    N/A
B7 EDR Hist Auto 1015686848



  (Continued) 1015686848

596 ft. Site 2 of 7 in cluster B
0.113 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
97 ft.

< 1/8 TURLOCK, CA  95380
South 973 WEST MAIN STREET    N/A
B8 USTCURTESY OIL COMPANY U003783221

596 ft. Site 3 of 7 in cluster B
0.113 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
97 ft.

< 1/8 TURLOCK, CA  95380
South EMI973 W MAIN ST    N/A
B9 HIST USTCURTESY OIL CO U001608812



CURTESY OIL CO  (Continued) U001608812

596 ft. Site 4 of 7 in cluster B
0.113 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
97 ft.

< 1/8 TURLOCK, CA  95380
South CA FID UST973 W MAIN    N/A
B10 SWEEPS USTEXXON SAV-CENTER S101595622



EXXON SAV-CENTER  (Continued) S101595622



EXXON SAV-CENTER  (Continued) S101595622

752 ft. Site 5 of 7 in cluster B
0.142 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
97 ft.

1/8-1/4 TURLOCK, CA  95380
South HIST CORTESE1030 MAIN    N/A
B11 LUSTWEST MAIN ARCO S104403867



WEST MAIN ARCO  (Continued) S104403867



WEST MAIN ARCO  (Continued) S104403867



WEST MAIN ARCO  (Continued) S104403867



WEST MAIN ARCO  (Continued) S104403867



WEST MAIN ARCO  (Continued) S104403867



WEST MAIN ARCO  (Continued) S104403867



WEST MAIN ARCO  (Continued) S104403867

828 ft. Site 6 of 7 in cluster B
0.157 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
97 ft.

1/8-1/4 CA FID USTTURLOCK, CA  95380
South HIST UST1030 W MAIN ST    N/A
B12 SWEEPS USTJOE MINIT MART - ARCO S101595752



JOE MINIT MART - ARCO  (Continued) S101595752



JOE MINIT MART - ARCO  (Continued) S101595752

836 ft. Site 7 of 7 in cluster B
0.158 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
97 ft.

1/8-1/4 TURLOCK, CA  95380
South 954 W MAIN ST    N/A
B13 SWRCYESCOBAR RECYCLING S107137203

1041 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster C
0.197 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
100 ft.

1/8-1/4 TURLOCK, CA  95380
ENE CA FID UST685 PARK ST    N/A
C14 SWEEPS USTMURRAY SILACCI S101627015



MURRAY SILACCI  (Continued) S101627015



1041 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster C
0.197 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
100 ft.

1/8-1/4 TURLOCK, CA  95380
ENE 685 PARK ST    N/A
C15 HIST USTMURRAY SILACCI U001608764

1053 ft.
0.199 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
98 ft.

1/8-1/4 TURLOCK, CA  95380
SE CA FID UST790 W MAIN    N/A
16 SWEEPS USTMIKE RASMUSSEN S101595560



MIKE RASMUSSEN  (Continued) S101595560

2053 ft.
0.389 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
97 ft.

1/4-1/2 TURLOCK, CA  95380
WSW 1600 MAIN    N/A
17 LUSTCIRCLE K # 1940 S106567892



CIRCLE K # 1940  (Continued) S106567892



CIRCLE K # 1940  (Continued) S106567892

:Following information was gathered from the prior CERCLIS update completed in 10/2013:

2062 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster D
0.391 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
97 ft.

1/4-1/2 TURLOCK, CA  95380
SW RCRA NonGen / NLR1500 W MAIN ST CAD009147174
D18 SEMS-ARCHIVEINTERNATIONAL PAPER CO LPC 1015732678



INTERNATIONAL PAPER CO LPC  (Continued) 1015732678



INTERNATIONAL PAPER CO LPC  (Continued) 1015732678



INTERNATIONAL PAPER CO LPC  (Continued) 1015732678



INTERNATIONAL PAPER CO LPC  (Continued) 1015732678

2062 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster D
0.391 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
97 ft.

1/4-1/2 TURLOCK, CA  95380
SW 1500 MAIN    N/A
D19 HIST CORTESEINTERNATIONAL PAPER S110060687

2257 ft.
0.427 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
102 ft.

1/4-1/2 HIST CORTESETURLOCK, CA  95380
NNE CHMIRS901 BROADWAY    N/A
20 LUSTTID CORPORATION YARD S100216615



TID CORPORATION YARD  (Continued) S100216615



                                             17-DEC-88Date Completed:

TID CORPORATION YARD  (Continued) S100216615



TID CORPORATION YARD  (Continued) S100216615

2323 ft.
0.440 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
101 ft.

1/4-1/2 TURLOCK, CA  95380
NNE HIST CORTESE900 BROADWAY    N/A
21 LUSTTURLOCK FAIRGROUNDS S104403794



TURLOCK FAIRGROUNDS  (Continued) S104403794

2523 ft.
0.478 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
97 ft.

1/4-1/2 TURLOCK, CA  95380
SW 309 S TULLY    N/A
22 LUSTPACIFIC PRIDE / CARDLOCK FACILITY S105940420



PACIFIC PRIDE / CARDLOCK FACILITY  (Continued) S105940420



PACIFIC PRIDE / CARDLOCK FACILITY  (Continued) S105940420



PACIFIC PRIDE / CARDLOCK FACILITY  (Continued) S105940420



PACIFIC PRIDE / CARDLOCK FACILITY  (Continued) S105940420



PACIFIC PRIDE / CARDLOCK FACILITY  (Continued) S105940420

3011 ft.
0.570 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
102 ft.

1/2-1 TURLOCK, CA  95380
ENE 691 NORTH GOLDEN STATE BOULEVARD    N/A
23 ENVIROSTORBRIGHT CLEANERS 1000483046



BRIGHT CLEANERS  (Continued) 1000483046



BRIGHT CLEANERS  (Continued) 1000483046

3123 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster E
0.591 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
101 ft.

1/2-1 TURLOCK, CA  
North    N/A
E24 UXOASR (OEW) 1018150029

3123 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster E
0.591 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
101 ft.

1/2-1 TURLOCK, CA  
North    N/A
E25 FUDSTURLOCK REHABILITATION CENTER 1007372610



TURLOCK REHABILITATION CENTER  (Continued) 1007372610

4182 ft. ECHOSite 1 of 2 in cluster F
0.792 mi. DRYCLEANERS

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
104 ft.

1/2-1 FINDSTURLOCK, CA  95380
East SLIC141 NORTH CENTER    N/A
F26 ENVIROSTORDU-RITE CLEANERS 1000363037



                              Open - InactiveFacility Status:

DU-RITE CLEANERS  (Continued) 1000363037



DU-RITE CLEANERS  (Continued) 1000363037



DU-RITE CLEANERS  (Continued) 1000363037

4247 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster F
0.804 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
104 ft.

1/2-1 TURLOCK, CA  95380
East SLIC352 EAST OLIVE STREET    N/A
F27 ENVIROSTORSNOW WHITE CLEANERS S106486543



                              Open - InactiveFacility Status:

SNOW WHITE CLEANERS  (Continued) S106486543



SNOW WHITE CLEANERS  (Continued) S106486543

4490 ft.
0.850 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
105 ft.

1/2-1 TURLOCK, CA  95380
ENE 900 NORTH PALM STREET    N/A
28 ENVIROSTORCITY OF TURLOCK- GROUNDWATER CONTAMINATI S101482640



CITY OF TURLOCK- GROUNDWATER CONTAMINATI  (Continued) S101482640

4617 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster G
0.874 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
96 ft.

1/2-1 TURLOCK, CA  95381
WSW HIST Cal-Sites107 S. KILROY RD CAD981391683
G29 RCRA-SQGBANQUET FOODS 1000350740



B
A

N
Q

U
E

T
 F

O
O

D
S

  (
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
)

1
00

03
50

7
40



B
A

N
Q

U
E

T
 F

O
O

D
S

  (
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
)

1
00

03
50

7
40



B
A

N
Q

U
E

T
 F

O
O

D
S

  (
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
)

1
00

03
50

7
40

46
1

7 
ft

.
S

it
e 

2 
o

f 
2 

in
 c

lu
st

er
 G

0.
87

4 
m

i.
E

M
I

R
el

at
iv

e:
L

o
w

e
r

A
ct

u
al

:
96

 f
t.

1/
2-

1
S

L
IC

T
U

R
L

O
C

K
, C

A
  9

53
8

0
W

S
W

E
N

V
IR

O
S

T
O

R
10

7
 S

 K
IL

R
O

Y
  

 N
/A

G
30

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 V

A
L

L
E

Y
 C

H
E

E
S

E
S

1
09

28
08

79



C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 V

A
L

L
E

Y
 C

H
E

E
S

E
  (

C
o

n
ti

n
u

ed
)

S
10

92
80

87
9



   
   

   
   

  
  

  
   

   
   

  
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 -
 C

a
se

 C
lo

se
d

F
ac

ili
ty

 S
ta

tu
s

:

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 V

A
L

L
E

Y
 C

H
E

E
S

E
  (

C
o

n
ti

n
u

ed
)

S
10

92
80

87
9



C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 V

A
L

L
E

Y
 C

H
E

E
S

E
  (

C
o

n
ti

n
u

ed
)

S
10

92
80

87
9



C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 V

A
L

L
E

Y
 C

H
E

E
S

E
  (

C
o

n
ti

n
u

ed
)

S
10

92
80

87
9



C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 V

A
L

L
E

Y
 C

H
E

E
S

E
  (

C
o

n
ti

n
u

ed
)

S
10

92
80

87
9



C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 V

A
L

L
E

Y
 C

H
E

E
S

E
  (

C
o

n
ti

n
u

ed
)

S
10

92
80

87
9



C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 V

A
L

L
E

Y
 C

H
E

E
S

E
  (

C
o

n
ti

n
u

ed
)

S
10

92
80

87
9

:
F

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 w
as

 g
a

th
er

ed
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
p

ri
o

r 
C

E
R

C
L

IS
 u

p
d

at
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 in

 1
0

/2
01

3:

E
C

H
O

47
8

5 
ft

.
F

IN
D

S
S

it
e 

1
 o

f 
2 

in
 c

lu
st

er
 H

0.
90

6 
m

i.
S

L
IC

R
el

at
iv

e:
H

ig
h

er

A
ct

u
al

:
10

5
 f

t.

1/
2-

1
E

N
V

IR
O

S
T

O
R

T
U

R
L

O
C

K
, C

A
  9

53
8

0
E

a
s

t
R

C
R

A
-S

Q
G

42
9

 E
 M

A
IN

C
A

D
9

8
1

97
81

9
0

H
31

S
E

M
S

-A
R

C
H

IV
E

T
U

R
L

O
C

K
 C

L
E

A
N

E
R

S
1

00
02

90
1

94



T
U

R
L

O
C

K
 C

L
E

A
N

E
R

S
  (

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)
1

00
02

90
1

94



T
U

R
L

O
C

K
 C

L
E

A
N

E
R

S
  (

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)
1

00
02

90
1

94



   
   

   
   

  
  

  
   

   
   

  
 O

p
en

 -
 In

ac
ti

ve
F

ac
ili

ty
 S

ta
tu

s
:

T
U

R
L

O
C

K
 C

L
E

A
N

E
R

S
  (

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)
1

00
02

90
1

94



T
U

R
L

O
C

K
 C

L
E

A
N

E
R

S
  (

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)
1

00
02

90
1

94

49
3

9 
ft

.
0.

93
5 

m
i.

R
el

at
iv

e:
H

ig
h

er

A
ct

u
al

:
10

4
 f

t.

1/
2-

1
T

U
R

L
O

C
K

, 
C

A
  

N
N

E
   

N
/A

32
E

N
V

IR
O

S
T

O
R

T
U

R
L

O
C

K
 R

E
H

A
B

 C
E

N
T

E
R

S
1

07
73

74
78



T
U

R
L

O
C

K
 R

E
H

A
B

 C
E

N
T

E
R

  
(C

o
n

ti
n

u
ed

)
S

10
77

37
47

8

50
2

2 
ft

.
S

it
e 

2 
o

f 
2 

in
 c

lu
st

er
 H

0.
95

1 
m

i.

R
el

at
iv

e:
H

ig
h

er

A
ct

u
al

:
10

5
 f

t.

1/
2-

1
T

U
R

L
O

C
K

, 
C

A
  9

53
8

0
E

a
s

t
50

0 
E

A
S

T
 M

A
IN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

   
N

/A
H

33
E

N
V

IR
O

S
T

O
R

C
A

R
R

’S
 C

L
E

A
N

E
R

S
S

1
01

48
26

61



C
A

R
R

’S
 C

L
E

A
N

E
R

S
  (

C
o

n
ti

n
u

ed
)

S
1

01
48

26
61





N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
D

ay
s

 t
o

 U
p

d
at

e:

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S

F
ed

er
al

 N
P

L
 s

it
e 

li
st

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



F
ed

er
al

 D
el

is
te

d
 N

P
L

 s
it

e 
li

st

F
ed

er
al

 C
E

R
C

L
IS

 li
st

F
ed

er
al

 C
E

R
C

L
IS

 N
F

R
A

P
 s

it
e 

lis
t

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



F
ed

er
al

 R
C

R
A

 C
O

R
R

A
C

T
S

 f
ac

il
it

ie
s

 li
st

F
ed

er
al

 R
C

R
A

 n
o

n
-C

O
R

R
A

C
T

S
 T

S
D

 f
a

c
ili

ti
es

 l
is

t

F
ed

er
al

 R
C

R
A

 g
e

n
er

at
o

rs
 l

is
t

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



F
ed

er
al

 in
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 / 
en

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 r

e
g

is
tr

ie
s

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



F
ed

er
al

 E
R

N
S

 li
s

t

S
ta

te
- 

a
n

d
 t

ri
b

al
 -

 e
q

u
iv

al
en

t 
N

P
L

S
ta

te
- 

a
n

d
 t

ri
b

al
 -

 e
q

u
iv

al
en

t 
C

E
R

C
L

IS

S
ta

te
 a

n
d

 t
ri

b
al

 l
an

d
fi

ll 
an

d
/o

r 
so

lid
 w

as
te

 d
is

p
o

sa
l s

it
e 

lis
ts

S
ta

te
 a

n
d

 t
ri

b
al

 l
ea

ki
n

g
 s

to
ra

g
e 

ta
n

k 
lis

ts

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



S
ta

te
 a

n
d

 t
ri

b
al

 r
eg

is
te

re
d

 s
to

ra
g

e 
ta

n
k 

lis
ts

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



S
ta

te
 a

n
d

 t
ri

b
al

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 c
le

an
u

p
 s

it
es

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



S
ta

te
 a

n
d

 t
ri

b
al

 B
ro

w
n

fi
e

ld
s 

si
te

s

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S

L
o

c
al

 B
ro

w
n

fi
el

d
 li

st
s

L
o

c
al

 L
is

ts
 o

f 
L

an
d

fi
ll 

/ S
o

lid
 W

as
te

 D
is

p
o

sa
l S

it
es

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



L
o

c
al

 L
is

ts
 o

f 
H

a
za

rd
o

u
s

 w
a

st
e 

/ C
o

n
ta

m
in

at
ed

 S
it

es

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



L
o

c
al

 L
is

ts
 o

f 
R

e
g

is
te

re
d

 S
to

ra
g

e
 T

an
ks

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



L
o

c
al

 L
an

d
 R

e
co

rd
s

R
ec

o
rd

s 
o

f 
E

m
e

rg
en

cy
 R

el
ea

se
 R

ep
o

rt
s

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



O
th

er
 A

s
ce

rt
ai

n
a

b
le

 R
ec

o
rd

s

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



E
D

R
 H

IG
H

 R
IS

K
 H

IS
T

O
R

IC
A

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
S

E
D

R
 E

x
cl

u
si

ve
 R

ec
o

rd
s

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



E
D

R
 R

E
C

O
V

E
R

E
D

 G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 A
R

C
H

IV
E

S

E
x

c
lu

si
v

e
 R

ec
o

ve
re

d
 G

o
vt

. A
rc

h
iv

es

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



O
T

H
E

R
 D

A
T

A
B

A
S

E
(S

)

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
N

D
 A

D
D

R
E

S
S

 IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S
 S

E
A

R
C

H
E

D
 /

 D
A

T
A

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G



U
S

G
S

 T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 M
A

P

1
20

.8
60

4
47

 -
 1

20
˚ 

51
’ 3

7
.6

1’
’

3
7.

4
9

52
1

8 
- 

3
7

˚ 
2

9
’ 4

2
.7

8
’’

T
A

R
G

E
T

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
T

E
S

T
A

R
G

E
T

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 A
D

D
R

E
S

S

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 A

D
D

E
N

D
U

M



S
U

R
R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
Y

: 
E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 P

R
O

F
IL

E
S

T
a

rg
et

 P
ro

p
e

rt
y 

E
le

v
at

io
n

: 
99

 f
t.

N
o

rt
h

S
o

u
th

W
e

st
E

as
t

97

97

97

97

98

98

97

97

98

99

99

99

100

100

101

101

102

102

102 94

96

96

97

97

97

97

98

98

99

99

100

101

101

102

103

103

104

104

T
A

R
G

E
T

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
Y

T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

G
R

O
U

N
D

W
A

T
E

R
 F

L
O

W
 D

IR
E

C
T

IO
N

 IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y



A
Q

U
IF

L
O

W

S
it

e-
S

p
ec

if
ic

 H
yd

ro
g

eo
lo

g
ic

al
 D

a
ta

*:

* 
©

19
96

 S
ite

−
sp

ec
ifi

c 
h

yd
ro

ge
ol

o
gi

ca
l d

at
a 

g
at

h
er

ed
 b

y 
C

E
R

C
LI

S
 A

le
rt

s,
 In

c.
, B

ai
n

br
id

ge
 I

sl
an

d,
 W

A
. 

 A
ll 

rig
h

ts
 r

e
se

rv
ed

.  
A

ll 

H
Y

D
R

O
G

E
O

L
O

G
IC

 IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 W

E
T

L
A

N
D

 IN
V

E
N

T
O

R
Y

F
E

M
A

 F
L

O
O

D
 Z

O
N

E

H
Y

D
R

O
L

O
G

IC
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y



R
O

C
K

 S
T

R
A

T
IG

R
A

P
H

IC
 U

N
IT

G
E

O
L

O
G

IC
 A

G
E

 I
D

E
N

T
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N

   
(d

ec
od

ed
 a

bo
ve

 a
s 

E
ra

, S
ys

te
m

 &
 S

er
ie

s)

G
E

O
L

O
G

IC
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 IN
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 A
R

E
A

 O
F

 T
A

R
G

E
T

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

G
R

O
U

N
D

W
A

T
E

R
 F

L
O

W
 V

E
L

O
C

IT
Y

 IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y



E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.



S
o

il
 M

a
p

 I
D

: 
2

S
o

il
 L

a
y

er
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n

B
o

u
n

d
a

ry
C

la
s

s
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
S

a
tu

ra
te

d
h

y
d

ra
u

li
c

c
o

n
d

u
c

ti
vi

ty
m

ic
ro

 m
/s

e
c

L
a

ye
r

U
p

p
e

r
L

o
w

e
r

S
o

il
 T

ex
tu

re
 C

la
s

s
A

A
S

H
T

O
 G

ro
u

p
U

n
if

ie
d

 S
o

il
S

o
il 

R
e

a
ct

io
n

(p
H

)

S
o

il
 M

a
p

 I
D

: 
1

D
O

M
IN

A
N

T
 S

O
IL

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 I

N
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 A
R

E
A

 O
F

 T
A

R
G

E
T

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y



S
o

il
 M

a
p

 I
D

: 
3

S
o

il
 L

a
y

er
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n

B
o

u
n

d
a

ry
C

la
s

s
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
S

a
tu

ra
te

d
h

y
d

ra
u

li
c

c
o

n
d

u
c

ti
vi

ty
m

ic
ro

 m
/s

e
c

L
a

ye
r

U
p

p
e

r
L

o
w

e
r

S
o

il
 T

ex
tu

re
 C

la
s

s
A

A
S

H
T

O
 G

ro
u

p
U

n
if

ie
d

 S
o

il
S

o
il 

R
e

a
ct

io
n

(p
H

)

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y



F
E

D
E

R
A

L
 U

S
G

S
 W

E
L

L
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

W
E

L
L

 S
E

A
R

C
H

 D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

L
O

C
A

L
 / 

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 W

A
T

E
R

 A
G

E
N

C
Y

 R
E

C
O

R
D

SS
o

il
 L

a
y

er
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n

B
o

u
n

d
a

ry
C

la
s

s
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
S

a
tu

ra
te

d
h

y
d

ra
u

li
c

c
o

n
d

u
c

ti
vi

ty
m

ic
ro

 m
/s

e
c

L
a

ye
r

U
p

p
e

r
L

o
w

e
r

S
o

il
 T

ex
tu

re
 C

la
s

s
A

A
S

H
T

O
 G

ro
u

p
U

n
if

ie
d

 S
o

il
S

o
il 

R
e

a
ct

io
n

(p
H

)

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y



S
T

A
T

E
 D

A
T

A
B

A
S

E
 W

E
L

L
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

F
E

D
E

R
A

L
 F

R
D

S
 P

U
B

L
IC

 W
A

T
E

R
 S

U
P

P
L

Y
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y



E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.

E
D

R
 I

nc
.



W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
:

3 N
W

1/
2 

- 
1 

M
ile

L
o

w
e

r

61
7

8
C

A
 W

E
L

L
S

2 W
S

W
1/

4 
- 

1/
2

 M
ile

L
o

w
e

r

C
A

D
W

60
0

00
02

12
2

7
C

A
 W

E
L

L
S

1 W
S

W
1/

4 
- 

1/
2

 M
ile

L
o

w
e

r

C
A

D
W

60
0

00
02

29
7

8
C

A
 W

E
L

L
S

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 M

A
P

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S



G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 M

A
P

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S



5 S
E

1/
2 

- 
1 

M
ile

H
ig

h
er

U
S

G
S

40
00

01
8

34
38

F
E

D
 U

S
G

S

W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
:

4 N
N

E
1/

2 
- 

1 
M

ile
H

ig
h

er

61
7

3
C

A
 W

E
L

L
S

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 M

A
P

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S



6 N
W

1/
2 

- 
1 

M
ile

H
ig

h
er

U
S

G
S

40
00

01
8

41
53

F
E

D
 U

S
G

S

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 M

A
P

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S



W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
:

9 N
E

1/
2 

- 
1 

M
ile

H
ig

h
er

61
6

6
C

A
 W

E
L

L
S

W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
:

A
8

E
N

E
1/

2 
- 

1 
M

ile
H

ig
h

er

61
7

4
C

A
 W

E
L

L
S

W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
:

A
7

E
N

E
1/

2 
- 

1 
M

ile
H

ig
h

er

61
6

5
C

A
 W

E
L

L
S

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 M

A
P

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S



G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 M

A
P

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S



11 N
W

1/
2 

- 
1 

M
ile

L
o

w
e

r

C
A

D
W

60
0

00
02

29
7

9
C

A
 W

E
L

L
S

10 N
N

W
1/

2 
- 

1 
M

ile
H

ig
h

er

C
A

D
W

60
0

00
02

29
6

9
C

A
 W

E
L

L
S

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 M

A
P

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S



W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
:

12 S
S

E
1/

2 
- 

1 
M

ile
H

ig
h

er

21
0

29
C

A
 W

E
L

L
S

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 M

A
P

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S



G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 M

A
P

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S



G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 M

A
P

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S



G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 M

A
P

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S



W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
:

13 S
S

W
1/

2 
- 

1 
M

ile
L

o
w

e
r

61
7

7
C

A
 W

E
L

L
S

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 M

A
P

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S



16 E
S

E
1/

2 
- 

1 
M

ile
H

ig
h

er

61
8

5
C

A
 W

E
L

L
S

W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
:

15 N
N

E
1/

2 
- 

1 
M

ile
H

ig
h

er

61
7

1
C

A
 W

E
L

L
S

14 E
N

E
1/

2 
- 

1 
M

ile
H

ig
h

er

U
S

G
S

40
00

01
8

34
89

F
E

D
 U

S
G

S

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 M

A
P

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S



W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
:

B
18

S
S

E
1/

2 
- 

1 
M

ile
H

ig
h

er

61
8

0
C

A
 W

E
L

L
S

W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
:

B
17

S
S

E
1/

2 
- 

1 
M

ile
H

ig
h

er

61
7

9
C

A
 W

E
L

L
S

W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
:

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 M

A
P

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S



A
R

E
A

 R
A

D
O

N
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

G
E

O
C

H
E

C
K

   
- 

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 M

A
P

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S

R
A

D
O

N



T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

H
Y

D
R

O
L

O
G

IC
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

H
Y

D
R

O
G

E
O

L
O

G
IC

 IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

G
E

O
L

O
G

IC
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 R

E
C

O
R

D
S

 S
E

A
R

C
H

E
D



L
O

C
A

L
 / 

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 W

A
T

E
R

 A
G

E
N

C
Y

 R
E

C
O

R
D

S

O
T

H
E

R
 S

T
A

T
E

 D
A

T
A

B
A

S
E

 IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 R

E
C

O
R

D
S

 S
E

A
R

C
H

E
D



S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
N

D
 A

D
D

R
E

S
S

 IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

P
H

Y
S

IC
A

L
 S

E
T

T
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
 R

E
C

O
R

D
S

 S
E

A
R

C
H

E
D



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 C
 

H
is

to
ri

ca
l R

es
ea

rc
h 

D
oc

um
en

ta
ti

on
 





S
e

ar
ch

 R
e

su
lt

s:

D
is

cl
a

im
er

 -
 C

o
p

yr
ig

h
t 

an
d

 T
ra

d
em

ar
k 

o
ti

c
e

:

09
/1

9
/1

6

U
S

 A
rm

y 
N

a
tio

na
l G

u
a

rd
 A

rm
or

y 
S

ite
R

in
co

n
A

la
sk

a 
S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

F
lo

w
er

 S
tr

ee
t

1
8

0
 N

o
rt

h 
A

sh
w

oo
d

 A
ve

n
ue

T
u

rlo
ck

, C
A

 9
5

38
0

V
e

nt
u

ra
, C

A
 9

3
00

3
-0

0
00

47
30

7
06

.4
S

ar
ah

 L
ar

es
e

E
D

R
 T

o
po

g
ra

p
h

ic
 M

a
p

 L
ib

ra
ry

 h
a

s 
b

e
en

 s
ea

rc
h

e
d

 b
y 

E
D

R
 a

n
d

 m
a

ps
 c

o
ve

ri
ng

 t
h

e 
ta

rg
e

t 
pr

o
p

e
rt

y 
lo

ca
tio

n
 a

s 
p

ro
vi

de
d

 b
y

R
in

co
n 

w
e

re
 id

e
nt

ifi
e

d
 fo

r 
th

e 
ye

a
rs

 li
st

e
d 

b
e

lo
w

. 
E

D
R

’s
 H

is
to

ri
ca

l T
o

p
o 

M
ap

 R
e

po
rt

 is
 d

e
si

g
n

ed
 t

o 
a

ss
is

t 
p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

ls
 in

e
va

lu
a

tin
g

 p
o

te
nt

ia
l l

ia
b

ili
ty

 o
n 

a
 t

ar
g

e
t p

ro
pe

rt
y 

re
su

lti
n

g
 fr

o
m

 p
a

st
 a

ct
iv

iti
e

s.
 E

D
R

s 
H

is
to

ric
a

l T
o

po
 M

a
p

 R
ep

o
rt

 in
cl

u
de

s 
a

se
a

rc
h

 o
f a

 c
o

lle
ct

io
n 

o
f 

pu
b

lic
 a

n
d

 p
ri

va
te

 c
o

lo
r 

hi
st

o
ri

ca
l t

o
p

og
ra

ph
ic

 m
ap

s,
 d

a
tin

g
 b

a
ck

 to
 t

h
e 

la
te

 1
80

0
s.

16
-0

3
29

2
37

.4
9

5
2

18
 3

7
° 

29
' 4

3
" 

N
o

rt
h

16
-0

3
29

2
-1

2
0

.8
6

04
4

7
 -

1
20

° 
5

1'
 3

8
" 

W
e

st

Z
o

n
e

 1
0

 N
or

th

68
91

3
8.

80

41
51

9
60

.9
5

99
.0

0
' a

b
o

ve
 s

e
a 

le
ve

l

T
hi

s 
R

e
po

rt
 c

on
ta

in
s 

ce
rt

a
in

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 o
bt

a
in

ed
 f

ro
m

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f 
pu

b
lic

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

ou
rc

e
s 

re
a

so
n

ab
ly

 a
va

ila
b

le
 to

 E
nv

ir
on

m
e

nt
a

l D
a

ta
 R

es
o

ur
ce

s,
 I

nc
. 

It 
ca

n
no

t
be

 c
o

nc
lu

de
d 

fr
om

 th
is

 R
e

po
rt

 t
ha

t 
co

ve
ra

ge
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

 a
n

d 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
d

o
e

s 
no

t e
xi

st
 fr

om
 o

th
e

r 
so

ur
ce

s.
 N

O
 W

A
R

R
A

N
T

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

E
D

 O
R

 I
M

P
L

IE
D

, I
S

 M
A

D
E

 W
H

A
T

S
O

E
V

E
R

 I
N

 C
O

N
N

E
C

T
IO

N
 W

IT
H

 T
H

IS
 R

E
P

O
R

T
. E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
 D

A
T

A
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

, 
IN

C
. S

P
E

C
IF

IC
A

L
LY

D
IS

C
L

A
IM

S
 T

H
E

 M
A

K
IN

G
 O

F
 A

N
Y

 S
U

C
H

 W
A

R
R

A
N

T
IE

S
, 

IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
, M

E
R

C
H

A
N

T
A

B
IL

IT
Y

 O
R

 F
IT

N
E

S
S

 F
O

R
 A

 P
A

R
T

IC
U

L
A

R
 U

S
E

O
R

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
. A

L
L 

R
IS

K
 IS

 A
S

S
U

M
E

D
 B

Y
 T

H
E

 U
S

E
R

. I
N

 N
O

 E
V

E
N

T
 S

H
A

L
L 

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 D
A

T
A

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
, I

N
C

. B
E

 L
IA

B
LE

 T
O

 A
N

Y
O

N
E

,
W

H
E

T
H

E
R

 A
R

IS
IN

G
 O

U
T

 O
F

 E
R

R
O

R
S

 O
R

 O
M

IS
S

IO
N

S
, N

E
G

LI
G

E
N

C
E

, A
C

C
ID

E
N

T
 O

R
 A

N
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
 C

A
U

S
E

, F
O

R
 A

N
Y

 L
O

S
S

 O
F

 D
A

M
A

G
E

, I
N

C
LU

D
IN

G
,

W
IT

H
O

U
T

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
, S

P
E

C
IA

L
, I

N
C

ID
E

N
T

A
L

, C
O

N
S

E
Q

U
E

N
T

IA
L,

 O
R

 E
X

E
M

P
LA

R
Y

 D
A

M
A

G
E

S
. 

A
N

Y
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

Y
 O

N
 T

H
E

 P
A

R
T

 O
F

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

D
A

T
A

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
, 

IN
C

. 
IS

 S
T

R
IC

T
LY

 L
IM

IT
E

D
 T

O
 A

 R
E

F
U

N
D

 O
F

 T
H

E
 A

M
O

U
N

T
 P

A
ID

 F
O

R
 T

H
IS

 R
E

P
O

R
T

. 
P

u
rc

h
as

e
r 

a
cc

e
p

ts
 th

is
 R

e
p

or
t "

A
S

 IS
".

 A
ny

an
al

ys
e

s,
 e

st
im

at
es

, 
ra

tin
g

s,
 e

n
vi

ro
nm

e
n

ta
l r

is
k 

le
ve

ls
 o

r 
ris

k 
co

d
es

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 in

 t
h

is
 R

e
po

rt
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 fo
r 

ill
u

st
ra

tiv
e

 p
u

rp
os

e
s 

on
ly

, 
a

n
d

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

te
nd

ed
 t

o
pr

ov
id

e,
 n

o
r 

sh
ou

ld
 th

ey
 b

e
 in

te
rp

re
te

d
 a

s 
p

ro
vi

d
in

g 
an

y 
fa

ct
s 

re
g

ar
d

in
g

, o
r 

p
re

d
ic

tio
n 

o
r 

fo
re

ca
st

 o
f,

 a
ny

 e
nv

ir
on

m
e

nt
a

l r
is

k 
fo

r 
a

n
y 

p
ro

pe
rt

y.
 O

n
ly

 a
 P

h
a

se
 I

E
nv

iro
n

m
e

nt
a

l S
ite

 A
ss

es
sm

e
nt

 p
e

rf
o

rm
ed

 b
y 

an
 e

nv
iro

n
m

e
nt

al
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l c

an
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
g

ar
d

in
g

 th
e 

e
nv

ir
on

m
e

nt
a

l r
is

k 
fo

r 
an

y 
p

ro
pe

rt
y.

A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, 
th

e
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 in
 th

is
 R

e
po

rt
 is

 n
o

t 
to

 b
e

 c
o

ns
tr

u
e

d
 a

s 
le

ga
l a

d
vi

ce
.

C
o

py
ri

g
ht

 2
0

16
 b

y 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l D

at
a

 R
e

so
u

rc
e

s,
 In

c.
 A

ll 
ri

gh
ts

 r
es

e
rv

e
d.

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n
 in

 a
ny

 m
e

di
a

 o
r 

fo
rm

a
t,

 in
 w

h
o

le
 o

r 
in

 p
ar

t,
 o

f a
ny

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

r 
m

ap
 o

f
E

nv
iro

n
m

e
nt

a
l D

a
ta

 R
e

so
ur

ce
s,

 I
nc

.,
 o

r 
its

 a
ff

ili
a

te
s,

 is
 p

ro
hi

b
ite

d
 w

ith
ou

t 
p

ri
or

 w
rit

te
n

 p
e

rm
is

si
on

.

47
3

07
06

4
2



T
o

p
o

 S
h

e
et

 

20
12

 S
o

u
rc

e
 S

h
e

et
s

19
76

 S
o

u
rc

e
 S

h
e

et
s

19
62

 S
o

u
rc

e
 S

h
e

et
s

19
61

, 
1

96
2 

S
o

u
rc

e
 S

h
e

e
ts



T
o

p
o

 S
h

e
et

 

19
48

, 
1

95
3 

S
o

u
rc

e
 S

h
e

e
ts

19
16

, 
1

91
7 

S
o

u
rc

e
 S

h
e

e
ts

















S
e

ar
ch

 R
e

su
lt

s:

D
is

cl
a

im
er

 -
 C

o
p

yr
ig

h
t 

an
d

 T
ra

d
em

ar
k 

o
ti

c
e

W
h

en
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 e

le
c

tr
o

n
ic

a
ll

y
 b

y
 E

D
R

, 
th

e 
a

e
ri

al
 p

h
o

to
 i

m
ag

e
s

 in
c

lu
d

e
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
is

 r
e

p
o

rt
 a

re
 f

o
r 

O
N

E
 T

IM
E

 U
S

E
O

N
L

Y
. 

F
u

rt
h

er
 r

ep
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
s

e 
a

e
ri

al
 p

h
o

to
 i

m
ag

e
s

 is
 p

ro
h

ib
it

e
d

 w
it

h
o

u
t 

p
er

m
is

si
o

n
 f

ro
m

 E
D

R
. F

o
r 

m
o

re
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

y
o

u
r 

E
D

R
 A

cc
o

u
n

t 
E

x
e

cu
ti

v
e.

09
/2

1
/1

6

U
S

 A
rm

y 
N

a
tio

na
l G

u
a

rd
 A

rm
or

y 
S

ite
R

in
co

n
A

la
sk

a 
S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

F
lo

w
er

 S
tr

ee
t

1
8

0
 N

o
rt

h 
A

sh
w

oo
d

 A
ve

n
ue

T
u

rlo
ck

, C
A

 9
5

38
0

V
e

nt
u

ra
, C

A
 9

3
00

3
-0

0
00

47
30

7
0

6.
9

S
a

ra
h 

L
ar

es
e

T
hi

s 
R

e
po

rt
 c

on
ta

in
s 

ce
rt

a
in

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 o
bt

a
in

ed
 f

ro
m

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f 
pu

b
lic

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

ou
rc

e
s 

re
a

so
n

ab
ly

 a
va

ila
b

le
 to

 E
nv

ir
on

m
e

nt
a

l D
a

ta
 R

es
o

ur
ce

s,
 I

nc
. 

It 
ca

n
no

t
be

 c
o

nc
lu

de
d 

fr
om

 th
is

 R
e

po
rt

 t
ha

t 
co

ve
ra

ge
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

 a
n

d 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
d

o
e

s 
no

t e
xi

st
 fr

om
 o

th
e

r 
so

ur
ce

s.
 N

O
 W

A
R

R
A

N
T

Y
E

X
P

R
E

S
S

E
D

 O
R

 I
M

P
L

IE
D

, I
S

 M
A

D
E

 W
H

A
T

S
O

E
V

E
R

 I
N

 C
O

N
N

E
C

T
IO

N
 W

IT
H

 T
H

IS
 R

E
P

O
R

T
. E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
 D

A
T

A
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

, 
IN

C
. S

P
E

C
IF

IC
A

L
LY

D
IS

C
L

A
IM

S
 T

H
E

 M
A

K
IN

G
 O

F
 A

N
Y

 S
U

C
H

 W
A

R
R

A
N

T
IE

S
, 

IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
, M

E
R

C
H

A
N

T
A

B
IL

IT
Y

 O
R

 F
IT

N
E

S
S

 F
O

R
 A

 P
A

R
T

IC
U

L
A

R
 U

S
E

O
R

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
. A

L
L 

R
IS

K
 IS

 A
S

S
U

M
E

D
 B

Y
 T

H
E

 U
S

E
R

. I
N

 N
O

 E
V

E
N

T
 S

H
A

L
L 

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 D
A

T
A

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
, I

N
C

. B
E

 L
IA

B
LE

 T
O

 A
N

Y
O

N
E

,
W

H
E

T
H

E
R

 A
R

IS
IN

G
 O

U
T

 O
F

 E
R

R
O

R
S

 O
R

 O
M

IS
S

IO
N

S
, N

E
G

LI
G

E
N

C
E

, A
C

C
ID

E
N

T
 O

R
 A

N
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
 C

A
U

S
E

, F
O

R
 A

N
Y

 L
O

S
S

 O
F

 D
A

M
A

G
E

, I
N

C
LU

D
IN

G
,

W
IT

H
O

U
T

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
, S

P
E

C
IA

L
, I

N
C

ID
E

N
T

A
L

, C
O

N
S

E
Q

U
E

N
T

IA
L,

 O
R

 E
X

E
M

P
LA

R
Y

 D
A

M
A

G
E

S
. 

A
N

Y
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

Y
 O

N
 T

H
E

 P
A

R
T

 O
F

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

D
A

T
A

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
, 

IN
C

. 
IS

 S
T

R
IC

T
LY

 L
IM

IT
E

D
 T

O
 A

 R
E

F
U

N
D

 O
F

 T
H

E
 A

M
O

U
N

T
 P

A
ID

 F
O

R
 T

H
IS

 R
E

P
O

R
T

. 
P

u
rc

h
as

e
r 

a
cc

e
p

ts
 th

is
 R

e
p

or
t "

A
S

 IS
".

 A
ny

an
al

ys
e

s,
 e

st
im

at
es

, 
ra

tin
g

s,
 e

n
vi

ro
nm

e
n

ta
l r

is
k 

le
ve

ls
 o

r 
ris

k 
co

d
es

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 in

 t
h

is
 R

e
po

rt
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 fo
r 

ill
u

st
ra

tiv
e

 p
u

rp
os

e
s 

on
ly

, 
a

n
d

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

te
nd

ed
 t

o
pr

ov
id

e,
 n

o
r 

sh
ou

ld
 th

ey
 b

e
 in

te
rp

re
te

d
 a

s 
p

ro
vi

d
in

g 
an

y 
fa

ct
s 

re
g

ar
d

in
g

, o
r 

p
re

d
ic

tio
n 

o
r 

fo
re

ca
st

 o
f,

 a
ny

 e
nv

ir
on

m
e

nt
a

l r
is

k 
fo

r 
a

n
y 

p
ro

pe
rt

y.
 O

n
ly

 a
 P

h
a

se
 I

E
nv

iro
n

m
e

nt
a

l S
ite

 A
ss

es
sm

e
nt

 p
e

rf
o

rm
ed

 b
y 

an
 e

nv
iro

n
m

e
nt

al
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l c

an
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
g

ar
d

in
g

 th
e 

e
nv

ir
on

m
e

nt
a

l r
is

k 
fo

r 
an

y 
p

ro
pe

rt
y.

A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, 
th

e
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 in
 th

is
 R

e
po

rt
 is

 n
o

t 
to

 b
e

 c
o

ns
tr

u
e

d
 a

s 
le

ga
l a

d
vi

ce
.

C
o

py
ri

g
ht

 2
0

16
 b

y 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l D

at
a

 R
e

so
u

rc
e

s,
 In

c.
 A

ll 
ri

gh
ts

 r
es

e
rv

e
d.

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n
 in

 a
ny

 m
e

di
a

 o
r 

fo
rm

a
t,

 in
 w

h
o

le
 o

r 
in

 p
ar

t,
 o

f a
ny

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

r 
m

ap
 o

f
E

nv
iro

n
m

e
nt

a
l D

a
ta

 R
e

so
ur

ce
s,

 I
nc

.,
 o

r 
its

 a
ff

ili
a

te
s,

 is
 p

ro
hi

b
ite

d
 w

ith
ou

t 
p

ri
or

 w
rit

te
n

 p
e

rm
is

si
on

.

47
3

07
06

9
2



47
3

07
06

.9



47
3

07
06

.9



47
3

07
06

.9



47
3

07
06

.9



47
3

07
06

.9



47
3

07
06

.9



47
3

07
06

.9



47
3

07
06

.9



47
3

07
06

.9



47
3

07
06

.9



47
3

07
06

.9



47
3

07
06

.9



47
3

07
06

.9















A
L

A
S

K
A

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

2
01

3



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

2
01

3



(C
o

n
t'

d
)

F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

2
01

3



A
L

A
S

K
A

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

2
00

8



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

2
00

8



(C
o

n
t'

d
)

F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

2
00

8



A
L

A
S

K
A

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

2
00

3



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

2
00

3



(C
o

n
t'

d
)

F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

2
00

3



A
L

A
S

K
A

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
99

9



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
99

9



(C
o

n
t'

d
)

F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
99

9



A
L

A
S

K
A

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
99

5



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
99

5



(C
o

n
t'

d
)

F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
99

5



A
L

A
S

K
A

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
99

2



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
99

2



A
L

A
S

K
A

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
98

6



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
98

6



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
98

6



A
L

A
S

K
A

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
98

1



A
L

A
S

K
A

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
98

1



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
98

1



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
98

1



A
L

A
S

K
A

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
97

6



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
97

6



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
97

6



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
97

6



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
97

6



A
L

A
S

K
A

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
97

1



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
97

1



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
97

1



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
97

1



A
L

A
S

K
A

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
96

6



A
L

A
S

K
A

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
96

4



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
96

4



F
L

O
W

E
R

 S
T

S
o

u
rc

e
T

a
rg

e
t 

S
tr

ee
t

C
ro

s
s 

S
tr

ee
t

1
96

4





 R
e

su
lt

s:

D
is

cl
a

im
er

 -
 C

o
p

yr
ig

h
t 

an
d

 T
ra

d
em

ar
k 

o
ti

c
e

T
he

 S
a

n
b

o
rn

 L
ib

ra
ry

 L
L

C
 S

in
ce

 1
8

6
6™

L
im

it
e

d
 P

er
m

is
si

o
n

 T
o

 M
ak

e
 C

o
p

ie
s



S
a

n
b

o
rn

 S
h

ee
t 

19
62

 S
o

u
rc

e
 S

h
e

et
s

19
52

 S
o

u
rc

e
 S

h
e

et
s

19
45

 S
o

u
rc

e
 S

h
e

et
s

19
22

 S
o

u
rc

e
 S

h
e

et
s

47
3
07
06

3
4



47
3
07
06

3
5



47
3
07
06

3
6



47
3
07
06

3
7



47
3
07
06

3
8



Phase II Environmental
Site Assessment

California National Guard Armory Site
1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California  

Prepared for:

Prepared by:

EXHIBIT F





Phase II Environmental Site Assessment  

Rincon Consultants
 

Phase II Environmental Site Assessment  

1040 Flower Street, Turlock, California 

Table of Contents 
Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................... 1 
Introduction ................................................................................................................................................ 3 

Project History ........................................................................................................................................ 3 
Purpose and Scope ................................................................................................................................. 3 

Geologic and Hydrogeologic Setting ...................................................................................................... 4 
Topography............................................................................................................................................. 4 
Site Geology ............................................................................................................................................ 4 
Regional Groundwater Occurrence and Quality .............................................................................. 4 

Methodology............................................................................................................................................... 4 
Soil Boring Advancement and Sampling ........................................................................................... 5 
Lead Dust Sampling .............................................................................................................................. 5 
Lead Based Paint and Asbestos Sampling ......................................................................................... 5 
Laboratory Analysis .............................................................................................................................. 5 

Results .......................................................................................................................................................... 6 
Soil Matrix Laboratory Results ............................................................................................................ 6 
Dust Wipe Laboratory Results ............................................................................................................. 6 
LBP and Asbestos Survey Results ....................................................................................................... 7 

Conclusions ................................................................................................................................................. 7 
Limitations .................................................................................................................................................. 8 
References ................................................................................................................................................... 9 

Tables 
Table 1 – Soil Vapor Analytical Summary – OCPs 
Table 2 – Soil Matrix Analytical Summary – Total Metals 
Table 3 – Soil Matrix Analytical Summary – TPH and VOCs 
Table 4 – Dust Wipe Analytical Summary – Lead 
 

Figures 
Figure 1 – Vicinity Map 
Figure 2 – Sample Location Map 

Appendices
Appendix 1 – Lead and Asbestos Report 
Appendix 2 – Soil Matrix Boring Logs  
Appendix 3 – Laboratory Analytical Report



Phase II Environmental Site Assessment  

Rincon Consultants
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Rincon Consultants has prepared this Phase II Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) for the 
property located at 1040 Flower Street, Turlock California (subject property) (Figure 1).  The 
subject property is a 1.5-acre property currently owned by the City of Turlock and in use as the 
California National Guard Armory, occupied by the 149th Chemical Company (Figure 2). The 
California National Guard is ending their 99 year lease with the City of Turlock and wishes to 
exercise their lease option of leaving the improvements to the City.  Rincon completed a Phase I 
ESA for the subject property (dated November 15, 2016) which identified potential recognized 
environmental conditions that warranted additional assessment.  The purpose of this Phase II 
ESA was to assess subsurface soil for potential impact from organochlorine pesticides (OCPs), 
metals, volatile organic compounds (VOCs), and total petroleum hydrocarbons (TPH).  Based 
on the age and historic use of the subject property as an armory and shooting range, the subject 
property was also sampled for lead and asbestos in the structures.   

On January 13, 2017 a direct push rig was used to advance eight soil borings to a depth of 5.5-
feet below ground surface (bgs) (Figure 2). The work was conducted by TEG Northern 
California, Inc. of Rancho Cordova, California, under the direct supervision of Rincon 
Consultants.  Soil matrix samples were collected at 0.0-0.5-foot, 2.0-2.5- feet, and 5.0-5.5-feet bgs 
from each soil boring.  Rincon personnel collected three dust wipe samples from the interior of 
the former shooting range structure to assess the presence of lead associated with the historic 
use as a shooting range.   

Additionally, because the main building on the subject property was built prior to 1963, lead-
based paint (LBP) and asbestos-containing building materials (ACBM) surveys were conducted 
by Stockton Environmental, Inc., of Stockton, California by accredited inspectors.   
 
Soil samples collected at 0.0-0.5-foot and 2.0-2.5-feet from all eight borings were analyzed for 
OCPs by EPA Method 8081A and 17CCR Total Metals by EPA Method 6010B/7471A.  A total 
of 16 soil samples were analyzed.  The 5.0-5.5 -foot samples were held pending results of the 
0.0-0.5-foot and 2.0-2.5-foot samples.  Concentrations of metals were detected in all 16 shallow 
soil samples analyzed and were within the accepted background range for metals in California 
soils.  Concentrations of chlordane, 4,4'-DDD,  4,4'-DDE, 4,4'-DDT, dieldrin, heptachlor, and 
heptachlor epoxide were reported in 13 of the 16 shallow soil samples analyzed for OCPs.  Only 
one concentration of chlordane reported at 9.8 mg/kg in B4 (0.5-foot) exceeded the San 
Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board (SFBRWQCB) Environmental Screening 
Level (ESL) for chlordane in commercial/industrial soil of 2.2 mg/kg.     
 
Soil samples collected at 0.0-0.5 feet and 2.0-2.5 feet from three borings in the vehicle parking 
area (B6, B7, and B8) were analyzed for VOCs by EPA Method 8260B and TPH (carbon chain) 
by EPA Method 8015B. The soil samples from 5.0-5.5 feet were held pending results of the 0.0-
0.5 and 2-2.5 feet samples.  Concentrations of TPH (motor oil range), toluene, and total xylenes 
were reported; however, none of the concentrations exceeded their respective ESLs.     
 
Three dust wipe samples were collected from the interior of the former shooting range structure 
to assess the presence of lead associated with the historic use as a shooting range.  Dust wipe 
samples were analyzed for total lead by EPA Method 6010B.  Concentrations in dust wipe 
samples N1, N2, and N3 were reported at 12,000 micrograms per square foot (µg/ft2), 140 
µg/ft2, and 49 µg/ft2, respectively.  Currently, there is no occupational exposure limit for lead 



Phase II Environmental Site Assessment  

Rincon Consultants
 

contamination on surfaces.  However, in a Federal compliance instruction for lead in the 
construction industry, the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) has 
provided a level of acceptable lead loading (surface dust levels) for non-lead work areas (clean 
areas outside lead work areas, such as lunchrooms, etc.) of 200 µg/ft2 (OSHA, 1993.   
 
Based on the findings of the LBP and ACBM survey conducted at the subject property by 
Stockton Environmental, Inc. (SEI), none of the 23 bulk samples collected for asbestos analysis 
were identified to contain levels of asbestos at or above the regulatory thresholds for asbestos.  
Four of the 10 samples collected for LBP analysis were found to be below the Consumer 
Product Safety Commission’s (CPSC) level of less than 0.06% lead by weight.  Six of the 10 
samples collected for LBP analysis were reported to be below OSHA’s definition of Lead Based 
Paint (0.5% by weight) but greater than the CPSC definition of “lead-free paint” (less than 
0.06% by weight).   None of the samples analyzed exceeded the Environmental Protection 
Agency’s (EPA’s) definition of “Lead Based Paint” (0.5% by weight or greater).  Additional 
details of the LBP and asbestos surveys performed for the subject property can be found in the 
full report, included as Appendix 1.   
 
It is Rincon’s understanding that future use of the subject property is intended to be 
commercial/industrial.  Based on the results of the soil assessment for the Phase II ESA and 
future intended use of the subject property as it has been presented to Rincon, no additional 
subsurface soil assessment is warranted. One sample (B4 at 0.5 fbg) had chlordane detected 
above the SFBRWQCB ESL for commercial land use.  This ESL is for direct exposure to the soil.  
The chlordane is likely from the historic agricultural use of the subject property before it was 
developed with the current structures.  The soil sample with the elevated concentration of 
chlordane was obtained from an area of exposed soil.  If the area near this boring is to be a 
place where people are allowed to access, then we recommend that this soil having elevated 
chlordane be removed and disposed offsite.   
 
Based on concentrations of lead reported to exceed 200 µg/ft2 in one of the dust wipe samples 
collected from the interior walls of the former shooting range, it is recommended that the lead 
dust be removed from the interior of the building.  Removal of lead dust should be conducted 
under the guidance of an Independent State Certified Consultant.    
 
Additionally, based on the findings of the LBP and ACBM survey conducted at the subject 
property by SEI, it is recommended that renovation/demolition activities of this project be 
considered “lead related construction work” in accordance with OSHA CCR Title 17, division 1, 
chapter. 8, article 1.    If suspect ACBM or painted surfaces not discussed in the attached report 
are discovered during future demolition/renovation operations, all general work activities 
which could impact the discovered painted surface should cease until confirmation sampling 
can be conducted  
 
Should the future intended use of the subject property differ from what has been presented to 
Rincon, additional subsurface assessment to further characterize the extent of impact from 
OCPs may be warranted.  Should offsite disposal of soils become necessary, additional soil 
samples may be required.  



Phase II Environmental Site Assessment  

Rincon Consultants
 

INTRODUCTION

This report presents the results of the subsurface soil investigation conducted by Rincon 
Consultants, Inc. for the City of Turlock at the site located at 1040 Flower Street, Turlock, 
California (Figure 1).  Based on the findings of our previous Phase I report dated November 15, 
2016, a subsurface investigation, which included soil sampling, a dust wipe, and a LBP and 
asbestos survey, was performed. 

PROJECT HISTORY 

A Phase I ESA was prepared for the subject site by Rincon (report dated November 15, 2016). 
The subject property is owned by the City of Turlock and is currently in use as the California 
National Guard Armory, occupied by the 149th Chemical Company.   
 
Based on the age of the buildings located onsite and the historic and current uses of the 
property by the National Guard as an Armory and shooting range, a subsurface soil 
investigation and LBP and asbestos surveys were conducted.       
 
PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

The purpose of the subsurface soil investigation was to identify if OCPs, metals, VOCs, or TPH 
are present in the soil beneath the subject property.    
 
Our scope of work included the following: 

Utility Notification.  Pre-mark boring locations and contact Underground Services 
Alert (USA) to mark areas where underground public utilities might be located in the 
drilling area.   

Soil Sampling. Eight soil borings (B1 through B8) were advanced throughout the 
subject property with a direct push drill rig to a depth of 5.0-5.5-feet bgs. Soil samples 
were collected from 0.0-0.5-, 2.0-2.5-, and 5.0-5.5- feet bgs from each soil boring.  

Dust Wipe Sampling. Three dust wipe samples (N1 through N3) were collected from 
the interior walls within the former shooting range located at the subject property.  

Laboratory Analysis.  Shallow soil samples collected from 0.0-0.5-foot and 2.0-2.5-feet 
bgs in all eight borings were analyzed for OCPs by EPA Method 8081A and 17CCR 
Total Metals by EPA Method 6010B/7471A.  A total of 16 soil samples were analyzed.  
Soil samples collected at 0.0-0.5-foot and 2.0-2.5-feet from three borings in the vehicle 
parking area (B6, B7, and B8) were also analyzed for VOCs by EPA Method 8260B TPH 
by EPA Method 8015B.  Based on the laboratory results of the shallow soil samples, the 
5.0-5.5-feet samples were not analyzed.  Dust wipe samples were analyzed for lead by 
EPA Method 6010B.   

Lead Based Paint and Asbestos Survey.  Due to the age of the main building on the 
subject property (built prior to 1963), LBP and ACBM surveys were conducted by SEI of 
Stockton, California by accredited inspectors.   

Reporting.  Prepare this report documenting our findings. 



Phase II Environmental Site Assessment  

Rincon Consultants
 

GEOLOGIC AND HYDROGEOLOGIC SETTING

TOPOGRAPHY 

The current USGS topographic map (Turlock Quadrangle, 2012) indicates that the subject 
property is situated at an elevation of about 95 feet above mean sea level with topography 
sloping down to the southwest. The adjacent topography is generally flat. 

SITE GEOLOGY 

According to the California Geologic Survey (1967), the subject property is underlain by 
alluvium, lake, playa, and terrace deposits; unconsolidated and semi-consolidated. Mostly 
nonmarine, but includes marine deposits near the coast from the Pleistocene-Holocene era.  Soil 
matrix boring logs of B1-B8 are included as Appendix 2.  
 
REGIONAL GROUNDWATER OCCURRENCE AND QUALITY 

The site is located within the San Joaquin Valley groundwater basin.  During the preparation of 
this Phase I ESA, we reviewed the California State Water Resources Control Board’s (SWRCB’s) 
online GeoTracker database to determine groundwater flow direction in the vicinity for the site.  
According to groundwater monitoring reports for a former ARCO station located at 1030 West 
Main Street (about 845 feet south of the subject property), the depth to groundwater is about 81 
feet bgs and flows to the southwest. 

METHODOLOGY 

On January 13, 2017 a direct push rig was used to advance eight soil borings to a depth of 5.5-
feet bgs (Figure 2). The work was conducted by TEG Northern California, Inc. of Rancho 
Cordova, California, under the direct supervision of Rincon Consultants.  Soil matrix samples 
were collected at 0.0-0.5-foot, 2.0-2.5- feet, and 5.0-5.5-feet bgs from each soil boring.  In 
addition to the soil matrix samples, Rincon personnel collected three dust wipe samples from 
the interior of the former shooting range structure to assess the presence of lead associated with 
the historic use of the building as a shooting range.  

Additionally, because the main building on the subject property was built prior to 1963, LBP 
and ACBM surveys were conducted by SEI.  The survey was completed by a California 
Certified Asbestos Consultant and State of California Department of Health Services (DHS) 
Certified Lead Inspector/Assessor and included a visual reconnaissance of the onsite structures 
to evaluate the possible presence of asbestos-containing materials and lead-based paint coated 
surfaces, as well as the collection of building material samples and paint chip samples for 
laboratory analysis. 

 



Phase II Environmental Site Assessment  

Rincon Consultants
 

SOIL BORING ADVANCEMENT AND SAMPLING

Eight soil borings (B1 through B8) were advanced at the subject property using a direct push 
drill rig (Figure 2).   Soil borings were advanced to a total depth of 5-feet bgs.  Soil matrix 
boring logs are included as Appendix 2.    
 
Soil samples were collected at 0.0-0.5-foot, 2.0-2.5-feet, and 5.0-5.5-feet bgs from each of the 
eight soil borings.  The soil samples were collected in acetate sleeves and/or 8-ounce glass jars, 
which were properly labeled and stored in a cooler with ice for delivery to a state-accredited 
analytical laboratory under chain-of-custody documentation. 
  
LEAD DUST SAMPLING   

Three dust wipe samples were collected from the interior of the former shooting range structure 
to assess the presence of lead associated with the historic use of the building as a shooting 
range.  Samples were collected from interior wall faces, approximately 3-feet above the interior 
floor (Figure 2).  Dust wipe samples were stored in glass jars for delivery to a state-accredited 
analytical laboratory under chain-of-custody documentation. 
 
LEAD BASED PAINT AND ASBESTOS SAMPLING   

 
Stockton Environmental collected 10 paint chip samples at the subject property.  The samples 
were collected, sealed in sampling containers, and delivered to an accredited laboratory for 
analysis.  Additionally, 23 representative bulk samples were collected for asbestos analysis. 
Samples were collected from materials such as roofing materials, drywall joint compound, 
vinyl sheet flooring, sprayed acoustic ceiling material and exterior stucco.  The samples were 
collected, sealed in sampling containers, and delivered to an accredited laboratory for analysis.   
 
LABORATORY ANALYSIS 

A total of 24 soil matrix samples and three dust wipe samples were sent to BC Laboratories, 
Inc., of Bakersfield, California.  Shallow soil matrix samples (0.0-0.5-foot and 2.0-2.5-feet bgs) 
from all eight borings were analyzed for OCPs by EPA Method 8081A and 17CCR Total Metals 
by EPA Method 6010B/7471A.  Soil samples collected at 0.0-0.5 feet and 2.0-2.5 feet from three 
borings in the vehicle parking area (B6, B7, and B8) were also analyzed for VOCs by EPA 
Method 8260B and TPH (carbon chain) by EPA Method 8015B.  A total of 16 soil samples were 
analyzed.  The 5.0-5.5 -foot samples from all eight borings were held pending results of the 0.0-
0.5-foot and 2.0-2.5-foot samples; however, based on the laboratory analytical results from the 
shallow soil samples, none of the 5.0-5.5-foot soil samples were analyzed.  The three dust wipe 
samples were analyzed for total lead by EPA Method 6010B.   
    
Paint chip samples collected by SEI for the presence of LBP were analyzed for lead by 
AA/Flame in accordance with the EPA’s Method 7420, and samples collected for the presence 
of ACBM were analyzed for asbestos by Polarized Light Microscopy (PLM).  Samples were 
collected using EPA sampling procedures.   
  
 



P
h

a
s

e
 I

I 
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
S

it
e

 A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

 

R
in

c
o

n
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 

R
E

S
U

L
T

S

Ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 in

te
nd

ed
 u

se
 o

f t
he

 s
ub

je
ct

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
an

d 
th

e 
de

pt
h 

to
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 b

en
ea

th
 

th
e 

si
te

 (a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

80
 fe

et
 b

gs
), 

so
il 

m
at

ri
x 

an
al

yt
ic

al
 r

es
ul

ts
 w

er
e 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

/i
nd

us
tr

ia
l E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 L

ev
el

s 
(E

SL
) f

or
 s

ha
llo

w
 s

oi
l d

ir
ec

t e
xp

os
ur

e 
to

 h
um

an
 h

ea
lth

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

by
 th

e 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o 

Ba
y 

R
eg

io
na

l W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tr

ol
 B

oa
rd

 
(S

FB
R

W
Q

C
B)

.  
ES

Ls
 p

ro
vi

de
 c

on
se

rv
at

iv
e 

sc
re

en
in

g 
le

ve
ls

 fo
r 

ov
er

 1
00

 c
he

m
ic

al
s.

   
 C

ur
re

nt
ly

, t
he

re
 is

 n
o 

oc
cu

pa
tio

na
l e

xp
os

ur
e 

lim
it 

fo
r 

le
ad

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n 

on
 s

ur
fa

ce
s.

  
H

ow
ev

er
, i

n 
a 

Fe
de

ra
l c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
in

st
ru

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
le

ad
 in

 th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

in
du

st
ry

, O
SH

A
 h

as
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
 le

ve
l o

f a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

le
ad

 lo
ad

in
g 

(s
ur

fa
ce

 d
us

t l
ev

el
s)

 fo
r 

no
n-

le
ad

 w
or

k 
ar

ea
s 

(c
le

an
 

ar
ea

s 
ou

ts
id

e 
le

ad
 w

or
k 

ar
ea

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 lu

nc
hr

oo
m

s,
 e

tc
.) 

of
 2

00
 µ

g/
ft

2 . 
 W

hi
le

 n
ot

 a
 le

ga
lly

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 th
re

sh
ol

d 
va

lu
e,

 2
00

 µ
g/

ft
2 

 is
 u

se
d 

as
 th

e 
su

gg
es

te
d 

in
du

st
ry

 g
ui

de
lin

e 
fo

r 
cl

ea
nl

in
es

s 
in

 p
ub

lic
 s

pa
ce

s 
(O

SH
A

, 1
99

3)
.  

 

S
O

IL
 M

A
T

R
IX

 L
A

B
O

R
A

T
O

R
Y

 R
E

S
U

L
T

S

Th
e 

an
al

yt
ic

al
 r

es
ul

ts
 o

f t
he

 s
oi

l m
at

ri
x 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
ar

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 T

ab
le

s 
1 

th
ro

ug
h 

3.
  

C
op

ie
s 

of
 th

e 
la

bo
ra

to
ry

 a
na

ly
tic

al
 r

ep
or

ts
 a

re
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
3.

   

C
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

ns
 o

f m
et

al
s 

w
er

e 
de

te
ct

ed
 in

 a
ll 

16
 s

ha
llo

w
 s

oi
l s

am
pl

es
 a

na
ly

ze
d.

  N
on

e 
of

 th
e 

co
nc

en
tr

at
io

ns
 o

f m
et

al
s 

w
er

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 a

bo
ve

 th
ei

r 
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

ES
L 

fo
r 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

/i
nd

us
tr

ia
l 

sh
al

lo
w

 s
oi

l w
ith

 th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 a
rs

en
ic

 w
ith

 c
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

ns
 r

an
gi

ng
 fr

om
 0

.5
0J

 m
g/

kg
 to

 1
.4

 
m

g/
kg

 (w
he

re
 a

 “
J”

 q
ua

lif
ie

r 
de

no
te

s 
an

 e
st

im
at

ed
 v

al
ue

). 
 A

lth
ou

gh
 th

es
e 

co
nc

en
tr

at
io

ns
 o

f 
ar

se
ni

c 
ex

ce
ed

ed
 th

e 
ES

L 
fo

r 
ar

se
ni

c 
of

 0
.3

1 
m

g/
kg

, c
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

ns
 o

f a
rs

en
ic

 w
er

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 b
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

ra
ng

e 
(0

.6
 m

g/
kg

–1
1 

m
g/

kg
) f

or
 tr

ac
e 

an
d 

m
aj

or
 e

le
m

en
ts

 in
 C

al
if

or
ni

a 
so

ils
, a

s 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

by
 th

e 
by

 K
ea

rn
ey

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

(1
99

6)
.  

M
et

al
s 

ca
n 

be
 n

at
ur

al
ly

 o
cc

ur
ri

ng
 in

 
so

il 
an

d 
th

e 
an

al
yt

ic
al

 r
es

ul
ts

 in
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 th

e 
de

te
ct

ed
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

tio
ns

 o
f m

et
al

s 
in

 th
e 

so
il 

sa
m

pl
es

  w
er

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 b
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

va
lu

es
 o

f m
et

al
s 

in
 C

al
if

or
ni

a 
so

il.
   

C
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

ns
 o

f c
hl

or
da

ne
, 4

,4
'-D

D
D

,  
4,

4'
-D

D
E,

 4
,4

'-D
D

T,
 d

ie
ld

ri
n,

 h
ep

ta
ch

lo
r,

 a
nd

 
he

pt
ac

hl
or

 e
po

xi
de

 w
er

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 in

 1
3 

of
 th

e 
16

 s
ha

llo
w

 s
oi

l s
am

pl
es

 a
na

ly
ze

d 
fo

r 
O

C
Ps

; 
ho

w
ev

er
, o

nl
y 

on
e 

co
nc

en
tr

at
io

n 
of

 c
hl

or
da

ne
 r

ep
or

te
d 

at
 9

.8
 m

g/
kg

 in
 B

4 
(0

.5
-f

oo
t)

 e
xc

ee
de

d 
th

e 
ES

L 
fo

r 
ch

lo
rd

an
e 

of
 2

.2
 m

g/
kg

.  
 

 C
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

ns
 o

f T
PH

 (m
ot

or
 o

il 
ra

ng
e)

 w
er

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 in

 tw
o 

of
 th

e 
si

x 
sh

al
lo

w
 s

oi
l m

at
ri

x 
sa

m
pl

es
 a

na
ly

ze
d,

 a
t c

on
ce

nt
ra

tio
ns

 o
f 7

5 
m

g/
kg

 (B
8,

 0
.5

-f
oo

t)
 a

nd
 5

50
 m

g/
kg

 (B
7,

 0
.5

-f
oo

t)
.  

N
o 

V
O

C
s 

w
er

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 in

 th
e 

si
x 

so
il 

m
at

ri
x 

sa
m

pl
es

 a
na

ly
ze

d,
 w

ith
 th

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

of
 to

ta
l 

xy
le

ne
s 

an
d 

to
lu

en
e,

 r
an

gi
ng

 in
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

tio
n 

fr
om

 0
.0

03
4J

 m
g/

kg
 to

 0
.0

04
7J

 m
g/

kg
, a

nd
 

0.
00

48
 m

g/
kg

 to
 0

.0
08

4 
m

g/
kg

, r
es

pe
ct

iv
el

y.
  N

on
e 

of
 th

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

tio
ns

 o
f T

PH
, t

ot
al

 
xy

le
ne

s,
 o

r 
to

lu
en

e 
ex

ce
ed

ed
 th

ei
r 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
ES

L.
  B

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

an
al

yt
ic

al
 r

es
ul

ts
 fr

om
 th

e 
sh

al
lo

w
 s

oi
l s

am
pl

es
, n

on
e 

of
 th

e 
5.

0-
5.

5-
fo

ot
 s

am
pl

es
 w

er
e 

an
al

yz
ed

.  
  

 D
U

S
T

 W
IP

E
 L

A
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y
 R

E
S

U
L

T
S

 

C
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

ns
 in

 d
us

t w
ip

e 
sa

m
pl

es
 N

1,
 N

2,
 a

nd
 N

3 
w

er
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 a
t 1

2,
00

0 
m

ic
ro

gr
am

s 
pe

r 
sq

ua
re

 fo
ot

 (µ
g/

ft
2 )

, 1
40

 µ
g/

ft
2 , 

an
d 

49
 µ

g/
ft

2 , 
re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
  A

lth
ou

gh
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
oc

cu
pa

tio
na

l 
ex

po
su

re
 li

m
it 

fo
r 

le
ad

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n 

on
 s

ur
fa

ce
s,

 d
us

t w
ip

e 
sa

m
pl

e 
N

1 
ex

ce
ed

s 
O

SH
A

’s
 



P
h

a
s

e
 I

I 
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
S

it
e

 A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

 

R
in

c
o

n
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 

su
gg

es
te

d 
in

du
st

ry
 g

ui
de

lin
e 

fo
r 

cl
ea

nl
in

es
s 

in
 p

ub
lic

 s
pa

ce
s 

of
 2

00
 µ

g/
ft

2 . 
 A

 s
um

m
ar

y 
of

 
la

bo
ra

to
ry

 a
na

ly
tic

al
 d

at
a 

is
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 in
 T

ab
le

 4
 a

nd
 a

 c
op

y 
of

 th
e 

la
bo

ra
to

ry
 a

na
ly

tic
al

 r
ep

or
t 

is
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
3.

   
 L

B
P

 A
N

D
 A

S
B

E
S

T
O

S
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
 R

E
S

U
L

T
S

 

Ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

fi
nd

in
gs

 o
f t

he
 L

BP
 a

nd
 A

C
BM

 s
ur

ve
y 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
at

 th
e 

su
bj

ec
t p

ro
pe

rt
y 

by
 

St
oc

kt
on

 E
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l, 

In
c.

, n
on

e 
of

 th
e 

23
 b

ul
k 

sa
m

pl
es

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 fo

r 
as

be
st

os
 a

na
ly

si
s 

w
er

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

to
 c

on
ta

in
 le

ve
ls

 o
f a

sb
es

to
s 

at
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 th

re
sh

ol
ds

 fo
r 

as
be

st
os

.  
Fo

ur
 

of
 th

e 
10

 s
am

pl
es

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 fo

r 
LB

P 
an

al
ys

is
 w

er
e 

fo
un

d 
to

 b
e 

be
lo

w
 th

e 
C

PS
C

 le
ve

l o
f l

es
s 

th
an

 
0.

06
%

 le
ad

 b
y 

w
ei

gh
t. 

 S
ix

 o
f t

he
 1

0 
sa

m
pl

es
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 fo
r 

LB
P 

an
al

ys
is

 w
er

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 to

 b
e 

be
lo

w
 O

SH
A

’s
 d

ef
in

iti
on

 o
f L

ea
d 

Ba
se

d 
Pa

in
t (

0.
5%

 b
y 

w
ei

gh
t)

 b
ut

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 th
e 

C
PS

C
 

de
fi

ni
tio

n 
of

 “
le

ad
-f

re
e 

pa
in

t (
le

ss
 th

an
 0

.0
6%

 b
y 

w
ei

gh
t)

.  
 N

on
e 

of
 th

e 
sa

m
pl

es
 a

na
ly

ze
d 

ex
ce

ed
ed

 th
e 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

A
ge

nc
y’

s 
EP

A
’s

 d
ef

in
iti

on
 o

f “
Le

ad
 B

as
ed

 P
ai

nt
” 

(0
.5

%
 

by
 w

ei
gh

t o
r 

gr
ea

te
r)

.  
A

dd
iti

on
al

 d
et

ai
ls

 o
f t

he
 L

BP
 a

nd
 a

sb
es

to
s 

su
rv

ey
s 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 fo

r 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ca

n 
be

 fo
un

d 
in

 th
e 

St
oc

kt
on

 E
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l, 

In
c.

 fu
ll 

re
po

rt
, i

nc
lu

de
d 

as
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
1.

   
 

C
O

N
C

L
U

S
IO

N
S

 

It
 is

 R
in

co
n’

s 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

th
at

 fu
tu

re
 u

se
 o

f t
he

 s
ub

je
ct

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
is

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 b

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
/i

nd
us

tr
ia

l. 
 B

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f t
he

 s
oi

l a
ss

es
sm

en
t f

or
 th

e 
Ph

as
e 

II
 E

SA
 a

nd
 

fu
tu

re
 in

te
nd

ed
 u

se
 o

f t
he

 s
ub

je
ct

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
as

 it
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 R
in

co
n,

 n
o 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
su

bs
ur

fa
ce

 s
oi

l a
ss

es
sm

en
t i

s 
w

ar
ra

nt
ed

.  
O

ne
 s

am
pl

e 
(B

4 
at

 0
.5

 fb
g)

 h
ad

 c
hl

or
da

ne
 d

et
ec

te
d 

ab
ov

e 
th

e 
SF

BR
W

Q
C

B 
ES

L 
fo

r 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 la

nd
 u

se
.  

Th
is

 E
SL

 is
 fo

r 
di

re
ct

 e
xp

os
ur

e 
to

 th
e 

so
il.

  
Th

e 
ch

lo
rd

an
e 

is
 li

ke
ly

 fr
om

 th
e 

hi
st

or
ic

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l u
se

 o
f t

he
 s

ub
je

ct
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

be
fo

re
 it

 w
as

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t s

tr
uc

tu
re

s.
  T

he
 s

oi
l s

am
pl

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
el

ev
at

ed
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

tio
n 

of
 

ch
lo

rd
an

e 
w

as
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

fr
om

 a
n 

ar
ea

 o
f e

xp
os

ed
 s

oi
l. 

 If
 th

e 
ar

ea
 n

ea
r 

th
is

 b
or

in
g 

is
 to

 b
e 

a 
pl

ac
e 

w
he

re
 p

eo
pl

e 
ar

e 
al

lo
w

ed
 to

 a
cc

es
s,

 th
en

 w
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
is

 s
oi

l h
av

in
g 

el
ev

at
ed

 
ch

lo
rd

an
e 

be
 r

em
ov

ed
 a

nd
 d

is
po

se
d 

of
fs

ite
.  

 
 Ba

se
d 

on
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

tio
ns

 o
f l

ea
d 

re
po

rt
ed

 to
 e

xc
ee

d 
20

0 
µg

/f
t2

in
 o

ne
 o

f t
he

 d
us

t w
ip

e 
sa

m
pl

es
 

co
lle

ct
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

in
te

ri
or

 w
al

ls
 o

f t
he

 fo
rm

er
 s

ho
ot

in
g 

ra
ng

e,
 it

 is
 r

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 th
e 

le
ad

 
du

st
 b

e 
re

m
ov

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
in

te
ri

or
 o

f t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g.
  R

em
ov

al
 o

f l
ea

d 
du

st
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 

un
de

r 
th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

f a
n 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t S

ta
te

 C
er

tif
ie

d 
C

on
su

lta
nt

.  
  

 A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
fi

nd
in

gs
 o

f t
he

 L
BP

 a
nd

 A
C

BM
 s

ur
ve

y 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

at
 th

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
pr

op
er

ty
 b

y 
St

oc
kt

on
 E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l, 
In

c.
, S

EI
 r

ec
om

m
en

ds
 th

at
 r

en
ov

at
io

n/
de

m
ol

iti
on

 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 o

f t
hi

s 
pr

oj
ec

t b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 “

le
ad

 r
el

at
ed

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
w

or
k”

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 

O
SH

A
 C

C
R

 T
itl

e 
17

, d
iv

is
io

n 
1,

 c
ha

pt
er

. 8
, a

rt
ic

le
 1

.  
  I

f s
us

pe
ct

 A
C

BM
 o

r 
pa

in
te

d 
su

rf
ac

es
 n

ot
 

di
sc

us
se

d 
in

 th
e 

at
ta

ch
ed

 r
ep

or
t a

re
 d

is
co

ve
re

d 
du

ri
ng

 fu
tu

re
 d

em
ol

iti
on

/r
en

ov
at

io
n 

op
er

at
io

ns
, a

ll 
ge

ne
ra

l w
or

k 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 im

pa
ct

 th
e 

di
sc

ov
er

ed
 p

ai
nt

ed
 s

ur
fa

ce
 

sh
ou

ld
 c

ea
se

 u
nt

il 
co

nf
ir

m
at

io
n 

sa
m

pl
in

g 
ca

n 
be

 c
on

du
ct

ed
  

 Sh
ou

ld
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 in
te

nd
ed

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 s

ub
je

ct
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

di
ff

er
 fr

om
 w

ha
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 
R

in
co

n,
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
ub

su
rf

ac
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t t

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ch

ar
ac

te
ri

ze
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 o
f i

m
pa

ct
 fr

om
 



P
h

a
s

e
 I

I 
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
S

it
e

 A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

 

R
in

c
o

n
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 

O
C

Ps
 m

ay
 b

e 
w

ar
ra

nt
ed

.  
Sh

ou
ld

 o
ff

si
te

 d
is

po
sa

l o
f s

oi
ls

 b
ec

om
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y,
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
oi

l 
sa

m
pl

es
 m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
ir

ed
.  

  

L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

Th
is

 r
ep

or
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r 

an
d 

is
 in

te
nd

ed
 fo

r 
th

e 
ex

cl
us

iv
e 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
C

ity
 o

f T
ur

lo
ck

.  
Th

e 
co

nt
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t b

e 
re

lie
d 

up
on

 b
y 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
pa

rt
y 

w
ith

ou
t t

he
 w

ri
tt

en
 

co
ns

en
t o

f R
in

co
n 

C
on

su
lta

nt
s,

 In
c.

 

O
ur

 c
on

cl
us

io
ns

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 th

e 
su

bj
ec

t p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f a

 li
m

ite
d 

sa
m

pl
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
.  

Th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f t
hi

s 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

ar
e 

qu
al

if
ie

d 
by

 th
e 

fa
ct

 th
at

 o
nl

y 
lim

ite
d 

sa
m

pl
in

g 
an

d 
an

al
ys

is
 w

as
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

th
is

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t. 

 

Th
is

 s
co

pe
 w

as
 n

ot
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 c
om

pl
et

el
y 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
th

e 
qu

an
tit

ie
s 

an
d 

di
st

ri
bu

tio
n 

of
 

co
nt

am
in

an
ts

 p
re

se
nt

 a
t t

he
 s

ub
je

ct
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

or
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

co
st

 to
 r

em
ed

ia
te

 th
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

pr
op

er
ty

.  
Th

e 
co

nc
en

tr
at

io
ns

 o
f c

on
ta

m
in

an
ts

 m
ea

su
re

d 
at

 a
ny

 g
iv

en
 lo

ca
tio

n 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

of
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 a
t o

th
er

 lo
ca

tio
ns

.  
Fu

rt
he

r,
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 m
ay

 c
ha

ng
e 

at
 a

ny
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 lo

ca
tio

n 
as

 a
 fu

nc
tio

n 
of

 ti
m

e 
in

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 n
at

ur
al

 c
on

di
tio

ns
, c

he
m

ic
al

 r
ea

ct
io

ns
 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ev

en
ts

.  
C

on
cl

us
io

ns
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 s

ub
je

ct
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

do
 n

ot
 r

ep
re

se
nt

 
a 

w
ar

ra
nt

y 
th

at
 a

ll 
ar

ea
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
su

bj
ec

t p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ar

e 
si

m
ila

r 
to

 th
os

e 
sa

m
pl

ed
. 



P
h

a
s

e
 I

I 
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
S

it
e

 A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

 

R
in

c
o

n
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 

R
E

FE
R

E
N

C
E

S
 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 w

er
e 

us
ed

 in
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 P
ha

se
 II

 E
SA

: 

R
in

co
n 

C
on

su
lta

nt
s,

 P
ha

se
 I 

E
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l S

it
e 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
15

, 2
01

6.
  

 C
al

if
or

ni
a 

G
eo

lo
gi

c 
Su

rv
ey

 (C
G

S)
, G

eo
lo

gi
c 

A
tl

as
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 M

ap
 N

o.
 0

09
,1

96
7.

 
 U

SG
S 

to
po

gr
ap

hi
c 

m
ap

, 2
01

2,
 T

ur
lo

ck
 Q

ua
dr

an
gl

e.
 

 C
al

if
or

ni
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f W
at

er
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 (D
W

R
), 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
’s

 G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 B
ul

le
ti

n 
11

8,
 

20
03

.  

 R
eg

io
na

l W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tr

ol
 B

oa
rd

 (R
W

Q
C

B)
 o

nl
in

e 
da

ta
ba

se
 (G

eo
T

ra
ck

er
). 

 
 Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o 

Ba
y 

R
eg

io
na

l W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tr

ol
 B

oa
rd

, E
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 L
ev

el
s,

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
, 2

01
6.

 
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f C

al
if

or
ni

a,
 K

ea
rn

ey
 F

ou
nd

at
io

n 
B

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
C

on
ce

nt
ra

ti
on

s 
of

 T
ra

ce
 a

nd
 M

aj
or

 
E

le
m

en
ts

 in
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 S
oi

ls
, 1

99
6.

 
 O

cc
up

at
io

na
l S

af
et

y 
an

d 
H

ea
lth

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

(O
SH

A
), 

O
SH

A
 In

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

P
L 

2-
2.

58
, 

29
 C

FR
 1

92
6.

62
  L

ea
d 

E
xp

os
ur

e 
In

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 D

ec
em

be
r 

13
, 1

99
3.

 



T
ab

le
s 



S
o

il
 

B
o

ri
n

g

S
a

m
p

li
n

g
 

D
e

p
th

(f
e

e
t 

b
g

s
)

C
h

lo
rd

a
n

e
4

,4
'-

D
D

D
4

,4
'-

D
D

E
4

,4
'-

D
D

T
D

ie
ld

ri
n

H
e

p
ta

c
h

lo
r

H
e

p
ta

c
h

lo
r 

E
p

o
x

id
e

O
th

e
r 

O
C

P
s

 

9
.8

2
.2

1
2

8
.5

8
.5

0
.1

7
0

.6
0

0.
3

0
V

a
ri

es

B
o

ld

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l R

W
Q

C
B

 E
S

L

T
a

b
le

 1



S
o

il
B

o
ri

n
g

S
am

p
li

n
g

 
D

e
p

th
(f

ee
t 

b
g

s)
A

n
ti

m
o

n
y 

A
rs

e
n

ic
 

B
ar

iu
m

 
B

er
yl

li
u

m
 

C
a

d
m

iu
m

 
C

h
ro

m
iu

m
 

C
o

b
al

t 
C

o
p

p
e

r 
L

ea
d

 
M

er
c

u
ry

 
M

o
ly

b
d

e
n

u
m

N
ic

k
el

 
S

el
e

n
iu

m
 

S
il

ve
r 

T
h

al
li

u
m

 
V

an
ad

iu
m

 
Z

in
c 

1.
2

1.
5

1.
2

0.
78

J

1.
4

0.
62

J

1.
1

0.
51

J

0.
50

J

0.
60

J

0.
86

J

0.
15

 -
 1

.9
5

0.
6 

- 
11

13
3 

- 
1,

40
0

0.
25

 -
  2

.7
0

0.
05

 -
 1

.7
0

23
 -

 1
,5

79
2.

7 
- 

46
.9

9.
1 

- 
96

.4
12

.4
 -

 9
7.

1
0.

05
 -

 0
.9

0
0.

1 
- 

9.
6

9.
0 

- 
50

9
0.

01
5 

- 
0.

43
0

0.
10

 -
 8

.3
0.

17
- 

1.
1

39
 -

 2
88

88
 -

 2
36

47
0

0.
31

22
0,

00
0

2,
20

0
58

0
N

E
35

0
47

,0
00

32
0

19
0

5,
80

0
11

,0
00

5,
80

0
5,

80
0

12
.0

0
5,

80
0

35
0,

00
0

B
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

C
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

ns
 o

f T
ra

ce
 a

nd
 M

aj
or

 E
le

m
en

ts
 in

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 S

oi
ls

, 

B
o

ld

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 R
W

Q
C

B
 E

S
L

B
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

C
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

n

T
ab

le
 2



S
o

il 
B

o
ri

n
g

S
a

m
p

lin
g

 
D

e
p

th
(f

ee
t 

b
g

s
)

T
P

H
 -

 G
a

s
o

lin
e

T
P

H
 -

 D
ie

s
e

l 
T

P
H

 -
 M

o
to

r 
O

il 
T

o
lu

e
n

e
T

o
ta

l X
yl

en
es

p
- 

an
d

 m
- 

X
yl

en
es

o
- 

X
yl

e
n

e
s

 O
th

e
r 

V
O

C
s

3
,9

00
1

,1
00

14
0,

00
0

4,
6

00
2,

4
00

-
-

V
ar

ie
s

T
ab

le
 3

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l R

W
Q

C
B

 E
S

L



W
ip

e
S

a
m

p
le

L
ea

d

(µ
g

/f
t2 )

O
S

H
A

 S
u

gg
e

st
e

d 
T

h
re

sh
ol

d
20

0

T
a

b
le

 4



Fi
gu

re
s 







 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
  

Le
ad

 B
as

ed
 P

ai
nt

 a
nd

 A
sb

es
to

s 
C

on
ta

in
in

g 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 R

ep
or

t 
  



 
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

31
9 

E
. B

an
bu

ry
 D

r.
, S

to
ck

to
n

 C
A

 9
52

07
 T

el
 (

20
9)

 4
51

-3
01

7 
w

w
w

.s
to

ck
to

ne
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l.c

om
 

 

S
T

O
C

K
T

O
N

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

,I
N

C
.

C
O

N
D

U
C

T
E

D
 A

T
:

10
40

 F
lo

w
er

 S
t.

T
ur

lo
ck

, C
A

 9
53

80

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
:

R
in

co
n 

C
on

su
lt

an
ts

, I
nc

18
0 

N
. A

sh
w

oo
d 

A
ve

.
V

en
tu

ra
, C

A
 9

30
03

C
/o

 S
av

an
na

 V
re

vi
ch

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

:

S
to

ck
to

n 
E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l, 
In

c.
R

ep
or

t N
o.

 0
05

.1
7a

sb
/p

b
01

/2
0/

17



A
sb

es
to

s 
an

d 
L

ea
d 

Sa
m

pl
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

00
5.

17
as

b/
pb

 
10

40
 F

lo
w

er
 S

t. 
pg

. 2

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F 
C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 S

um
m

ar
y

P
ag

e 
3

-
6

S
ur

ve
y 

M
et

ho
do

lo
gy

P
ag

e 
6

L
ab

or
at

or
y 

R
es

ul
ts

P
ag

e 
6 

-
8

R
ec

om
m

en
da

ti
on

s
P

ag
e 

8

E
xc

lu
si

on
s 

an
d 

R
ep

or
t L

im
it

at
io

ns
P

ag
e 

9

S
it

e 
D

ia
gr

am
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

P
L

M
 L

ab
or

at
or

y 
R

ep
or

t
A

pp
en

di
x 

B

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

on
A

pp
en

di
x 

C



A
sb

es
to

s 
an

d 
L

ea
d 

Sa
m

pl
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

00
5.

17
as

b/
pb

 
10

40
 F

lo
w

er
 S

t. 
pg

. 3

O
n

Ja
nu

ar
y 

13
, 

20
17

,
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 
an

 
in

sp
ec

ti
on

 
fo

r 
A

sb
es

to
s-

C
on

ta
in

in
g 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 (

A
C

M
) 

an
d 

L
ea

d 
B

as
ed

 P
ai

nt
 (

L
B

P
).

 M
r.

 D
w

ay
ne

 G
. M

cA
ll

is
te

r,
 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
e 

nu
m

be
r 

92
-0

21
3,

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 a

sb
es

to
s 

co
ns

ul
tin

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 f

or
 S

E
I.

  
M

r.
G

ab
ri

el
 M

un
oz

 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

le
ad

 s
am

pl
e 

co
ll

ec
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 f

or
 S

E
I,

 a
 C

al
if

or
ni

a 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 P
ub

li
c 

H
ea

lt
h 

(C
D

P
H

) 
ac

cr
ed

it
ed

 S
am

pl
in

g 
T

ec
hn

ic
ia

n 
C

D
P

H
 #

 2
76

26
 u

nd
er

 t
he

 d
ir

ec
ti

on
 o

f 
M

r.
 R

an
do

lp
h 

B
ro

ok
e,

 a
 P

ub
li

c 
H

ea
lt

h 
(C

D
P

H
) 

ac
cr

ed
it

ed
 I

ns
pe

ct
or

, C
D

PH
 #

24
41

8.

in
sp

ec
ti

on
s 

w
er

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

to
 i

de
nt

if
y 

th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f 

an
y 

R
eg

ul
at

ed
 A

sb
es

to
s 

C
on

ta
in

in
g 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 (

R
A

C
M

) 
(w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
sp

ec
if

ie
d 

sc
op

e)
 i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h 
th

e 
Fe

de
ra

l 
E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
A

ge
nc

y 
R

eg
ul

at
io

n 
40

 C
FR

 P
ar

t 
76

3.
85

 a
nd

 t
he

 S
an

 J
oa

qu
in

 V
al

le
y 

A
ir

 P
ol

lu
ti

on
 

C
on

tr
ol

 D
is

tr
ic

t (
S

JV
A

PC
D

) 
A

sb
es

to
s 

N
ot

if
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
In

sp
ec

ti
on

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
.

in
sp

ec
ti

on
 w

as
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f 
le

ad
 f

or
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

it
h 

th
e 

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l 
S

af
et

y 
an

d 
H

ea
l

P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

A
ge

nc
ie

s 
(E

PA
) 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 p
er

ta
in

in
g 

to
 w

or
ke

r 
pr

ot
ec

ti
on

 a
nd

 w
as

te
 

di
sp

os
al

.

N
ot

e;
 th

is
 in

sp
ec

ti
on

 w
as

 li
m

it
ed

 to
 s

pe
ci

fi
c 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 in
 th

is
 r

ep
or

t.

1.
0%

 o
r 

gr
ea

te
r 

of
 a

sb
es

to
s 

by
 w

ei
gh

t.

as
 0

.1
%

 o
r 

gr
ea

te
r 

as
be

st
os

 b
y 

w
ei

gh
t.

C
al

if
or

ni
a 

B
us

in
es

s 
&

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
ns

 C
od

e 
D

iv
is

io
n 

3,
 C

ha
pt

er
 9

. C
on

tr
ac

to
rs

, 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

. C
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
ns

70
58

.5
. (

a)
N

o 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll
 e

ng
ag

e 
in

 a
sb

es
to

s-
re

la
te

d 
w

or
k,

 a
s 

de
fi

ne
d 

in
 S

ec
ti

on
 6

50
1.

8 
of

 th
e 

L
ab

or
 C

od
e,

 w
hi

ch
 in

vo
lv

es
 1

00
 

sq
ua

re
 f

ee
t o

r 
m

or
e 

of
 s

ur
fa

ce
 a

re
a 

of
 a

sb
es

to
s 

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 m

at
er

ia
ls

, u
nl

es
s 

th
e 

qu
al

if
ie

r 
fo

r 
th

e 
li

ce
ns

e 
pa

ss
es

 a
n 

as
be

st
os

 c
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

on
 e

xa
m

in
at

io
n.

 

L
oc

al
 A

ir
 Q

ua
li

ty
 D

is
tr

ic
t d

ef
in

e 
as

be
st

os
 a

s

R
A

C
M

 
R

eg
ul

at
ed

 
A

sb
es

to
s 

C
on

ta
in

in
g 

M
at

er
ia

l 
m

ea
ns

 
(a

) 
fr

ia
bl

e 
A

C
M

, 
(b

) 
C

at
eg

or
y 

I 
no

n-
fr

ia
bl

e 
A

C
M

 t
ha

t 
ha

s 
be

co
m

e 
fr

ia
bl

e,
 (

c)
 C

at
eg

or
y 

I 
no

n-
fr

ia
bl

e 
A

C
M

 
th

at
 w

il
l 

be
 s

ub
je

ct
ed

 t
o 

sa
nd

in
g,

 g
ri

nd
in

g,
 c

ut
ti

ng
 o

r,
 a

br
ad

in
g,

 o
r 

(d
) 

C
at

eg
or

y 
II

 
no

n-
fr

ia
bl

e 
A

C
M

 t
ha

t 
ha

s 
a 

hi
gh

 p
ro

ba
bi

li
ty

 o
f 

be
co

m
in

g 
or

 h
as

 b
ec

om
e 

cr
um

bl
ed

, 
pu

lv
er

iz
ed

, 
or

 r
ed

uc
ed

 t
o 

po
w

de
r 

by
 t

he
 f

or
ce

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 t

o 
ac

t 
on

 t
he

 m
at

er
ia

l 
in

 t
he

 
co

ur
se

 o
f 

de
m

ol
it

io
n 

or
 r

en
ov

at
io

n 
op

er
at

io
ns

. 



A
sb

es
to

s 
an

d 
L

ea
d 

Sa
m

pl
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

00
5.

17
as

b/
pb

 
10

40
 F

lo
w

er
 S

t. 
pg

. 4

C
at

eg
or

y 
I 

no
n-

fr
ia

bl
e 

as
be

st
os

-c
on

ta
in

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

l 
(A

C
M

) 
m

ea
ns

 
as

be
st

os
-

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 

pa
ck

in
gs

, 
ga

sk
et

s,
 

re
si

li
en

t 
fl

oo
r 

co
ve

r,
 a

nd
as

ph
al

t 
ro

of
in

g 
pr

od
uc

ts
 

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 m

or
e 

th
an

 1
 p

er
ce

nt
 a

sb
es

to
s.

C
at

eg
or

y 
II

 n
on

-f
ri

ab
le

 A
C

M
 m

ea
ns

 a
ny

 m
at

er
ia

l 
ex

cl
ud

in
g 

C
at

eg
or

y 
I 

no
n-

fr
ia

bl
e 

A
C

M
 c

on
ta

in
in

g 
m

or
e 

th
an

 1
 p

er
ce

nt
 a

sb
es

to
s.

W
ri

tt
en

 n
ot

if
ic

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t i
s 

re
qu

ir
ed

 f
or

 th
e 

fo
ll

ow
in

g:

1.
A

ny
 r

eg
ul

at
ed

 d
em

ol
it

io
n,

 w
he

th
er

 o
r 

no
t a

sb
es

to
s 

is
 p

re
se

nt
.

2.
A

ny
 r

eg
ul

at
ed

 r
en

ov
at

io
n 

in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

fo
ll

ow
in

g 
w

il
l b

e 
di

st
ur

be
d:

 
sq

ua
re

 f
ee

t o
r 

m
or

e 
of

 r
eg

ul
at

ed
 a

sb
es

to
s-

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 o
r,

li
ne

ar
 f

ee
t o

r 
m

or
e 

of
 r

eg
ul

at
ed

 a
sb

es
to

s-
co

nt
ai

ni
ng

 p
ip

e 
in

su
la

ti
on

gr
ea

te
r 

of
 le

ad
 b

y 
w

ei
gh

t.

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
it

h 
th

e 
O

SH
A

 L
ea

d 
in

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
S

ta
nd

ar
d,

 2
9C

FR
 1

92
6.

62
 i

s 
re

qu
ir

ed
 i

f 
an

y 
le

ad
 i

s 
pr

es
en

t 
in

 t
he

 s
am

pl
e 

(L
ea

d 
C

on
ta

in
in

g 
P

ai
nt

 0
.5

%
 o

r 
le

ss
 

of
 le

ad
 b

y 
w

ei
gh

t)
.  

-f
re

e 
pa

in
t 

as
 

le
ss

 th
an

 0
.0

6%
.

T
he

 s
it

e 
is

 c
om

pr
is

ed
 o

f 
th

e
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

in
te

ri
or

/e
xt

er
io

r 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 N
at

io
na

l 
G

ua
rd

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
lo

ca
te

d 
at

 1
04

0 
Fl

ow
er

 S
t. 

T
ur

lo
ck

, 
C

A
.

N
ot

e;
 t

he
 r

oo
f 

sy
st

em
 w

as
 n

ot
 t

es
te

d 
du

ri
ng

 th
is

 in
sp

ec
ti

on
.

in
sp

ec
ti

on
 o

f 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
si

te
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 
bu

lk
 s

am
pl

es
 f

or
 a

na
ly

si
s.

 
D

ur
in

g 
an

al
ys

is
, t

he
 la

bo
ra

to
ry

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

at
er

ia
ls

fo
r 

re
po

rt
in

g.
 T

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
su

m
m

ar
iz

es
 th

e 
sa

m
pl

e(
s)

 f
ou

nd
 to

 b
e 

at
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 li

m
it

s 
di

sc
us

se
d 

ab
ov

e.

N
on

e
N

ot
 A

pp
li

ca
bl

e
N

ot
 A

pp
li

ca
bl

e



A
sb

es
to

s 
an

d 
L

ea
d 

Sa
m

pl
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

00
5.

17
as

b/
pb

 
10

40
 F

lo
w

er
 S

t. 
pg

. 5

in
sp

ec
ti

on
 o

f 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t s
it

e 
co

ll
ec

te
d 

pa
in

t c
hi

p 
sa

m
pl

es
 f

or
 a

na
ly

si
s.

  

T
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

sa
m

pl
e(

s)
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 w
er

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 

N
A

N
A

N
A

T
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

sa
m

pl
es

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 w

er
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 t
o 

be
 

01
13

.L
1

B
ro

w
n 

P
ai

nt
-1

x1
-C

M
U

 
T

ra
in

in
g 

R
oo

m
0.

27
5

01
13

.L
2

B
lu

e 
P

ai
nt

-1
x1

-M
et

al
 D

oo
r 

Fr
am

e
T

ra
in

in
g 

R
oo

m
 D

oo
r

0.
23

5

01
13

.L
3

W
hi

te
 P

ai
nt

-1
x1

-C
M

U
H

al
lw

ay
-W

al
l

0.
07

81

01
13

.L
4

B
ei

ge
 p

ai
nt

-1
x1

-S
he

et
ro

ck
B

ra
vo

 R
oo

m
-W

al
l

0.
11

1

01
13

.L
5

T
an

 P
ai

nt
-1

x1
-C

on
cr

et
e

E
xt

er
io

r 
w

al
l

0.
07

55

01
13

.L
8

W
hi

te
 P

ai
nt

-1
x1

M
en

s 
B

at
hr

oo
m

0.
10

5

fo
ll

ow
in

g 
sa

m
pl

es
 w

er
e 

fo
un

d 
to

 b
e 

th
e 

C
on

su
m

er
 P

ro
du

ct
 S

af
et

y 
C

om
m

is
si

on
s 

le
ve

l 
of

 le
ss

 th
an

 0
.0

6%
.

01
13

.L
6

C
er

am
ic

 T
il

e-
L

ig
ht

 b
lu

e
0.

04
27

01
13

.L
7

C
er

am
ic

 T
il

e-
B

la
ck

/M
ul

ti
-c

ol
or

<
0.

00
23

3

01
13

.L
9

T
op

 f
oi

l l
ay

er
R

oo
fi

ng
0.

01
44

01
13

.L
10

W
hi

te
 p

ai
nt

-1
x1

-M
et

al
E

xt
er

io
r 

D
ow

ns
po

ut
0.

05
01



A
sb

es
to

s 
an

d 
L

ea
d 

Sa
m

pl
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

00
5.

17
as

b/
pb

 
10

40
 F

lo
w

er
 S

t. 
pg

. 6

A
n 

in
it

ia
l 

w
al

k 
th

ro
ug

h 
of

 t
he

 s
ub

je
ct

 s
it

e 
w

as
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 t
o 

id
en

ti
fy

 h
om

og
en

eo
us

 s
us

pe
ct

 
as

be
st

os
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
nd

 t
he

ir
 r

es
pe

ct
iv

e 
lo

ca
ti

on
s.

 T
hi

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

as
 t

he
n 

us
ed

 t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
sa

m
pl

e 
co

ll
ec

ti
on

 s
tr

at
eg

y.
 S

am
pl

es
 w

er
e 

co
ll

ec
te

d 
w

it
h 

an
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 s

am
pl

in
g 

to
ol

. 

E
ac

h 
su

sp
ec

t 
sa

m
pl

e 
w

as
 s

ea
le

d 
in

 i
ts

 o
w

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
r 

an
d 

la
be

le
d 

w
it

h 
a 

un
iq

ue
 i

de
nt

if
ic

at
io

n 
nu

m
be

r.
  S

am
pl

in
g 

to
ol

s 
w

er
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
ly

 c
le

an
ed

 b
ef

or
e 

an
d 

af
te

r 
ea

ch
 s

am
pl

e 
w

as
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 to
 

av
oi

d 
sa

m
pl

e 
cr

os
s 

co
nt

am
in

at
io

n.
  

D
ec

on
ta

m
in

at
io

n 
w

as
 a

cc
om

pl
is

he
d 

us
in

g
si

ng
le

 u
se

, 
pr

e-
m

oi
st

en
ed

 c
lo

th
s.

S
am

pl
es

 w
er

e 
re

co
rd

ed
 o

n 
in

-h
ou

se
 c

ha
in

-o
f-

cu
st

od
y 

fo
rm

. 
T

hi
s 

fo
rm

 a
cc

om
pa

ni
ed

 t
he

 
sa

m
pl

es
 to

 T
ri

an
gl

e 
E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
C

en
te

r,
 I

nc
. (

T
E

S
C

).
  T

E
S

C
 is

 lo
ca

te
d 

in
 M

id
lo

th
ia

n 
V

ir
gi

ni
a.

  -
S

us
pe

ct
 a

sb
es

to
s 

sa
m

pl
es

 w
er

e 
su

bj
ec

te
d 

to
 a

na
ly

si
s 

by
 p

ol
ar

iz
ed

 l
ig

ht
 m

ic
ro

sc
op

y 

D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 A

sb
es

to
s 

in
 B

ul
k 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
M

at
er

ia
ls

, E
P

A
/6

00
/R

-9
3/

11
6,

 1
99

3.

-
S

us
pe

ct
 

sa
m

pl
es

 
w

er
e 

su
bj

ec
te

d 
to

 
an

al
ys

is
 

by
 

A
A

/F
la

m
e.

 
 

S
am

pl
e 

an
al

ys
is

 
w

as
 

T
he

 
ta

bl
e 

pr
ov

id
es

 
ea

ch
 

of
 

th
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls
, 

sa
m

pl
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

on
 

nu
m

be
r,

 
de

sc
ri

pt
io

n/
 

an
d 

co
rr

es
po

nd
in

g 
la

bo
ra

to
ry

 r
es

ul
t.

01
13

.0
1

B
lu

e 
Fl

oo
r 

T
il

e-
12

x1
2

E
nt

ry
w

ay
N

on
e 

D
et

ec
te

d

01
13

.0
2

M
as

ti
c 

fo
r 

sa
m

pl
e 

#0
1

E
nt

ry
w

ay
N

on
e 

D
et

ec
te

d

01
13

.0
3

B
as

e 
C

ov
e

H
al

lw
ay

N
on

e 
D

et
ec

te
d

01
13

.0
4

M
as

ti
c 

fo
r 

sa
m

pl
e 

# 
03

N
on

e 
D

et
ec

te
d

01
13

.0
5

S
he

et
ro

ck
 M

ud
/T

ap
e-

T
ex

tu
re

d
C

om
m

an
de

rs
 O

ff
ic

e-
5B

N
on

e 
D

et
ec

te
d



A
sb

es
to

s 
an

d 
L

ea
d 

Sa
m

pl
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

00
5.

17
as

b/
pb

 
10

40
 F

lo
w

er
 S

t. 
pg

. 7

01
13

.0
6

S
he

et
ro

ck
 M

ud
/T

ap
e-

T
ex

tu
re

d
C

om
m

an
de

rs
 O

ff
ic

e-
5A

N
on

e 
D

et
ec

te
d

01
13

.0
7

S
he

et
ro

ck
 M

ud
/T

ap
e-

T
ex

tu
re

d
C

om
m

an
de

rs
 O

ff
ic

e-
5A

N
on

e 
D

et
ec

te
d

01
13

.0
8

C
ei

li
ng

 T
il

e-
P

in
ho

le
H

al
lw

ay
-A

dj
 R

oo
m

 1
7

N
on

e 
D

et
ec

te
d

01
13

.0
9

C
ei

li
ng

 T
il

e-
P

in
ho

le
H

al
lw

ay
-A

dj
 R

oo
m

 1
7

N
on

e 
D

et
ec

te
d

01
13

.1
0

M
as

ti
c 

fo
r 

sa
m

pl
e 

#0
8

H
al

lw
ay

-A
dj

 R
oo

m
 1

7
N

on
e 

D
et

ec
te

d

01
13

.1
1

M
as

ti
c 

fo
r 

sa
m

pl
e 

#0
9

H
al

lw
ay

-A
dj

 R
oo

m
 1

7
N

on
e 

D
et

ec
te

d

01
13

.1
2

S
tu

cc
o-

C
ei

li
ng

H
al

lw
ay

-A
dj

 R
oo

m
 1

7
N

on
e 

D
et

ec
te

d

01
13

.1
3

S
tu

cc
o-

C
ei

li
ng

H
al

lw
ay

-A
dj

 R
oo

m
 1

7
N

on
e 

D
et

ec
te

d

01
13

.1
4

S
tu

cc
o-

C
ei

li
ng

H
al

lw
ay

-A
dj

 R
oo

m
 1

7
N

on
e 

D
et

ec
te

d

01
13

.1
5

E
xt

-
C

on
cr

et
e-

W
al

l
R

ea
r 

P
ar

ki
ng

 L
ot

N
on

e 
D

et
ec

te
d

01
13

.1
6

C
on

cr
et

e 
Fo

un
da

ti
on

 
R

ea
r 

P
ar

ki
ng

 L
ot

N
on

e 
D

et
ec

te
d

01
13

.1
7

A
sp

ha
lt

R
ea

r 
P

ar
ki

ng
 L

ot
N

on
e 

D
et

ec
te

d

01
13

.1
8

E
xt

-S
tu

cc
o

R
ea

r 
pa

rk
in

g 
L

ot
N

on
e 

D
et

ec
te

d

01
13

.1
9

E
xt

-S
tu

cc
o

R
ea

r 
P

ar
ki

ng
 L

ot
N

on
e 

D
et

ec
te

d

01
13

.2
0

T
op

 F
oi

l L
ay

er
R

oo
f

N
on

e 
D

et
ec

te
d

01
13

.2
1

P
en

et
ra

ti
on

 M
as

ti
c

R
oo

f
N

on
e 

D
et

ec
te

d

01
13

.2
2

Fl
oo

r 
T

il
e 

-B
lu

e-
12

x1
2

R
es

tr
oo

m
N

on
e 

D
et

ec
te

d

01
13

.2
3

M
as

ti
c 

fo
r 

sa
m

pl
e 

# 
22

-
R

es
tr

oo
m

N
on

e 
D

et
ec

te
d

01
13

.L
1

B
ro

w
n 

P
ai

nt
-1

x1
-C

M
U

 
T

ra
in

in
g 

R
oo

m
0.

27
5



A
sb

es
to

s 
an

d 
L

ea
d 

Sa
m

pl
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

00
5.

17
as

b/
pb

 
10

40
 F

lo
w

er
 S

t. 
pg

. 8

01
13

.L
2

B
lu

e 
P

ai
nt

-1
x1

-M
et

al
 D

oo
r 

Fr
am

e
T

ra
in

in
g 

R
oo

m
D

oo
r

0.
23

5

01
13

.L
3

W
hi

te
 P

ai
nt

-1
x1

-C
M

U
H

al
lw

ay
-W

al
l

0.
07

81

01
13

.L
4

B
ei

ge
 p

ai
nt

-1
x1

-S
he

et
ro

ck
B

ra
vo

 R
oo

m
-W

al
l

0.
11

1

01
13

.L
5

T
an

 P
ai

nt
-1

x1
-C

on
cr

et
e

E
xt

er
io

r 
w

al
l

0.
07

55

01
13

.L
6

C
er

am
ic

 T
il

e-
L

ig
ht

 b
lu

e
M

en
s 

B
at

hr
oo

m
0.

04
27

01
13

.L
7

C
er

am
ic

 T
il

e-
B

la
ck

/M
ul

ti
-c

ol
or

M
en

s 
B

at
hr

oo
m

<
0.

00
23

3

01
13

.L
8

W
hi

te
 P

ai
nt

-1
x1

M
en

s 
B

at
hr

oo
m

0.
10

5

01
13

.L
9

T
op

 f
oi

l l
ay

er
R

oo
fi

ng
0.

01
44

01
13

.L
10

W
hi

te
 p

ai
nt

-1
x1

-M
et

al
E

xt
er

io
r 

D
ow

ns
po

ut
0.

05
01

A
sb

es
to

s 

S
E

I 
re

co
m

m
en

d
s:

 

If
 s

us
pe

ct
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 (
no

t d
is

cu
ss

ed
 in

 th
is

 r
ep

or
t)

 a
re

 d
is

co
ve

re
d 

du
ri

ng
 f

ut
ur

e 
de

m
ol

it
io

n/
re

no
va

ti
on

 
op

er
at

io
ns

, 
al

l 
ge

ne
ra

l 
w

or
k 

ac
ti

vi
ti

es
 w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 i

m
pa

ct
 t

he
 d

is
co

ve
re

d 
su

sp
ec

t 
A

C
M

 s
ho

ul
d 

ce
as

e 
un

ti
l c

on
fi

rm
at

io
n 

sa
m

pl
in

g 
ca

n 
be

 c
on

du
ct

ed
. 

re
co

m
m

en
ds

 t
ha

t 
yo

u 
co

ns
id

er
 t

he
 r

en
ov

at
io

n/
de

m
ol

it
io

n 
ac

ti
vi

tie
s 

of
 t

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
t 

as
 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

it
h 

C
C

R
 T

it
le

 1
7,

 d
iv

is
io

n 
1,

 c
ha

pt
er

. 8
, a

rt
ic

le
 1

.

A
ll

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
w

or
k 

w
he

re
 a

n 
em

pl
oy

ee
 m

ay
 b

e 
oc

cu
pa

ti
on

al
ly

 e
xp

os
ed

 t
o 

le
ad

 
co

nt
ai

ni
ng

 p
ai

nt
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

no
va

tio
n 

an
d/

or
 d

em
ol

it
io

n,
 m

us
t 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 t
he

 
O

S
H

A
 R

eg
ul

at
io

n 
29

 C
R

F 
19

26
.6

2 
an

d 
C

al
-O

S
H

A
 T

it
le

 8
, C

C
R

 1
52

3.
1 

If
 s

us
pe

ct
 p

ai
nt

ed
 s

ur
fa

ce
s,

 n
ot

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 i

n 
th

is
 r

ep
or

t 
ar

e 
di

sc
ov

er
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

fu
tu

re
 d

em
ol

it
io

n/
re

no
va

tio
n 

op
er

at
io

ns
, 

al
l 

ge
ne

ra
l 

w
or

k 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

 w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 
im

pa
ct

 t
he

 d
is

co
ve

re
d 

pa
in

te
d 

su
rf

ac
e 

sh
ou

ld
 c

ea
se

 u
nt

il
 c

on
fi

rm
at

io
n 

sa
m

pl
in

g 
ca

n 
be

 c
on

du
ct

ed
.



A
sb

es
to

s 
an

d 
L

ea
d 

Sa
m

pl
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

00
5.

17
as

b/
pb

 
10

40
 F

lo
w

er
 S

t. 
pg

. 9

T
he

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 t

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 i

s 
li

m
it

ed
 t

o 
th

os
e 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
su

sp
ec

t 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 f
ou

nd
 t

o 
be

 v
is

ua
ll

y 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
as

on
ab

le
 m

ea
ns

. 

T
ha

nk
 y

ou
 f

or
 u

si
ng

 
pl

ea
se

 f
ee

l 
fr

ee
 t

o 
co

nt
ac

t 
m

e 
w

ith
 a

ny
 

qu
es

ti
on

s 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
is

 r
ep

or
t a

t (
20

9)
 4

51
.3

01
7.

S
in

ce
re

ly
 

R
an

do
lp

h 
L 

Br
oo

ke
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

R
an

do
lp

h 
L

. B
ro

ok
e

C
al

-O
S

H
A

 C
er

ti
fi

ed
 A

sb
es

to
s 

C
on

su
lt

an
t

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

on
 #

05
-3

74
6

C
D

P
H

 C
er

ti
fi

ed
 L

ea
d 

In
sp

ec
to

r/
A

ss
es

so
r

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

on
 #

 2
44

18











St
oc

kt
on

 E
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l

T
R

IA
N

G
L

E
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 C

E
N

T
E

R
, I

N
C

.

31
9 

E
 B

an
bu

ry
 D

r.
St

oc
kt

on
, C

A
  9

57
02

17
01

16
A

A

01
/1

6/
20

17
01

/1
6/

20
17

01
/1

6/
20

17

B
. T

ri
m

m
er

JO
B

 S
IT

E
:

T
E

S
C

 L
O

G
IN

 #
:

D
A

T
E

 O
F

 R
E

C
E

IP
T

:
D

A
T

E
 O

F
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

:
D

A
T

E
 O

F
 R

E
P

O
R

T
:

A
N

A
L

Y
S

T
:

C
L

IE
N

T
:

C
L

IE
N

T
 J

O
B

/ #
:

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.0
1 

/ B
lu

e 
ti

le
1

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.0
2 

/ Y
el

lo
w

 a
dh

es
iv

e
2

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.0
3 

/ G
ra

y 
ru

bb
er

3

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.0
4 

/ Y
el

lo
w

 a
dh

es
iv

e
4

   
 

5%
 C

el
lu

lo
se

95
%

01
13

.0
5 

- 
S

he
et

ro
ck

 / 
W

hi
te

 p
ow

de
r,

 b
ro

w
n 

fi
be

rs
5A

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.0
5 

- 
M

ud
 / 

W
hi

te
 p

ow
de

r
5B

   
 

5%
 C

el
lu

lo
se

95
%

01
13

.0
6 

- 
S

he
et

ro
ck

 / 
W

hi
te

 p
ow

de
r,

 b
ro

w
n 

fi
be

rs
6A

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.0
6 

- 
M

ud
 / 

W
hi

te
 p

ow
de

r
6B

   
 

5%
 C

el
lu

lo
se

95
%

01
13

.0
7 

- 
S

he
et

ro
ck

 / 
W

hi
te

 p
ow

de
r,

 b
ro

w
n 

fi
be

rs
7A

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.0
7 

- 
M

ud
 / 

W
hi

te
 p

ow
de

r
7B

Ja
nu

ar
y 

16
, 2

01
7

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 
3

an
d 

"M
et

ho
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 A

sb
es

to
s 

in
 B

ul
k 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
M

at
er

ia
ls

",
 E

P
A

 6
00

/R
-9

3/
11

6,
 J

ul
y 

19
93

. N
on

e 
D

et
ec

te
d:

 n
ot

 d
et

ec
te

d 
at

/o
r 

be
lo

w
 th

e
de

te
ct

ed
 li

m
it

 o
f 

m
et

ho
d 

(R
ep

or
ti

ng
 li

m
it

: 1
%

 A
sb

es
to

s)
. G

la
ss

 f
ib

er
 is

 a
na

ly
ze

d 
fo

r 
qu

al
it

y 
co

nt
ro

l b
la

nk
. T

E
S

C
 r

ec
om

m
en

ds
 b

y 
po

in
t c

ou
nt

 o
r 

T
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
E

le
ct

ro
n 

M
ic

ro
sc

op
y 

(T
E

M
),

 f
or

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 r

eg
ul

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

E
P

A
 N

E
S

H
A

P
 (

N
at

io
na

l E
m

is
si

on
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 f
or

 H
az

ar
do

us
 A

ir
 P

ol
lu

ta
nt

s)
 a

nd
 f

ou
nd

 to
 c

on
ta

in
le

ss
 t

ha
n 

te
n 

pe
rc

en
t 

(<
10

%
) 

as
be

st
os

 b
y 

P
ol

ar
iz

ed
 L

ig
ht

 M
ic

ro
sc

op
y 

(P
L

M
).

 B
ot

h 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 a

va
il

ab
le

 f
or

 a
n 

ad
di

ti
on

al
 f

ee
. 

T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 s
ha

ll
 n

ot
 b

e
re

pr
od

uc
ed

, e
xc

ep
t 

in
 f

ul
l 

w
ri

tt
en

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
of

 T
ri

an
gl

e 
E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l 
S

er
vi

ce
 C

en
te

r,
 I

nc
. T

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 m

us
t n

ot
 b

e 
us

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
cu

st
om

er
 t

o 
cl

ai
m

 p
ro

du
ct

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n,
 a

pp
ro

va
l,

 o
r 

en
do

rs
em

en
t 

by
 N

V
L

A
P

, 
N

IS
T

, 
or

 a
ny

 a
ge

nc
y 

of
 t

he
 F

ed
er

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t.
 T

hi
s 

te
st

 r
ep

or
t 

re
la

te
s 

on
ly

 t
o 

th
e 

it
em

(s
) 

te
st

ed
.

N
V

L
A

P
 L

ab
 C

od
e:

 2
00

79
4-

0 
   

  
N

A
D

=
N

o 
A

sb
es

to
s 

D
et

ec
te

d,
 L

in
o.

=
L

in
ol

eu
m

, J
C

=
Jo

in
t C

om
po

un
d]

   
  

[

F
en

g 
Ji

an
g,

 M
S 

Se
ni

or
 G

eo
lo

gi
st

, L
ab

or
at

or
y 

D
ir

ec
to

r
Y

ue
do

ng
 F

an
g,

 S
en

io
r 

G
eo

lo
gi

st
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   



St
oc

kt
on

 E
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l

T
R

IA
N

G
L

E
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 C

E
N

T
E

R
, I

N
C

.

31
9 

E
 B

an
bu

ry
 D

r.
St

oc
kt

on
, C

A
  9

57
02

17
01

16
A

A

01
/1

6/
20

17
01

/1
6/

20
17

01
/1

6/
20

17

B
. T

ri
m

m
er

JO
B

 S
IT

E
:

T
E

S
C

 L
O

G
IN

 #
:

D
A

T
E

 O
F

 R
E

C
E

IP
T

:
D

A
T

E
 O

F
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

:
D

A
T

E
 O

F
 R

E
P

O
R

T
:

A
N

A
L

Y
S

T
:

C
L

IE
N

T
:

C
L

IE
N

T
 J

O
B

/ #
:

   
 

98
%

 C
el

lu
lo

se
2%

01
13

.0
8 

/ B
ro

w
n 

fi
be

rs
8

   
 

98
%

 C
el

lu
lo

se
2%

01
13

.0
9 

/ B
ro

w
n 

fi
be

rs
9

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.1
0 

/ B
ro

w
n 

ad
he

si
ve

10

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.1
1 

/ B
ro

w
n 

ad
he

si
ve

11

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.1
2 

/ G
ra

y 
gr

an
ul

ar
12

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.1
3 

/ G
ra

y 
gr

an
ul

ar
13

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.1
4 

/ G
ra

y 
gr

an
ul

ar
14

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.1
5 

/ G
ra

y 
gr

an
ul

ar
15

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.1
6 

/ G
ra

y 
gr

an
ul

ar
16

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.1
7 

/ B
la

ck
 g

ra
nu

la
r

17

Ja
nu

ar
y 

16
, 2

01
7

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 
3

an
d 

"M
et

ho
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 A

sb
es

to
s 

in
 B

ul
k 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
M

at
er

ia
ls

",
 E

P
A

 6
00

/R
-9

3/
11

6,
 J

ul
y 

19
93

. N
on

e 
D

et
ec

te
d:

 n
ot

 d
et

ec
te

d 
at

/o
r 

be
lo

w
 th

e
de

te
ct

ed
 li

m
it

 o
f 

m
et

ho
d 

(R
ep

or
ti

ng
 li

m
it

: 1
%

 A
sb

es
to

s)
. G

la
ss

 f
ib

er
 is

 a
na

ly
ze

d 
fo

r 
qu

al
it

y 
co

nt
ro

l b
la

nk
. T

E
S

C
 r

ec
om

m
en

ds
 b

y 
po

in
t c

ou
nt

 o
r 

T
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
E

le
ct

ro
n 

M
ic

ro
sc

op
y 

(T
E

M
),

 f
or

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 r

eg
ul

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

E
P

A
 N

E
S

H
A

P
 (

N
at

io
na

l E
m

is
si

on
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 f
or

 H
az

ar
do

us
 A

ir
 P

ol
lu

ta
nt

s)
 a

nd
 f

ou
nd

 to
 c

on
ta

in
le

ss
 t

ha
n 

te
n 

pe
rc

en
t 

(<
10

%
) 

as
be

st
os

 b
y 

P
ol

ar
iz

ed
 L

ig
ht

 M
ic

ro
sc

op
y 

(P
L

M
).

 B
ot

h 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 a

va
il

ab
le

 f
or

 a
n 

ad
di

ti
on

al
 f

ee
. 

T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 s
ha

ll
 n

ot
 b

e
re

pr
od

uc
ed

, e
xc

ep
t 

in
 f

ul
l 

w
ri

tt
en

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
of

 T
ri

an
gl

e 
E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l 
S

er
vi

ce
 C

en
te

r,
 I

nc
. T

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 m

us
t n

ot
 b

e 
us

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
cu

st
om

er
 t

o 
cl

ai
m

 p
ro

du
ct

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n,
 a

pp
ro

va
l,

 o
r 

en
do

rs
em

en
t 

by
 N

V
L

A
P

, 
N

IS
T

, 
or

 a
ny

 a
ge

nc
y 

of
 t

he
 F

ed
er

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t.
 T

hi
s 

te
st

 r
ep

or
t 

re
la

te
s 

on
ly

 t
o 

th
e 

it
em

(s
) 

te
st

ed
.

N
V

L
A

P
 L

ab
 C

od
e:

 2
00

79
4-

0 
   

  
N

A
D

=
N

o 
A

sb
es

to
s 

D
et

ec
te

d,
 L

in
o.

=
L

in
ol

eu
m

, J
C

=
Jo

in
t C

om
po

un
d]

   
  

[

F
en

g 
Ji

an
g,

 M
S 

Se
ni

or
 G

eo
lo

gi
st

, L
ab

or
at

or
y 

D
ir

ec
to

r
Y

ue
do

ng
 F

an
g,

 S
en

io
r 

G
eo

lo
gi

st
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   



St
oc

kt
on

 E
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l

T
R

IA
N

G
L

E
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 C

E
N

T
E

R
, I

N
C

.

31
9 

E
 B

an
bu

ry
 D

r.
St

oc
kt

on
, C

A
  9

57
02

17
01

16
A

A

01
/1

6/
20

17
01

/1
6/

20
17

01
/1

6/
20

17

B
. T

ri
m

m
er

JO
B

 S
IT

E
:

T
E

S
C

 L
O

G
IN

 #
:

D
A

T
E

 O
F

 R
E

C
E

IP
T

:
D

A
T

E
 O

F
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

:
D

A
T

E
 O

F
 R

E
P

O
R

T
:

A
N

A
L

Y
S

T
:

C
L

IE
N

T
:

C
L

IE
N

T
 J

O
B

/ #
:

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.1
8 

/ G
ra

y 
gr

an
ul

ar
18

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.1
9 

/ G
ra

y 
gr

an
ul

ar
19

   
 

5%
 C

el
lu

lo
se

95
%

01
13

.2
0 

/ F
oi

l, 
bl

ac
k 

ad
he

si
ve

20

   
 

5%
 C

el
lu

lo
se

95
%

01
13

.2
1 

/ B
la

ck
 ta

r,
 s

il
ve

r 
pa

in
t

21

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.2
2 

/ B
lu

e 
vi

ny
l

22

   
 

10
0%

01
13

.2
3 

/ Y
el

lo
w

 a
dh

es
iv

e
23

Ja
nu

ar
y 

16
, 2

01
7

Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 
3

an
d 

"M
et

ho
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 A

sb
es

to
s 

in
 B

ul
k 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
M

at
er

ia
ls

",
 E

P
A

 6
00

/R
-9

3/
11

6,
 J

ul
y 

19
93

. N
on

e 
D

et
ec

te
d:

 n
ot

 d
et

ec
te

d 
at

/o
r 

be
lo

w
 th

e
de

te
ct

ed
 li

m
it

 o
f 

m
et

ho
d 

(R
ep

or
ti

ng
 li

m
it

: 1
%

 A
sb

es
to

s)
. G

la
ss

 f
ib

er
 is

 a
na

ly
ze

d 
fo

r 
qu

al
it

y 
co

nt
ro

l b
la

nk
. T

E
S

C
 r

ec
om

m
en

ds
 b

y 
po

in
t c

ou
nt

 o
r 

T
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
E

le
ct

ro
n 

M
ic

ro
sc

op
y 

(T
E

M
),

 f
or

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 r

eg
ul

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

E
P

A
 N

E
S

H
A

P
 (

N
at

io
na

l E
m

is
si

on
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 f
or

 H
az

ar
do

us
 A

ir
 P

ol
lu

ta
nt

s)
 a

nd
 f

ou
nd

 to
 c

on
ta

in
le

ss
 t

ha
n 

te
n 

pe
rc

en
t 

(<
10

%
) 

as
be

st
os

 b
y 

P
ol

ar
iz

ed
 L

ig
ht

 M
ic

ro
sc

op
y 

(P
L

M
).

 B
ot

h 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 a

va
il

ab
le

 f
or

 a
n 

ad
di

ti
on

al
 f

ee
. 

T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 s
ha

ll
 n

ot
 b

e
re

pr
od

uc
ed

, e
xc

ep
t 

in
 f

ul
l 

w
ri

tt
en

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
of

 T
ri

an
gl

e 
E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l 
S

er
vi

ce
 C

en
te

r,
 I

nc
. T

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 m

us
t n

ot
 b

e 
us

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
cu

st
om

er
 t

o 
cl

ai
m

 p
ro

du
ct

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n,
 a

pp
ro

va
l,

 o
r 

en
do

rs
em

en
t 

by
 N

V
L

A
P

, 
N

IS
T

, 
or

 a
ny

 a
ge

nc
y 

of
 t

he
 F

ed
er

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t.
 T

hi
s 

te
st

 r
ep

or
t 

re
la

te
s 

on
ly

 t
o 

th
e 

it
em

(s
) 

te
st

ed
.

N
V

L
A

P
 L

ab
 C

od
e:

 2
00

79
4-

0 
   

  
N

A
D

=
N

o 
A

sb
es

to
s 

D
et

ec
te

d,
 L

in
o.

=
L

in
ol

eu
m

, J
C

=
Jo

in
t C

om
po

un
d]

   
  

[

F
en

g 
Ji

an
g,

 M
S 

Se
ni

or
 G

eo
lo

gi
st

, L
ab

or
at

or
y 

D
ir

ec
to

r
Y

ue
do

ng
 F

an
g,

 S
en

io
r 

G
eo

lo
gi

st
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   









St
oc

kt
on

 E
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l

31
9 

E
 B

an
bu

ry
 D

r.
St

oc
kt

on
, C

A
  9

57
02

17
01

16
A

D

1/
16

/2
01

7
1/

16
/2

01
7

1/
17

/2
01

7

E
S

B
JO

B
SI

T
E

:

T
E

S
C

 L
O

G
IN

 #
:

D
A

T
E

 O
F

 R
E

C
E

IP
T

:
D

A
T

E
 O

F
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

:
D

A
T

E
 O

F
 R

E
P

O
R

T
:

A
N

A
L

Y
S

T
:

C
L

IE
N

T
:

C
L

IE
N

T
 J

O
B

 #
:

1
01

13
.0
1

18
7

0.
27

5
27

50
Sa

m
pl

e 
w

ei
gh

t b
el

ow
 m

et
ho

d 
gu

id
el

in
es

51
4

2
01

13
.0
2

13
5

0.
23

5
23

50
Sa

m
pl

e 
w

ei
gh

t b
el

ow
 m

et
ho

d 
gu

id
el

in
es

.
31

7

3
01

13
.0
3

27
2

0.
07

81
78

1
21

2

4
01

13
.0
4

30
4

0.
11

1
11

10
Sa

m
pl

e 
co

nt
ai

ns
 s

ub
st

ra
te

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 a

ff
ec

t t
he

 c
al

cu
la

ti
on

 o
f 

w
ei

gh
t p

er
ce

nt
 a

nd
 m

g/
kg

.
33

8

5
01

13
.0
5

34
0

0.
07

55
75

5
25

7

6
01

13
.0
6

50
2

0.
04

27
42

7
21

4

7
01

13
.0
7

43
0

<0
.0
02

33
<2

3.
3

<1
0.
0

8
01

13
.0
8

33
4

0.
10

5
10

50
35

2

9
01

13
.0
9

26
8

0.
01

44
14

4
38

.6

T
ue

sd
ay

, J
an

ua
ry

 1
7,

 2
01

7
Pa

ge
 1

 o
f 

2

F
en

g 
Ji

an
g,

 M
S 

Se
ni

or
 G

eo
lo

gi
st

, L
ab

or
at

or
y 

D
ir

ec
to

r
Y

ue
do

ng
 F

an
g,

 S
en

io
r 

G
eo

lo
gi

st
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

T
he

 c
on

di
ti

on
 o

f 
th

e 
sa

m
pl

es
 a

na
ly

ze
d 

w
as

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

up
on

 r
ec

ei
pt

 p
er

 la
bo

ra
to

ry
 p

ro
to

co
l u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

no
te

d 
on

 th
is

 r
ep

or
t. 

R
es

ul
ts

 r
ep

re
se

nt
 th

e 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f 
sa

m
pl

es
 s

ub
m

it
te

d 
by

 th
e 

cu
st

om
er

. S
am

pl
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

cu
st

om
er

. T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 m
us

t n
ot

 b
e 

re
pr

od
uc

ed
, e

xc
ep

t i
n 

fu
ll

,w
it

ho
ut

 th
e 

w
ri

tt
en

 c
on

se
nt

 o
f 

T
ri

an
gl

e 
E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

 C
en

te
r,

 I
nc

. T
he

 te
st

 r
ep

or
t r

el
at

ed
 o

nl
y 

to
 th

e 
it

em
(s

) 
te

st
ed

. T
hi

s 
an

al
ys

is
 w

as
 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 b

y 
an

 A
H

IA
 a

cc
re

di
te

d 
la

bo
ra

to
ry

. A
IH

A
/E

L
L

A
P

 I
D

: 1
00

52
7,

 N
Y

E
L

A
P

/N
E

L
A

C
 I

D
: 1

14
13

.
M

in
im

um
 R

ep
or

ti
ng

 L
im

it
: 2

0 
ug

. L
ea

d 
B

as
ed

 P
ai

nt
 c

on
ta

in
s 

0.
5%

 le
ad

 b
y 

w
ei

gh
t p

er
 F

ed
er

al
 s

ta
tu

te
. T

he
 O

S
H

A
 L

ea
d 

in
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

S
ta

nd
ar

d,
 2

9 
C

F
R

 
19

26
.6

2,
 is

 in
vo

ke
d 

if
 a

ny
 le

ad
 is

 p
re

se
nt

 in
 th

e 
sa

m
pl

e.
 L

ea
d-

fr
ee

 p
ai

nt
 is

 d
ef

in
ed

 a
s 

<
0.

06
%

 b
y 

w
ei

gh
t (

C
P

S
C

).
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

[L
E

G
E

N
D

: m
g=

 m
il

li
gr

am
, u

g=
 m

ic
ro

gr
am

, p
pm

=
 p

ar
ts

 p
er

 m
il

li
on

]



St
oc

kt
on

 E
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l

31
9 

E
 B

an
bu

ry
 D

r.
St

oc
kt

on
, C

A
  9

57
02

17
01

16
A

D

1/
16

/2
01

7
1/

16
/2

01
7

1/
17

/2
01

7

E
S

B
JO

B
SI

T
E

:

T
E

S
C

 L
O

G
IN

 #
:

D
A

T
E

 O
F

 R
E

C
E

IP
T

:
D

A
T

E
 O

F
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

:
D

A
T

E
 O

F
 R

E
P

O
R

T
:

A
N

A
L

Y
S

T
:

C
L

IE
N

T
:

C
L

IE
N

T
 J

O
B

 #
:

10
01

13
.1
0

20
2

0.
05

01
50

1
10

1

T
ue

sd
ay

, J
an

ua
ry

 1
7,

 2
01

7
Pa

ge
 2

 o
f 

2

F
en

g 
Ji

an
g,

 M
S 

Se
ni

or
 G

eo
lo

gi
st

, L
ab

or
at

or
y 

D
ir

ec
to

r
Y

ue
do

ng
 F

an
g,

 S
en

io
r 

G
eo

lo
gi

st
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

T
he

 c
on

di
ti

on
 o

f 
th

e 
sa

m
pl

es
 a

na
ly

ze
d 

w
as

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

up
on

 r
ec

ei
pt

 p
er

 la
bo

ra
to

ry
 p

ro
to

co
l u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

no
te

d 
on

 th
is

 r
ep

or
t. 

R
es

ul
ts

 r
ep

re
se

nt
 th

e 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f 
sa

m
pl

es
 s

ub
m

it
te

d 
by

 th
e 

cu
st

om
er

. S
am

pl
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

cu
st

om
er

. T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 m
us

t n
ot

 b
e 

re
pr

od
uc

ed
, e

xc
ep

t i
n 

fu
ll

,w
it

ho
ut

 th
e 

w
ri

tt
en

 c
on

se
nt

 o
f 

T
ri

an
gl

e 
E

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

 C
en

te
r,

 I
nc

. T
he

 te
st

 r
ep

or
t r

el
at

ed
 o

nl
y 

to
 th

e 
it

em
(s

) 
te

st
ed

. T
hi

s 
an

al
ys

is
 w

as
 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 b

y 
an

 A
H

IA
 a

cc
re

di
te

d 
la

bo
ra

to
ry

. A
IH

A
/E

L
L

A
P

 I
D

: 1
00

52
7,

 N
Y

E
L

A
P

/N
E

L
A

C
 I

D
: 1

14
13

.
M

in
im

um
 R

ep
or

ti
ng

 L
im

it
: 2

0 
ug

. L
ea

d 
B

as
ed

 P
ai

nt
 c

on
ta

in
s 

0.
5%

 le
ad

 b
y 

w
ei

gh
t p

er
 F

ed
er

al
 s

ta
tu

te
. T

he
 O

S
H

A
 L

ea
d 

in
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

S
ta

nd
ar

d,
 2

9 
C

F
R

 
19

26
.6

2,
 is

 in
vo

ke
d 

if
 a

ny
 le

ad
 is

 p
re

se
nt

 in
 th

e 
sa

m
pl

e.
 L

ea
d-

fr
ee

 p
ai

nt
 is

 d
ef

in
ed

 a
s 

<
0.

06
%

 b
y 

w
ei

gh
t (

C
P

S
C

).
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

[L
E

G
E

N
D

: m
g=

 m
il

li
gr

am
, u

g=
 m

ic
ro

gr
am

, p
pm

=
 p

ar
ts

 p
er

 m
il

li
on

]



















 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
  

B
or

in
g 

Lo
gs

 



















 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
  

La
bo

ra
to

ry
 A

na
ly

ti
ca

l R
es

ul
ts

  
 

















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 





















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































  

ECONOMIC UPDATE – AUGUST 2020 1 

 

 
City Council Staff Update 
August 11, 2020 

 
 

 
To: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
From: Maryn Pitt, Assistant to the City Manager for Economic 

Development/Housing 
 
Prepared by: Maryn Pitt, Assistant to the City Manager for Economic 

Development/Housing 
 
Subject: Economic Development Update – August 2020 
 
 
 

August Economic Update 

We are in uncharted waters.... 

California Labor Market: has greatly declined. The Unemployment Rate has exceeded all prior 

records, as an estimated 12 to 15 percent of Californians have lost their jobs since March 2020. 

In Turlock, for February 2020, the unemployment rate was 4.70% in contrast to the April 30, 2020 

of 14.70%. 

COVID-19 Impacts on sales tax generation. 

Turlock’s top 25 sale tax generators produced approximately 52.7% of the city’s sale tax revenue. 

The table below depicts that almost all of Turlock’s top sales tax generators remain open. 

The economic impacts of COVID-19 are already shaping up to be significant, yet uneven, across 

the country. Not only are workers and businesses affected, but so too is the fiscal capacity of 

governments that rely on a healthy economy for their revenue. As the crisis unfolds, the impact 

on cities’ bottom line will be driven not only by overall economic conditions but specifically the 

parts of the economy where revenue is generated: retail sales, income and wages, and real 

estate. 

The results indicate an uneven geography of fiscal impact, Turlock seems well positioned to be 

hit less hard and bounce back more quickly than many communities that have larger service-

based economies. 

JLand
Text Box
10A1



  

ECONOMIC UPDATE – AUGUST 2020 2 

 

Top 25 Sales Tax Generators 

The list is no particular order and is based on sales from January 2020-March 30, 2020. These 

twenty-five businesses generate 52.7% of Turlock's Sales and Use Tax Revenue.  

ARCO AM/PM MINI MARTS  

KOHL'S  

SHELL SERVICE STATIONS 

BONANDER PONTIAC/BUICK/GMC  

LOWE'S  

SMITH CHEVROLET  

CHEVRON SERVICE STATIONS  

MCDONALD'S  

TARGET STORES  

COSTCO WHOLESALE  

N & S TURLOCK  

TJ MAXX  

NELSON-JAMESON  

TURLOCK CHRYSLER DODGE JEEP RAM  

GARTON FORD TRACTOR  

ROSS STORES  

UNITED RENTALS  

HOME DEPOT  

SAFEWAY  

VALERO SERVICE STATIONS  

INDEPENDENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY  

SAVE MART  

WAL MART STORES  

GOMES AND SONS 

DUST BOWL BREWING COMPANY  

 

City Revenues Differ in Timing and Economic Linkage. 

Some municipal revenue collections, by the nature of their design and collection practices, have 

a more direct and immediate relationship to the economy than others. The Property Tax provides 

about $13 billion to cities in FY2019-20. Because of the way taxable property is assessed, due and 

paid, property tax revenues are slow to respond to changes in economic conditions. To the extent 

there is an effect of the immediate pandemic, associated changes in behavior, and economics on 

property values, we will not see this show up significantly in revenue allocations until 2021-22. 

Even then, the effects of this immediate although severe pandemic event may be mild when it 

comes to the taxable value of property, which for many properties, is already well below market 

value. 

The effects of the pandemic and related economic conditions will have a fairly immediate effect 

on sales tax revenues. But the effect on Turlock seems to be less based on the preliminary 2nd 

quarter sales tax estimates provided by the California Department of Fee and Tax Administration. 

 



  

ECONOMIC UPDATE – AUGUST 2020 3 

 

Especially impacted are the following sectors: 

 Taxable sales of motor vehicle fuel and related products have fallen dramatically due to 

the shelter-in-place order. The service station category is about 8 percent of statewide 

sales. 

 Auto sales likely to fall significantly. Auto is about 13 percent of statewide sales. 

 Shift from dining to groceries will severely impact. (Take-out is taxed). Eating and drinking 

group is about 10 percent of statewide sales. 

 Generally, drop in consumer confidence should impact negatively, but online sales may 

abate some of this. Refrigerator/freezer sales seeing a bump. 

 Major impacts with corollary impacts on all related revenues. 

 College Towns. With college life shut down at least through June, most of the students 

who buy taxable goods have gone home to mooch off their families. 

 Hotel Tax (Transient Occupancy Tax) provides about $3 billion annually to cities statewide. 

Turlock historically receives approximately $1.3 million in TOT. TOT revenues are being 

hit hard by the pandemic event, although some tourism cities have already had their "high 

season" outside the March through June period. Turlock’s business travel sector is back, 

but the Fairgrounds, University and the City’s sports fields are what drives weekend hotel 

stays and is affecting the overall hotel occupancy rates. 

 

Business Outreach 

The City has created a database of business licensees and uploaded into Mail Chimp as part of 

the business outreach effort related to COVID, funding opportunities 

and business resources during the pandemic. Currently, the City is 

communicating with almost 3,000 business license holders with more 

than a 50% open rate on our outreach to them. 

 

Better News 

New construction continues on the following:  

Dutch Bros/ Domino’s Pizza is soon to open (Monte Vista Avenue near 

CSU Stanislaus) 

Smart and Final is open in the Turlock Town Center. Pop Eyes will also 

locate there and their plans are under review. 

 



  

ECONOMIC UPDATE – AUGUST 2020 4 

 

On the Horizon 

Staff is working on six industrial projects which will add more than 1,000 jobs to our local 

economy over the next 30-month period. These projects are both expansion as well as new 

construction projects in our base sector employment segments.  

There were multiple offers on the former Dustbowl space downtown. 

Staff is working with the shopping center owner on potential tenants for the JC Penney space 

which will be vacated in the next few months. 

Hometown Buffet will not be re-opening and there are current discussions on potential new 

restaurants tenants for that space. 

 

For questions or additional information about this update, please contact Maryn Pitt at 668-5439 or by 

email at mpitt@turlock.ca.us 

 

mailto:mpitt@turlock.ca.us

	Agenda
	3B
	6A
	6B
	6C
	6D
	6E
	6F
	6G
	6H
	6I
	6J
	6K
	6L
	9A
	9B
	10A1



